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Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”
or “Sunny Optical”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) (Stock
Code: 2382) is a leading integrated optical components and products
manufacturer with thirty years of history in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC” or “China”). The Group is principally engaged in
the design, research and development (“R&D”), manufacture and
sales of optical and optical-related products. Such products include
optical components (such as glass spherical and aspherical lenses,
plane products, handset lens sets, vehicle lens sets and other various
lens sets) (“Optical Components”), optoelectronic products (such as
handset camera modules, smart television video modules, three-
dimensional (“3D”) optoelectronic products, security cameras and
other optoelectronic modules) (“Optoelectronic Products”) and optical
instruments (such as microscopes, optical measuring instruments and
various high-end optical analytical instruments) (“Optical Instruments”).
The Group focuses on the application fields of optoelectronic-related
products, such as handsets, digital cameras, vehicle imaging systems,
smart television video systems, security surveillance systems, optical
measuring instruments and high-end optical analytical instruments,
which are combined with optical, electronic, software and mechanical
technologies.
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFBEHRE

(In Renminbi (“RMB”) millions, exceot per share amounts) ( A B E# T »

KaERIN)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-mFE —ZE—=% T Z=—F
Consolidated
ey

Operating results L& ¥4&
Revenue WA 8,426.5 5,812.8 3,984.3 2,498.5 1,818.1
Gross profit E ) 1,289.4 967.1 741.2 522.8 392.0
Finance costs gi#& A (14.0) (6.6) (3.1) (3.0) (4.1)
Profit before taxation &% Al i K] 634.0 504.5 397.2 239.5 164.9
Income tax charge FT{S 5% (72.7) (63.6) (68.3) (37.8) (26.7)
Profit for the year F£R#F] 561.3 440.9 338.9 201.7 138.2
Attributable to: 578 :

— Owners of the Company

— RNRAAIRRE 566.1 440.5 346.3 215.3 143.8

— Non-controlling interests

— JEIE R R s (4.8) 0.4 (7.4) (13.6) (5.6)

561.3 440.9 338.9 201.7 138.2

Earnings per share (in RMB) 2R ZX| (AR#E) 0.53 0.44 0.36 0.22 0.15
Assets and liabilities EER & &
Non-current assets 3E/R B & E 1,389.4 898.8 735.2 553.1 530.4
Current assets &) & & 4,204.4 3,766.4 2,267.0 1,822.4 1,527.2
Total assets E&E 5,593.8 4,665.2 3,002.2 2,375.5 2,057.6
Bank borrowings $R/TEE 521.6 488.9 102.6 79.6 113.0
Other liabilities Efth & & 1,821.6 1,316.4 967.8 614.8 416.7
Total liabilities # & & 2,343.2 1,805.3 1,070.4 694.4 529.7
Net assets EEFEE 3,250.6 2,859.9 1,931.8 1,681.1 1,527.9
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
NG Y g 3,247.7 2,849.8 1,921.6 1,661.4 1,495.9
Non-controlling interests JE# i & %5 2.9 10.1 10.2 19.7 32.0
Total equity =42 %8 3,250.6 2,859.9 1,931.8 1,681.1 1,527.9
Key Financial Ratio = Z it =
Gross profit margin (%) EFIZE (%) 15.3 16.6 18.6 20.9 21.6
Net profit margin (%) #EF)= (%) 6.7 7.6 8.5 8.1 7.6
Gearing ratio (%) Bf&EH=E (%) 9.3 10.5 3.4 3.4 5.5
Current ratio (times) &L =R (%) 1.8 2.1 2.2 2.7 3.1
Quick ratio (times) &tk = (£Z) 1.4 1.7 1.4 2.0 2.6




Five-year Financial Summary
hFEHMBEE

(In Renminbi ("RMB?) milions, exceot per share amounts) ( ) BB T » 132 48N

Net Assets Revenue
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Mr. YE Liaoning
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Dear Shareholders,

The Company is pleased to present to the shareholders the annual
report for 2014. Continuing to seize the golden opportunities arising
from the rapid development of smartphone industry and vehicle
imaging field, the Group achieved sound growth in overall performance
and delivered satisfactory returns to the shareholders in 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at 2014, the overall global economic growth was
sluggish, resulting in an uneven recovery process. While affected by
the factors such as weak external demand and declining domestic
demand, the growth of China’s economy continued to slow down
with increasing downward pressure. Meanwhile, the PRC government
adopted a series of measures to stabilise its macroeconomic growth
and optimise its economic structure. Against the unfavourable
macroeconomic environment, the global consumer electronic market
has still achieved stable growth. Among the global consumer electronic
market, the smartphone market in the PRC performed the best and
became the main driving force promoting the overall growth of the
industry. Besides, the vehicle imaging field grew rapidly with strong
momentum due to blooming market demand. Being the leading
handset lens sets and handset camera module provider in China
and the largest vehicle lens sets supplier in the world, the Group has
benefited from the growth.

During the previous year, the Group’s core business developed well
with satisfying growth of Optical Components and Optoelectronic
Products business segments. The achievement revealed the Group’s
efforts in pursuing the three major objectives of high technology, high
efficiency and high value, implementing the development strategies of
“Dedicated to and Focused on Existing Advantageous Businesses” and
“Speeding Up the Implementation of Transformation and Upgrade”,
integrating external resources actively and strengthening the overall
competitiveness of its existing businesses. Moreover, the Company
will lay a solid foundation for the medium to long term development of
the Group by devoting more resources, adhering to R&D of products
and technologies with innovations, strengthening cooperation with
international hi-tech companies, making active deployment in new
technologies and emerging industries and expanding its markets.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

With the efforts of the staff and the right development strategy,
the Group attained outstanding achievements in 2014. The vital
and experienced management of the Group set high standards
on themselves and are united. They, leading our staff, responded
proactively to difficulties and challenges, practised the Group’s
corporate culture of “Create Together” as its core value and captured
the favourable opportunities in each business segment. We continued
our efforts to enhance the Group’s competitiveness with our
technology and understanding on the needs of customers in order to
consolidate the Group’s leading position in the market. Meanwhile,
through accumulating years of experiences and resources reserve,
the Group expanded to broader application fields, and its product and
customer structures were further optimised. The overall results of the
Group matched with its anticipated growth.

The Group’s revenues increased by approximately 45.0% during the
financial year 2014 to approximately RMB8,426.5 million. Profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company increased by approximately
28.5% to approximately RMB566.1 million, while basic earnings per
share increased by approximately 19.4% to approximately RMB52.91
cents. The Board has proposed a final dividend of approximately
RMBO0.155 (20183: approximately RMBO0.121) per share.

AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

In 2014, the Group implemented the strategy of “Transformation and
Upgrade”, continued to invest in R&D and new technologies, and was
mindful about improving the standard of its corporate governance
and management. With the collaboration of our staff, the Group
received numerous accreditations, which revealed that the Group’s
products, services, technical capacity, production capacity and
management capacity were highly recognised in the industries and
by our customers. Being encouraged by the awards and honours
received, the Group would strive to provide our customers with
better products and services, and would carry on the strategy of
“Transformation and Upgrade” with determination.

_wll\/ i
RERE

R-Z—NF EE2BEINHERABZHT  Ee
ERNERER  AKERE T RIHKE - 7
mETEEREKRNEEBRBENED - BE—
B mRETRERE - M5 SR 2Dk E
B ERETA KRS AROEEEND
XX EEBZXEHEMHENREEE - IR
i TPAER  #EBRNTASENEEHF
N BETIRBARMA - B ARBRES
FOERBEIRMERFEE FAhTEREENE
R EmGBNEFPEBENE—FE(L
ERXEER TEMPHER -

REERR - —MFMBEERNREERAEL
IN#145.0% = ) A R #8,426,500,0007T + AN 2
A A% R FE (A A B SE N 4928.5%E M AR
#566,100,0007T © AN - TR EAR R AL N4
19.4%ENARMES2.910 - EFGEFRREDF
BEERHOARECASST (ZE—=F : HAR
#0.1217T) °

RERE

R-ZF—F  NEE-BERELNT AR
BT R EEEINARA - BERIER
ERQBEAMEEKFNE - KE2EET
MARSZ N AEEREETZREE BRI
EREFPHAKENER IR - Kiteen - &
ERENMEBENNRESEMABA - WA SR
AEBEBRESTPIRHEENEMMRY - BE
MEE T REBAEE [HRTR] 2R



OUTLOOK

In 2015, the global macroeconomic environment will be more complex
and volatile. The growth of the economy of the PRC will be slower
from its anticipated to drop from rapidly to moderately. In addition, the
growth of smartphone market in China will slow down, leading to a
fiercer competition in the industry. But the good news is that the major
branded customers are putting increasing efforts in the development
of digital and intelligent images to demonstrate the technology
level in their end products, so as to gain market shares. The future
development prospect of the Group, being an optical expert focusing
on optics and optoelectronic related fields for 30 years, is huge.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to implement its “Speeding
Up the Implementation of Transformation and Upgrade” strategy and
persist in its strategy of “Mingpeijiao” (BE/), with the objective
of building the Group as one of the world’s most prestigious
optoelectronic enterprises. The Group will transform from an optical
products manufacturer to a smart optical systems solution provider,
and from an instrument manufacturer to a system integrator. The
Group will continue its endless exploration and pursuit of the optical
field, integrate internal and external resources, and give full play to
its advantages, with a view to achieving the corporate vision of a
“Hundred Years Old Brand” ultimately.

APPRECIATION

The Group would like to express its appreciation to all the staff for
their outstanding contribution towards the Group’s development. The
Board wishes to sincerely thank the management for their dedication
and diligence, and they are the key factors for the Group to continue
its success in future. Also, the Group wishes to extend its gratitude
for the continued support from its shareholders, customers, and
business partners. The Group will continue to deliver sustainable
business development, so as to meet its business objectives for 2015
and realise higher values for its shareholders and other stakeholders.

Ye Liaoning
Chairman

Hong Kong
9 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED AT

MARKET REVIEW

Looking back into 2014, the global economy still hasn’t got rid of the
haze of the international financial crisis completely, and the recovery
of each economy was unbalanced, bringing more uncertainties to
the future prospect of the global economy. China’s economic growth
further slowed down, and a series of measures were implemented
by the PRC government to adjust its economic structure. The
development of all industries in China was thus affected, becoming
unfavourable. In spite of these, the previous year marked the first year
of China’s 4G smartphone market, as well as a year of continuing to
maintain steady growth. Local handset brands in China did well with
rising market shares by implementing strategies such as adjusting
operators channels, increasing investments in E-commerce and public
market channels, developing high-end market and actively penetrating
into the overseas markets. Besides, as more attention was put on
driving safety and intelligent drive around the globe, applications in the
vehicle imaging field were enriched continuously with strong market
demands and bright prospects.

According to the latest report by TrendForce, a market research
institution, the global shipment volume of smartphones in 2014
reached 1,167 million units, representing an increase of 25.9% as
compared with 2013, of which the shipment volume of China’s
smartphones was 453.4 million units in total, contributing to 40% of
the global market share. In the meantime, with a view to standing out
in the fierce market competition, higher resolution of the front and rear-
view cameras of the handset were required by major handset makers
and complicated specifications such as wide angle, large aperture
and optical image stabilization (“OIS”) were equipped to obtain better
imaging quality. According to the report of Techno Systems Research
Co., Ltd. (“TSR”) published in December 2014, the proportion of
the shipment volume of 10-mega pixel and above handset camera
modules among rear-view camera modules of global smartphones
was expected to increase from 9% in 2013 to 19% in 2014. The
Group actively devoted resources to increasing the proportion of sales
of high-resolution products to improve its product structure, thus
enhancing its competitiveness and profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Vehicle imaging field exhibited a vibrant momentum for development,
with an increasing penetration rate of vehicle lens sets year by
year. On 31 March 2014, the U.S. National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration published new rules to require that all light vehicles
produced after 1 May 2018 have to be equipped with at least one
rear-view camera to increase security when in reverse. We believe
that other countries and regions will follow suit, and relevant laws and
regulations will be published successively. According to the report of
TSR published in 2014, the global shipment volume of vehicle camera
modules was 47.7 million units in 2014, representing an increase of
33.0% as compared with 2013. Moreover, vehicle original equipment
manufacturers (“OEM”) are very confident about the prospect of active
safety system and intelligent drive, together with the rapid growth
of Advanced Driver Assistance Systems (“ADAS”). As a result, the
number of cameras installed in new vehicles will increase continuously,
and their specifications will be more complicated. The Group is one
of the few producers of high-quality and multi-specification vehicle
lens sets worldwide, and ranks first in terms of global market share.
Our market share increases year by year with promising development
momentum.

Moreover, as camera modules applied in smartphones are upgraded
over time, taking over part of the market shares for digital cameras,
the market demand for digital cameras decreased significantly. Thus,
the related businesses of the Group were also affected. Yet, the Group
proactively responded by adjusting its market strategy in due course,
and the production lines of digital camera related products realised
stable production after shifting from the headquarters in Zhejiang
Province to Xinyang, Henan Province with significantly improved
economic benefits, which strengthened the global leading position
of the Group in this field. Above all, by leveraging on our R&D and
manufacturing advantages on glass spherical lenses and lens sets
accumulated in the digital camera field through years of hard work,
the Group achieved satisfying development in security lens sets and
sports lens sets, and the applications of optical products were thus
expanded. We expected that glass spherical lenses and lens sets
would become the new momentum of growth of optical business
segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED AT

For optical instruments market, affected by the unfavorable global
macroeconomy and the slowdown in domestic economic growth,
demand in industrial market remained sluggish. But we also discovered
that the PRC government had substantially increased its public
expenditures in areas like health care, education, environmental
protection and food safety according to the “12" Five-Year Plan”.
Moreover, the transformation and upgrade of the manufacturing
industry in China drives strong market demands for machinery and
equipment required in machine vision and automatic production.
Supported by the dedicated funds for development of major national
scientific instruments and equipment from the Ministry of Science and
Technology, the project of “Development and Application of Trans-
scale 3D Optoelectronic Vibrating Measuring Instruments” of the Group
went on smoothly. To summarise, as a leading instrument supplier
in the optical instrument field in China, the Group will surely benefit
from the increasing demands for mid- to high-end optical analytical
instruments and high-end measuring instruments.

For other areas in which the Group involves, such as vehicle and
security products, they were promising with more market opportunities.
The infrared imaging system experienced further expansion with
broader applications. As for the innovative applications on mobile
terminals such as 3D and wearable consumer electronic devices
in which the Group has already involved, each market segment
developed smoothly, leading to a booming optoelectronic industry.
Taking advantage of its outstanding R&D and technological innovation
abilities, excellent resource integration and its competitiveness
in systems, the Group cooperated with the first-class high-tech
companies in the world, which created favourable opportunities for
the Group’s medium and long term development.

During the year under review, against the intense competition and
based in the optoelectronic industry, the Group, through firmly
implementing the “Mingpeijiac” (%A A) strategy and adhering
to its core corporate culture of “Create Together”, seized market
opportunities, expanded its customer base, improved its product
mix and fully utilised its advantages. These enhanced the Group’s
integrated competitiveness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

On the one hand, the Group has continued to dedicate to and
focus on existing advantageous businesses and further implemented
its development strategy of “Speeding Up the Implementation of
Transformation and Upgrade”. The Group has consistently enhanced
its R&D of product and technology and fully captured the domestic
market while actively exploring the international market. It has also
improved its internal governance standard and automation process. On
the other hand, the Group has effectively integrated the capital market
funding and resources, in line with the needs of the development,
to lay a solid foundation for its medium and long term development.
During the year under review, the measures implemented by the Group
have successfully achieved favorable results. Three major business
segments of the Group, namely Optical Components, Optoelectronic
Products and Optical Instruments, performed well, of which vehicle
lens sets business was in a rapid rising trend, with substantial growth
in sales and expanding customer base. The new production lines
of digital camera related products in Xinyang, Henan Province have
stabilised the production. With the stability and skill enhancement of
staff, the advantages in labour cost would be gradually demonstrated
and the economic benefits would become more obvious. Handset
lens sets and camera modules for smartphones developed vigorously,
achieving an excellent result which outperformed the market
performance in the same period. Meanwhile, product structure was
further optimised, and the proportion of the shipment volume of high
resolution products increased significantly.

In 2014, the Group realised revenue of approximately RMB8,426.5
million, representing an increase of approximately 45.0% as compared
with last year. This was mainly attributable to the fact that the Group’s
smartphone related business segments captured the favourable
opportunities of the industrial growth, which resulted in rapid upgrade
of the products and increases in both sales volume and average selling
price, thus realizing substantial growth. Meanwhile, vehicle lens sets
business with higher gross profit margin achieved a significant increase
in shipment volume by approximately 49.9%; security surveillance
business was further developed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED AT

During the year under review, the Group continued to make greater
investment and strengthen its R&D capability. We conducted R&D
advancement of existing products for the Group’s three major business
segments. The Group kept innovating in new optical applications and
optoelectronic modules, and further boosted the process automation
and “Lean Production”, which further consolidated the technological
advantages for our existing products in the industry and established
a first-mover advantage in developing emerging technologies and
products. For Optical Components business segment, 5-mega pixel
with wide-angle handset lens sets and 13-mega pixel handset lens
sets commenced mass production while 13-mega pixel (FNO1.8/ultra-
thin/OIS), 16-mega pixel and 20-mega pixel handset lens sets have
completed the R&D successfully. The “production method for optical
lens” developed by Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. has obtained
a national invention patent. For Optoelectronic Products business
segment, handset camera modules with 20-mega pixel, optical image
stabilisation function and dual cameras have been put into the market
respectively. In addition, the “burning method for high resolution
camera modules and chips” has been granted with a national invention
patent. Our self-developed active alignment (“AA”) equipments have
been widely applied in the production lines, effectively enhancing
production efficiency and quality. For Optical Instruments business
segment, the R&D of fully-automatic high-speed Gas Chromatography/
Quadrupole Mass Spectrometry (GC/MS) with some internationally
leading performance indexes have been completed successfully;
moreover, “SHP8400PMS Process Gas Spectrometer” produced by
Shanghai Sunny Hengping Scientific Instrument Co., Ltd was rated as
the “Excellent Instrument made in China during 2013-2014 (B2 4 1%
28 (2013-2014))”, and was listed in the “Manual of National Excellent
Instruments (B ZE 1722 F1)”. Currently, the Group has obtained 239
patents and 156 patent applications are pending for approval.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPTICAL COMPONENTS

Benefited from the sustained growth of smartphones and vehicle lens
sets markets, the Optical Components business segment had its
strategies adjusted with reference to industrial changes; and had its
external resources effectively integrated, making substantial growth
in the sales of relevant products, and optimizing the product mix
continuously. During the year under review, the Optical Components
business segment recorded a revenue of approximately RMB1,402.5
million, representing an increase of approximately 20.5% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. This business segment
accounted for approximately 16.6% of the Group’s total revenue as
compared with approximately 20.0% in the corresponding period of
last year.

The production lines for handset lens sets under the Optical
Components business segment have launched the automatic
assembling and the automatic testing and continued to propel the
“Automation-based Innovation” project and the “Lean Production”,
which significantly improved production efficiency and yield rate, and
thus reduced labour costs and losses.

During the year under review, upon entering into the Strategic
Cooperation Agreements between the Group and Konica Minolta
Optical Products (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“OMS”), Shanghai Sunny
Yangming Precision Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Shanghai Optics”), a
newly established wholly-owned company of the Group, has started
production as a production base of handset lens sets since 1 April
2014. Over the past year, with the cooperative effect between the
Group and OMS, the overall performance of our handset lens sets
business improved rapidly, and its market share also increased due
to satisfying market expansion. Meanwhile, its product structure and
customer base were significantly optimised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED AT

Among all the handset lens sets, the proportion of the shipment volume
of 5-mega pixel and above products increased from approximately
32.2% for the corresponding period of last year to approximately
78.4%, in which the proportion of the shipment volume of 8-mega
pixel and above products was approximately 21.2% as compared
with approximately 8.6% in the corresponding period of last year.
The Group continued to mass-produce 5-mega pixel with wide-angle
and 8-mega pixel handset lens sets for one of the major handset
customers in Korea, and expanded its customer base by successfully
launching mass production of 10-mega pixel handset lens sets for
Sony and some domestic branded customers. The Group also plans
to further devote resources, speed up the development and mass
production capability of high resolution products, take advantage of
the resources of OMS and enhance the development of handset lens
sets business in 2015.

During the year under review, vehicle lens sets of the Group recorded
a year-on-year increase of approximately 49.9% in the shipment
volume and still maintained the first place in terms of global market
share, with a further increase recorded. Additionally, the Group
started the business cooperation with Mando Corporation, Gentex
Corporation, TRW Automotive Holdings Group and Valeo etc. during
the year under review. The mass production has been commenced.

A total of 93 patents have been obtained in Optical Components
business segment, among which 39 are invention patents and 54
are utility model patents. In addition, 59 patents are in the process
of application.

OPTOELECTRONIC PRODUCTS

Benefited from the rapid development of smartphone market and
other mobile device products in the PRC, Optoelectronic Products
business segment achieved a satisfying performance. During the
year under review, revenue from Optoelectronic Products business
segment amounted to approximately RMB6,8083.2 million, representing
an increase of approximately 54.0% over the corresponding period of
last year. This business segment accounted for approximately 80.8%
of the Group’s total revenue as compared with approximately 76.0%
in the corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year under review, the proportion of 10-mega pixel products
increased from approximately 4.2% in the corresponding period of last
year to approximately 15.7%. The outstanding high resolution products
allowed the Group to maintain its leading position in the supply chain
for domestic smartphones, and our market share amongst domestic
smartphone makers was further increased by responding to the market
changes instantly and adjusting and implementing effective market
strategies. The Group’s subsidiary established in the U.S. has been
exploring internationally renowned customers under this business
segment actively. It successfully resulted in certain projects, which
are expected to generate sales in 2015.

During the year under review, the Group, apart from developing various
handset camera modules with high specifications in response to the
clients’ demands, has implemented R&D and achieved innovative
technologies in various innovative modules for mobile devices. We
have provided the customers with more experiences of differentiation,
achieved higher customer satisfaction and explored more opportunities
of applications. Besides, the Group recognised the importance of
having self-developed techniques and equipment on automation
process, which are the key to making breakthrough in the scope
of optoelectronic modules. Thus, the Group continued to invest
in automation for manufacturing, expand and perfect the related
production lines and equipment. Also, the Group has planned to
enhance its resources allocation in 2015, further strengthening its
competitive advantages, so as to consolidate its leading position in
high-end products.

Besides, 3D camera is turning into a trend of consumer electronic
devices. The Group seized the market opportunities and took a
proactive manner in its strategic planning. In January 2014, the
Group has invested US$1,000,000 in MantisVision Ltd., a 3D vision
technology company in Israel, hoping that it would bring the Company
new business opportunities in “3D image” field. During the year under
review, the Group has been selected by Google Inc. as a cooperative
partner in developing cameras with 3D function for Project Tango.

A total of 82 patents have been obtained in Optoelectronic Products
business segment, of which 8 are invention patents, 70 are utility
model patents and the remaining 4 are exterior design patents. In
addition, 82 patents are in the process of application.
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OPTICAL INSTRUMENTS

During the year under review, due to unfavourable external
macroeconomy and the slowdown in domestic economic growth, the
demand for industrial instruments decreased, and thus resulted in a
slightly decrease of approximately 5.2% to approximately RMB220.8
million for the revenue from Optical Instruments business segment.
This business segment accounted for approximately 2.6% of the
Group’s total revenue, as compared with approximately 4.0% in the
corresponding period of last year.

The PRC government substantially increases its investment in areas
like environmental protection and food safety according to the “12®
Five-Year Plan”, which is expected to propel the demands for high-end
optical analytical instruments. Besides, the manufacturing industry is
in a critical time of transformation and upgrade in the PRC, and the
manufacturers in all fields are proactively promoting the application of
automation production lines, thereby resulting in increasing demand
for high-end measuring instruments. Therefore, the Group will further
increase the investment in R&D and marketing of high-end optical
instruments in order to foster its medium to long term steady
development.

A total of 64 patents have been obtained in Optical Instruments
business segment, of which 5 are invention patents, 30 are utility
model patents and the remaining 29 are exterior design patents. In
addition, 15 patents are in the process of application.

PRODUCTION

The Group’s products are mainly manufactured in five production
bases in Yuyao of Zhejiang Province, Zhongshan of Guangdong
Province, Shanghai, Tianjin and Xinyang of Henan Province in the
PRC respectively. Furthermore, the Group has also set up offices in
Seoul of Korea and Singapore through its subsidiaries, namely Power
Optics Co., Ltd. ("“Power Optics”) and Sunny Instruments Singapore
PTE. Ltd. (“Sunny Instruments Singapore”) respectively. In addition,
the Group has established a subsidiary in Silicon Valley, California,
the U.S. to provide technical support, marketing and customer base
expansion in North America.
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
IR AT

Corporate Honours
ERE

Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd was awarded the “Best Quality Prize” by Hangzhou Hikvision Digital
Technology Co., Ltd.
RFAE (FIL) BRARIKENINERERRBFTHEMROERARFABEEN [HEHEHE]

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. was awarded “Gold Award for Core Supplier” by Huawei
ERRFAEEEBRAREKE [EAZOHEREE]

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. was awarded the “Excellent Supplier Award” by Guang Dong OPPO Mobile
Telecommunications Corp., Ltd.
ERBFAEELARAFKEERFINEEBEHEIR D EIFTMER [ 574 e 42

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. was awarded the “Outstanding Service Prize” by Lenovo
BERRFHEEEBRA R LERE [ £ MARE L]

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. was awarded the “Core Supplier Award” and “Best Quality Supplier Award” by
Yulong Computer Telecommunication Scientific (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
ERRFHEEEARDFNKEFEAERBERE ORI) BRARIMBEEN [ROHERRE] Rk [ZEBESHE
e

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. was recognised as the “Excellent Innovative Enterprise” by National Electronic
Information Industry
BERRFHEEEBRATLEZHNEFEEITX BRI HR

“SHP8400PMS Process Gas Spectrometer” produced by Shanghai Sunny Hengping Scientific Instrument Co.,
Ltd was rated as the “Excellent Instrument made in China during 2013-2014 (BIE i %2 (2013-2014))”, and was
listed in the “Manual of National Excellent Instruments (& 2 172 25 F )"

FERFEFREESARARAEE [SHP8400PMSEIZ R BB L A ITE ] 1T A [ BEF#25(2013-2014) ]
A3 (B E i s 1)

The Group ranked the forty-fifth in “2014 Ningbo Top 100 Enterprises” and the twelfth in “Ningbo
Competitiveness List (/7 o 55 1)
AREBEF (20148 MR E BREE | BERASN - AR [FR - HF N HiTHE 1200

The Group ranked the forty-eighth in 2014 Ningbo Top 100 Brands selected by the Ningbo Entrepreneur

A

magazine published by the Institute of Yongshang Development (F &2 B 7T ) in Ningbo
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

As of 31 December 2014, the Group’s revenue was approximately
RMB8,426.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
45.0% or approximately RMB2,613.7 million as compared with the
corresponding period of last year. The increase in revenue was mainly
benefited from the further development of smartphone market and the
rapid growth of application of vehicle optical system.

Revenue generated from the Optical Components business segment
increased by approximately 20.5% to approximately RMB1,402.5
million as compared with the corresponding period of last year. The
increase was mainly due to the substantial rise in shipment volume
and the increase in average selling price of handset lens sets resulted
from the improvement in product mix and continuous growth in the
shipment volume of vehicle lens sets.

Revenue generated from the Optoelectronic Products business
segment increased by approximately 54.0% to approximately
RMB6,803.2 million as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the remarkable
rise in its shipment volume and the rise in average selling price due to
the improvement in product mix of handset camera modules business.

Revenue generated from the Optical Instruments business segment
slightly decreased by approximately 5.2% to approximately RMB220.8
million as compared with the corresponding period of last year.
The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in
domestic and overseas demand for optical instruments.
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Gross Profit and Margin

The gross profit for the financial year 2014 was approximately
RMB1,289.4 million, which was approximately 33.3% higher than that
of last year, and the gross profit margin was approximately 15.3%
(2013: approximately 16.6%). The decrease in gross profit margin was
mainly attributable to the dilution effect arising from the rapid growth
in sale of Optoelectronic Products business segment which has a
lower gross profit margin as compared with the general gross profit
margin of the Group. The gross profit margins of Optical Components
business segment, Optoelectronic Products business segment and
Optical Instruments business segment were approximately 26.7%,
11.5% and 36.8% respectively (2013: approximately 24.6%, 12.6%
and 37.3%, respectively).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014, selling and distribution
expenses slightly increased by approximately 1.7% or approximately
RMB1.5 million to approximately RMB89.3 million during the year
under review, accounting for approximately 1.1% of the Group’s
revenue, as compared with approximately 1.5% for last year. The
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in costs of selling,
marketing and distribution personnel resulted from the growth in sales
activities.

R&D Expenditure

R&D expenditure increased from approximately RMB251.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately RMB392.3
million for the year of 2014. It accounted for approximately 4.7% of
the Group’s revenue during the year under review, as compared with
approximately 4.3% for last year. The increase was attributable to the
continuous investment in R&D activities and business development,
and the increase in the headcount and salaries of R&D experts and
engineers of the Group. The R&D expenditure was mainly used in the
R&D of high-end handset lens sets and handset camera modules,
innovative optoelectronic modules for mobile devices, vehicle lens
sets, infrared products, security surveillance systems products, mid- to
high-end new optical instruments and the upgrade of existing product
categories.

BEE WD T
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses, which represented approximately 2.7% of
the Group’s revenue during the year under review and approximately
2.9% for last year, increased from approximately RMB166.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately RMB230.7 million
for the year of 2014, representing an increase of approximately 38.8%.
The increase in expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in
the headcount of administrative staff, the increase in remuneration,
the grant of certain restricted shares and the corresponding increase
of relevant fringe benefits.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased from approximately RMB63.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately RMB72.7
million for the year of 2014. The increase was mainly attributable to
the growth in earnings. The Group’s actual effective tax rate was
approximately 11.5% during the year under review and approximately
12.6% for last year.

In order to keep the effective tax rate steady in the future, several
subsidiaries of the Group have successfully applied for the status of
Hi-Tech Enterprises. The current income tax rate applicable to Hi-Tech
enterprises is 15.0% according to the national policy in the PRC.

THEAR
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Tax rates applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are shown
as follows:

* Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Optics”)

* MIRFHREFRAT ([BRFHIAE]D

* Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Instruments”)

* BRBRFESBERAE ([FFHRE]D

* Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Zhongshan”)

*RFHRE (P BRAR ([#FHILKE]D

* Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Opotech”)

C BRRFABELARAF (RFHE))

* Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Infrared”)

* BERBRFAIMNIMBRAE ([F2FALINKE])

* Shanghai Sunny Hengping Scientific Instrument Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Hengping”)

Y EERFEIMEBEFIARAR ([RFEFESS])

* Ningbo Sunny Automotive Optech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny
Automotive”)

C BRBRTFEELBRMARAR ([RFEEHNE])

* Suzhou Shun Xin Instruments Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Shun Xin
Instruments”)

* BRNFERTESSBIR A A ([EIMFERTEeS])

Sunny Optics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Tianjin Optics”)

PR (KF) ARAF ([BFFREXE])

Hangzhou Sunny Security Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Hangzhou Security”)

MMBEFLHEMERAR ([FRFHMEH])

Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Xinyang Optics”)

EBHTAZERAR ([RFEBLE]

Shanghai Sunny Yangming Precision Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny

Shanghai Optics”)

LERFHEABEAEERAR ( [BFLEXE])

Ningbo Sunny Advanced Instruments Co., Ltd (“Sunny Advanced

Instruments”)

ERAETERAIEE[ARLRF ( [#FEHES] )

Sunny Group Limited (“Sunny Group”)
RFEEBRAR ( [FFEE] )

* Companies recognised as Hi-Tech enterprises prior to the balance
sheet date.

TRERASESTHEMNBRATAEAHE
2013 2014 2015 2016
—E=—= —E-WOFE —FT-HF ZZT—RF
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
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Profit for the Year and Margin

Profit for the year increased by approximately 27.3% from
approximately RMB440.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 to approximately RMB561.3 million for the year of 2014. The
increase in net profit was mainly attributable to the increase in gross
profit and effective control in operating expenses. The net profit margin
was approximately 6.7%, compared with approximately 7.6% for last
year.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB566.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB125.6 million or approximately 28.5% as compared

with approximately RMB440.5 million for last year.

Final Dividends

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the dividends proposed by
the Board was approximately RMBO0.155 (being HK$0.190) per share,

with payout ratio of approximately 30.0% of the profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Flows

The table below summarises the Group’s cash flows for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013:

FERRI R E

FEBNHEBEE-_T—=F+-_A=+—HLHF
B #) A AR 440,900,0007T 3 Il #4127 3% FE —
T—ENL A ARES561,300,0007T ° 45712
MOEFERAZEFENREEBEANERE
Yo MRRBMB6.7%  EEFELHABT.6% °

RARRREMLRR

N R IR R R ks R 49 A A R #566,100,000
T BEFNE A ARBEL40,500,0007T FF 4
AR #125,600,0007T 8 428.5% ©

KRB E

HE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—BLFE EFE
ERIREESRHAREO1555T (A£0.1907 1)
B S - INLBIKBARRRKREAENLE TR
FI#930.0% ©

REBEESRERRKR

BERE
TREFINAEBREE-_ZT—NE+-_A=+—
AN—E—=F+-A=+—HILFENERELR

EME:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2014 2013

—F-mF —T=%F

RMB million RMB million

AREBEER AREBET

Net cash (used in) from operating activities & & E58) (FTA) TSR F58 (182.9) 667.8
Net cash from (used in) investing activities & /ZBFTE (FrA) IR F58 169.4 (1,039.1)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities & E®) (BT ) P3R5 58 (190.1) 837.5



Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group derives its working capital mainly from cash on hand, net
cash generated from investing activities. The Board expects that the
Group will rely on net cash from operating activities in the short run
to meet the demand of working capital and other capital expenditure
requirements. In the long run, the Group will be funded by net
cash from operating activities and, if necessary, by additional bank
borrowings or equity financing . There were no material changes in
the funding and financial policy of the Group.

The Group’s balance of cash and cash equivalents was approximately
RMB504.6 million as of 31 December 2014, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB204.4 million when compared to the balance
of last year.

Proceeds Brought Forward From Previous Fund
Raising

On 23 September 2013, the Company, a controlling shareholder
of the Company and a placing agent entered into a top-up placing
and subscription agreement pursuant to which (i) the placing agent
has agreed to act as agent for the controlling shareholder to place
97,000,000 shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) under the placing
(the “Placing”) at a price of HK$8.06 per Share (the “Placing Price”).
The Placing Price represents (i) a discount of approximately 4.39%
to the closing price of HK$8.43 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the Placing and (i) a net Placing Price of
HK$7.94 per Share after deduction of relevant expenses incurred.
The Placing raised an aggregate net proceeds of approximately
HK$770.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB608.0 million) (the
“Net Proceeds”).
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During the period from 1 October 2013 to 31 December 2014, the
Net Proceeds from the Placing were utilised and applied as follows:

R-Z-—=F#+A-RAZE-2-—m&E+=F
SH-RHN BEFEAEREIES B
T :

Approximate
amount of the

Usage Net Proceeds
Jiik=S B FRSRIETEE
(RMB million)
(AR¥EER)
To expand production capacity for: AR TS IENERER
Handset lens sets FHReE 125.9
Handset camera modules FHRAREA 201.3
Vehicle lens sets BHH R 123.0
To meet general working capital requirement ARmE—REEESFTK 157.8
Total ait 608.0

Up to 31 December 2014, the Net Proceeds had been fully utilised for
the optimisation of production capacity expansion, development and
general working capital of the Company.

Operating Activities

Cash inflow from operating activities was mainly generated from
cash receipt from sales of the Group’s products. Cash outflow from
operating activities was mainly due to the purchases of raw materials,
staff costs, selling and distribution expenses, R&D expenditure and
administrative expenses. Net cash generated from operating activities
was approximately RMB667.8 million for the financial year ended
2013 and net cash used in operating activities was approximately
RMB182.9 million for the financial year ended 2014. The net cash
used in operating activities was mainly attributable to early collection
of partial trade receivables in the year of 2013 and an increase in
working capital requirement from the revenue growth.

The trade receivable turnover days (balance of trade receivables/
revenue x 365 days) increased from approximately 49 days for the
financial year of 2013 to approximately 65 days for the financial year
of 2014. The increase in the trade receivable turnover days was mainly
due to the early collection of partial trade receivables by the end of
the year 2018.

HE-_T-—NF+-A=+—H PIEFIEFHE
EEBARBLERRER BEREEARRTN
—REEET -

REEH

KEEHFAEREMATERERASEEREE
REWA - KL FHAARSREETEAREER
RAME - BIRA  SHEMSHEI L - HEH
Y ROTBAY - —E—=FHRFENGEEH
FriSiR & F 8 A AR 667,800,000t & = F
—FHRFENLELEBFMARESFHEAIAA
R #5182,900,0007T » &£ &£ /EBFTAR S IFREE
ERENR-T—=—FIRAIWEHD E FEKK
18 - RS ERAE MBS EERFSIGM -

BHRKFEEE A (5 EEFBHE K
A X 365H) AT ZFUHRFEMNHIOF L
MEZZT—MFHRFENLESH - BHEIR
BREASENEERHEN T —=FFERAM
W Bl #5 B 5 W GRIA o



Management Discussion and Analysis

The trade payable turnover days (balance of trade payables including
accrued purchases/cost of sales x 365 days) decreased from
approximately 68 days for the financial year of 2013 to approximately
60 days for the financial year of 2014. The general credit terms granted
by suppliers were normally ranged from 60-90 days. The decline in
trade payable turnover days was primarily due to the Group’s improved
control on the procurement of raw materials, which reduced the
average inventory level.

The inventory turnover days (balance of inventories/cost of sales x
365 days) reduced from approximately 58 days for the financial year
of 2013 to approximately 46 days for the financial year of 2014. The
decrease in inventory turnover days was mainly because the Group
has improved the control on inventories, which was more careful on
the selection of storage of inventories and tried to keep inventory level
as low as possible.

Investing Activities

The Group recorded a net cash inflow from investing activities of
approximately RMB169.4 million for the financial year of 2014, which
was mainly attributable to release of and purchases of financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
RMB10,550.6 million and approximately RMB9,776.7 million during
the year respectively.

Financing Activities

The Group recorded a net cash outflow from financing activities of
approximately RMB190.1 million for the financial year of 2014. The
inflow mainly came from new bank borrowings raised of approximately
RMB910.1 million. Major outflows were the repayment of borrowings
of approximately RMB877.4 million, purchases of shares as unvested
shares under the share award scheme of approximately RMB79.5
million and dividends paid to shareholders of approximately RMB132.7
million as declared last year.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s capital expenditure
amounted to approximately RMB369.5 million, which was mainly used
for the purchases of plant and equipment and other tangible assets.
All of the capital expenditure was financed by internal resources, bank
borrowings and net proceeds from placement.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Indebtedness

Borrowings

Bank loans of the Group as of 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately RMB521.6 million (2013: approximately RMB488.9
million). Pledged bank deposit of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB4.4 million (2013: RMB113.8 million) was arranged in the year
under review.

As of 31 December 2014, all bank loans were denominated in U.S.
Dollars. The gearing ratio of the Group by reference to the total debt to
total book capitalization ratio (total book capitalization means the sum
of total liabilities and shareholders’ equity) was approximately 9.3%,
reflecting that the Group’s financial position was at a sound level.

Bank facilities

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had bank facilities of RMB545.0
million with Yuyao Branch of Agricultural Bank of China, USD25.0
million with Yuyao Branch of Ningbo Bank, USD22.0 million with BNP
Paribas Hong Kong Branch, USD50.0 million with BNP Paribas (China)
Limited, USD38.0 million with Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong Branch, USD21.0 million with the Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, USD15.0 million with Yuyao
Branch of Bank of Communication and RMB80.0 million with Ningbo
Branch of Huaxia Bank.

Debt securities

As of 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any debt securities.

Contingent liabilities

As of 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any pledge or charge on assets as of
31 December 2014, except for the pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB4.4 million.

Commitments

As of 31 December 2014, the future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
premises amounted to approximately RMB121.1 million (2013:
approximately RMB88.7 million).

As of 31 December 2014, the capital expenditure of the Group in
respect of acquisition of plant and equipment contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated financial statements amounted to
approximately RMB64.7 million (2013: approximately RMB48.4 million).

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had no other capital commitments
save as disclosed above.

PERFORMANCE OF INVESTMENTS
MADE AND FUTURE INVESTMENTS

The Group’s investing activities mainly include the purchases of
machinery and equipment. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group’s investments amounted to approximately RMB369.5
million, mainly involving in the purchases of machinery and equipment,
as well as the initial production settings of new products and
the necessary equipment configurations of new projects. These
investments enhanced the capabilities of the Group’s R&D and
production efficiency, thereby enlarging the market share of existing
products and penetrating into new markets, and thus expanded the
revenue sources.

The Group adopts prudent financial policies, and therefore its
investment projects are mostly capital-protected with fixed income. We
can guarantee stable and healthy financial positions while improving
our returns.
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On 15 August 2014, a conditional agreement was entered into
between 25 registered holders of the entire equity interests in Sunny
Group Limited (“Sunny Nominees”) and the Group pursuant to which
Sunny Nominees, acting on behalf of the employees or ex-employees
of Sunny Group Limited or its subsidiaries having beneficial interests in
the registered capital of Sunny Group Limited as at 15 August 2014,
had agreed to sell the entire equity interests in Sunny Group Limited
to the Group at a consideration of approximately RMB351.4 million in
cash (the “Acquisition”). Sunny Group Limited is principally engaged in
investment holding and property leasing. The Acquisition constituted
a discloseable and connected transaction under the Listing Rules and
was approved by the independent Shareholders on 22 September
2014. Upon completion of the Acquisition as at 26 September 2014,
the Group owns 100% of the equity interest of Sunny Group Limited.
For details of the Acquisition, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 31 August 2014.

Going forward, the Group intends to continue to invest in and expand
its production capacity in order to enhance competitiveness.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2014, the Group did not enter into any material
off-balance sheet transactions.

QUANTITATIVE AND AQUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risks on its bank borrowings
for working capital and capital expenditures that are associated with
the expansion of the Group and for other uses. Upward fluctuations
in interest rates increase the costs of both existing and new debts.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the effective interest rate on
fixed-rate bank loans was approximately 2.02% per annum. The Group
had not entered into any type of interest rate agreements or derivative
transactions to hedge against the fluctuations in interest rates.
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Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Group exports a portion of its products to and makes purchases
from international markets where transactions are denominated in U.S.
dollars or other foreign currencies. To reduce the risk, the Group has
entered into certain foreign exchange trading instruments to reduce
its currency risk.

Credit Risk

The Group’s financial assets include derivative financial assets, bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, short-term fixed deposits,
financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss, trade
and other receivables, entrusted loan receivables, amounts due from
related parties and available-for-sale investment, which represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade receivables,
the management has delegated a team which is responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Therefore, the Directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced. The amounts presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position are net of allowances for
bad and doubtful debts, estimated by the management based on prior
experience, their assessment of the current economic environment and
the discounted cash flows to be received in future.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk since its
trade receivables are dispersed to a large number of counterparties
and customers. The credit risk on liquidity is limited because majority
of the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings as rated by
international credit-rating agencies.
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Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable
rates applicable to short-term bank deposits. Therefore, any future
variations in interest rates will not have any significant impact on the
results of the Group.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate level of
cash and cash equivalents through continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had a total of 14,765 dedicated full-time employees as of
31 December 2014, including 2,190 management and administrative
staff, 12,249 production workers and 326 operation supporting staff.
In line with the performance of the Group and individual employees, a
competitive remuneration package is offered to retain elite employees,
including salaries, medical insurance, discretionary bonuses, other
fringe benefits as well as mandatory provident fund scheme for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
scheme for employees in the PRC.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a restricted
share award scheme, for the purposes of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants to recognise their contribution to the
Group and enhancing their ownership spirits. For the year ended 31
December 2014, no share option was granted or agreed to be granted
by the Company under the share option scheme. In addition, during
the year ended 31 December 2014, an aggregate of 10,952,000
shares were granted to eligible participants in accordance with the
restricted share award scheme.
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DIVIDENDS

The Directors proposed a payment from the distributable reserves of
the Company a final dividend of approximately RMB0.155 (equivalent
to HK$0.190) per share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on 20 May 2015.
The final dividends, payable on 10 June 2015, are subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) to be held on 15 May 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the eligibility of shareholders to attend the AGM,
which is to be held on 15 May 2015, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 12 May 2015 to 15 May 2015, both
days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered.
All transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 11
May 2015.

In order to determine the eligibility of shareholders to the dividends,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 21 May
2015 to 27 May 2015, both days inclusive, during which no transfer
of shares will be registered. All transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 20 May 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE STRATEGIES

During the year under review, upholding the mission of ensuring
sustainable growth of the Group, the management team strived to
make progress with innovation. All businesses of the Group have
achieved sound development. Looking into 2015, uncertainties will
remain in the economy of the world and the PRC, but the Group
is optimistic about its future operation. In the view of the Directors,
2015 is a year with both challenges and opportunities. The Group’s
management will closely monitor the development in the markets and
the industries, accelerate its business transformation and upgrade,
continue to implement its development strategies and lead the Group
to maintain the sound development momentum in 2015.

1. Continue in-depth exploration and dedicate to and focus on
existing business strengths

The Group will utilise its business strengths and will continue
to increase the proportion of sales of high-end handset lens
sets and handset camera modules, and to increase the market
share of these products, vehicle lens sets and microscopic
instruments. Meanwhile, the Group will strengthen the market
functions and enhance its market penetration power through its
subsidiary in the U.S. The Group will further implement “Lean
Production”, and improve its production management process
with an aim to enhancing its management and controlling
abilities of production processing. The Group will also continue
to keep the industrial transfer strategy to ensure more stable
production of the new production base in Xinyang, and to
facilitate the medium to long term strategic layout of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2. Achieve breakthrough in emerging businesses and realise a
balanced development

In future, the Group will continue to focus on a balanced
development of various business segments, aiming to increase
the sales of relevant products through further expansion
and optimisations of its sales channels of existing emerging
businesses. In 2015, the Group is expected to achieve
breakthroughs in security surveillance lens sets and new
optical instruments. At the same time, the Group will continue
to explore new optical applications, especially the innovative
optical applications on mobile devices. The Group will identify
key emerging businesses to realise its sustainable medium to
long term development.

3. Continue to enhance management performance and facilitate
management innovation

The Group will strengthen its managerial function, improve
its performance evaluation system, enhance its financial
management capability, further promote technological
innovation by focusing on “Automation”, and innovate its
corporate culture and management style. These will help the
Group adjust and fully utilise its resources, so as to achieve a
more flexible management innovation.

In the coming years, the Group will continue to provide the global
top tier technology companies with more products and services
by leveraging on the sound industrial growing trends and excellent
position in the market as optical experts, maintaining innovation
and upholding the “Mingpeijiao” (&L /) strategy, thereby achieving
corporate growth and value enhancement to create returns for the
shareholders continuously.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRENREERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year 2014, the Board consisted of 7 Directors comprising
3 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 independent
non-executive Directors. The information on the Directors is set forth
below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning ((E %), aged 49, is one of the founders of the
Group, and currently an executive Director, the Chairman of
the Board and the chairman of the Strategy and Development
Committee. He is responsible for formulating the Group’s policy
and making decisions. Mr. Ye joined Yuyao County Chengbei
Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 and became its deputy
general manager since 1995. Mr. Ye has obtained a qualification
of senior economist issued by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang
in 2008. Senior economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC
and is normally granted to a person who has passed necessary
examinations and has acquired substantial management experience.
Mr. Ye obtained a diploma from Zhejiang Radio & TV University in
1999. Mr. Ye has been an executive Director since May 2007 and is
currently a director of various members of the Group.

Mr. Sun Yang (f8)%), aged 42, currently is an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall operation and management of the Group. Mr. Sun graduated
from Ningbo University in 1995 with a bachelor’s degree in
economics. He then obtained a master’s degree in economics from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 2005. He joined
Zhejiang Sunny (Group) Joint Stock Company Limited, originally
known as Yuyao County Chengbei Optical Instruments Factory,
as a chief officer of its investment management centre in 2002. In
2008, Mr. Sun was granted a qualification of senior economist by
the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang. Senior economist is a recognised
qualification in the PRC and is normally granted to a person who
has passed necessary examinations and has acquired substantial
management experience. Mr. Sun has been an executive Director
since May 2009 and is currently a director of various members of
the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wang Wenjie (£ X 7R), aged 47, is currently an executive Director
and standing vice president of the Company. He is responsible for
the strategic planning and information management of the Group.
Mr. Wang graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in 1989 and joined the Group after his
graduation. Mr. Wang obtained a qualification as a senior economist
in 2008 from the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang. Senior economist is
a recognised qualification in the PRC and is normally granted to a
person who has passed necessary examinations and has acquired
substantial management experience. In 2012, he was awarded the
titles of “Outstanding Entrepreneur of Ningbo City”, “2012 Top 10
Yong Shang of Ningbo City” and “2012 National Outstanding Young
Entrepreneur of Electronic Engineering Industry”. He has been an
executive Director since December 2013.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Wenijian (3 £8), aged 67, our former Chairman of the
Board, executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, is one of the
founders of the Group, and currently is a non-executive Director
and the Honorary Chairman of the Board. Mr. Wang joined Yuyao
County Chengbei Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 as factory
manager and became its general manager since 1994 when it was
transformed to a joint stock limited liability company. Mr. Wang
obtained the title of “Outstanding Entrepreneur” from Ningbo
Entrepreneurs Association and Ningbo Enterprise Unite League
in 2006. Mr. Wang acted as honorary president of Yuyao Charity
Federation in 2003 and as a guest professor of the College of
Information Science and Engineering, Zhejiang University in 2005.
He obtained a qualification as a senior economist in 1996 from
Ningbo Municipal Government. Senior economist is a recognised
qualification in the PRC and is normally granted to a person who
has passed necessary examinations and has acquired substantial
management experience. Mr. Wang was re-designated as a
non-executive Director in March 2012 and is currently a director of
various members of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRENREERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Xu (2l/8), aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director.
Dr. Liu currently is the standing vice dean of the College of
Information Science and Engineering, Zhejiang University. Dr. Liu
graduated from Universite Paul Cezanne, France with a doctor’s
degree in information and material science. He was then engaged
in his postdoctoral research in instrument and meter science
in Zhejiang University from 1990 to 1993 where he obtained a
postdoctoral certificate. Dr. Liu also holds a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering from Zhejiang University. Dr. Liu has over 20 years’
experience in education, and has been an associate professor of
Zhejiang University since 1992. In 1995, he became head of the
National Key Laboratory of Modern Optical Instrumentation. In
addition, he is a director of a private company engaged in sales and
manufacturing of optical engines of projection displays. He has been
an independent non-executive Director since May 2007.

Mr. Zhang Yuqing (SRR ), aged 67, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Zhang worked in Shanghai Port Bureau as heads of the
financial division as well as the auditing division. He was appointed
as a director of Shanghai Worldbest Industry Development Co.,
Ltd. from 2001 to 2003 and acted as its chief financial officer. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Shanghai Maritime University in 1982 with a
bachelor’s degree in economics and is a senior accountant and a
non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He currently serves as an independent director of
Shandong Rihongxiang Co., Ltd. (L& BE¥EREHBER A R]) and
the chief financial officer of Shandong Saituo Bio-technology Co.,
Ltd. (UERBRAEYEHERRMDBRAF]). He has been an independent

non-executive Director since May 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard (RI§#), aged 69, is an independent
non-executive Director. He was a chief financial officer of AAC
Acoustic Technologies Holdings Inc. (“ACC”, a company listed in
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”),
stock code: 2018) during the period from April 2004 to November
2007. Before joining AAC, Mr. Chu held various management
positions, including chief financial officer, in Shanghai Viasystems
Electronic Manufacturing Service Company Limited, e-Millenium Two
Fund and Yunan Ximeliu Aluminium Foil Co. Ltd. Mr. Chu has over
20 years’ experience in finance. Mr. Chu holds a master’s degree
in science from the University of Houston-Clear Lake in the United
States. He has been an independent non-executive Director since
September 2010.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dong Kewu (E i), aged 46, is the Vice President of the
Company. He is responsible for human resource management of
the Group. Mr. Dong graduated from Fudan University in 2004
with a master’s degree in business administration and from Xidian
University in 1990 with a bachelor’s degree in computer and
application. Before joining the Company in February 2012, Mr.
Dong worked as a partner and consulting director in a renowned
consulting firm. Mr. Dong also obtained qualifications of economist
and engineer issued by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC and the
Planning Committee of Shandong Province.

Mr. Zhang Guoxian (5B E), aged 49, is the assistant of the President
of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Yuyao Huancheng
School in 1983 and joined the Group since his graduation. Mr.
Zhang attended the seminar of EMBA in Zhejiang University from
July 2004 to July 2005 and obtained the relevant completion
certificate. Prior to being appointed as the assistant of the President,
Mr.
standing deputy general manager and general manager of Sunny
Optics.

Zhang held positions including deputy general manager,
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Mr. Ma Jianfeng (5 #Z1&), aged 41, is the Chief Financial Officer and
Joint Company Secretary of the Group. He graduated from Xiamen
University in July 1995 with a bachelor’s degree in economics. He
is a certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is a qualified senior accountant in the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group in December 2010, he served as a chief
financial officer for Ningbo Bird Co., Ltd.

Ms. Wong Pui Ling (& ffl ¥), aged 33, is the Joint Company
Secretary, authorised representative and agent of the Company.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for company secretarial matters
and financial management. Ms. Wong joined the Group in 2007. Ms.
Wong has more than 10 years of experience in financial reporting,
accounting and auditing. Ms. Wong is a qualified accountant and
is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms.
Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a postgraduate diploma in
finance and law from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wu Jun ((2f&), aged 49, is a general manager of Sunny Optics
and the general manager of Shanghai Sunny Yangming Precision
Optics Co., Ltd. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Optics and Sunny Shanghai Optics. Mr. Wu graduated with
a bachelor’s degree in optical instruments from Shanghai Institute
of Mechanism in 1986. He later obtained a qualification as a senior
engineer in 1999 from the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang. Prior to
joining the Group in November 1997, Mr. Wu worked in Jiangxi
Optics Instrument General Factory for 10 years as a research officer
and a chief of quality control.

Mr. Liu Rui (88}), aged 47, is the general manager of Sunny Zhongshan.
He is fully responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Zhongshan. Mr. Liu graduated from University of West Sydney with
a master’s degree in business administration in 2005. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in chemistry engineering from Zhejiang University
in 1989. Prior to joining the Group in February 2006, Mr. Liu worked
in Olympus (Shenzhen) Industrial Ltd. as the planning manager.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chen Huiguang (PREFE), aged 51,
Sunny Infrared. He is responsible for the daily administration of

is a general manager of

Sunny Infrared. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in optical
instruments from Zhejiang University in 1983. He also obtained a
master’s degree in engineering from Zhejiang University in 1992.
Prior to joining the Group in 1999, Mr. Chen worked in Xintian

Precision and Optical Instrument Company Limited.

Mr. Guo Jingchao (¥85%d), aged 52, is the general manager of
Sunny Xinyang Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration
of Sunny Xinyang Optics. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor’s degree
from Changchun University of Science and Technology in 1986,
and a master’s degree in engineering management from Nanjing
University of Science and Technology in 2002. Prior to joining the
Group in February 2001, Mr. Guo worked in Costar Group. He
served as a deputy general manager in both Costar Group and Lida
Optical and Electronic Co., Ltd. In 1997, Mr. Guo was accredited as

a senior engineer by China North Industries Group Corporation.

Mr. Qiu Wenwei (R X&), aged 38, is a general manager of Sunny
Automotive. He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Automotive. Mr. Qiu joined Sunny Group in 1997. He engaged in
activities relating to R&D from 1997 to 2007 and served as head of
R&D department in 2006. He obtained a master’s degree in optical
engineering from Changchun University of Science and Technology
in July 2014.

Mr. Wang Zhongwei (T &£1&), aged 37, is a general manager of
Sunny Opotech. He is responsible for the daily administration
of Sunny Opotech. He obtained a master’s degree in optical
engineering from Changchun University of Science and Technology
in 2010. Mr. Wang joined Sunny Group in 2001 and served as
general manager in 2014. He held positions including deputy
manager of sales department and deputy general manager of
Sunny Opotech. He was awarded a honourable title of Municipal
Advanced Producer (Worker) (M #k 5t £E (T1E) &) by Yuyao
Municipal People’s Government in 2011 and a title of Outstanding
Entrepreneur of Ningbo City with Innovative Management (2 {8
FEREEEIF ) by Ningbo Entrepreneurs Association in 2014,
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Mr. Lou Guojun (l2BJE), aged 50, is a general manager of Sunny
Instruments and a general manager of Sunny Advanced Instruments.
He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny Instruments
and Sunny Advanced Instruments. Mr. Lou obtained a diploma
in business enterprise operation management from Zhejiang
Radio & TV University in 1999. He obtained a qualification of
senior economist issued by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang in
2008. Senior economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC
and is normally granted to a person who has passed necessary
examinations and has acquired substantial management experience.
Prior to joining the Group in November 2001, Mr. Lou worked in
Yuyao Optoelectronic.

Mr. Zhu Xingiang (R#154), aged 49, is a general manager of Sunny
Hengping. He is responsible for daily operational management of
Sunny Hengping. Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in optical
instrument from University of Shanghai for Science and Technology
in 1986 and a master’s degree in business administration from
East China University of Science and Technology in 2003. Prior to
joining the Group in November 2007, Mr. Zhu worked in Shanghai
Third Analytical Instrument Factory, Shanghai Analytical Instrument
Overall Factory and Sunny Hengping. He served as a deputy factory
manager of Shanghai Analytical Instrument Overall Factory and a
general manager of Sunny Hengping. Mr. Zhu was accredited as a
senior engineer by Shanghai Municipal Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau in 2012.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating good
corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to effectively promote
accountability and deliver maximum benefits to the shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company complied
with all code provisions and adopted most of the recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Corporate
Governance Code”) (applicable to financial reports covering the period
after 1 April 2012) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”). The corporate governance structure and practices of
the Company are summarised below.

THE BOARD
Board Functions

Being accountable to the shareholders, the Board is responsible
for facilitating the success of the Company by directing and guiding
its business and operational developments and operations in a
responsible and an effective manner. Board members have a duty to
act in good faith, with due diligence and care and in the best interests
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

While the management of business operations is supervised by the
executive Directors and has been delegated to the qualified members
of management. The types of decisions which are to be taken by the
Board include:

1. Setting the Company’s mission and values;

2. Formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategies; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate
performance;

4. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management and Board members;

5. Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and those
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems
for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law;
and

6. Performing the corporate governance function, being responsible
for the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and reviewing the corporate governance report.
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Board Composition

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the business of the issuer. The Board should ensure that changes
to its composition can be managed without undue disruption. The
Company is committed to the view that the Board should maintain
a balanced composition of executive and non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) so that the Board
has a strong independent element which steered the judgment of the
Board are made independently and objectively. The Board currently
comprises 7 Directors, including:

Name of Director

EEpns

EEZENE

EEARBETAERGATORERER A
BREFENENEEITEERT VRN XS
B - RRABRE EFENATEIFNTES
(BREBIIFNITESR) ABETE - BREFS
REBY  BNEFSFHBUTEAE -EF
SRFRTRESEK B

Executive Directors ${/TEZE
Mr. Ye Liaoning

RRERSE

Mr. Sun Yang

Bkt

Mr. Wang Wenjie

EXREE

Non-executive Director FEHTEE
Mr. Wang Wenjian
TXELAE

Independent non-executive Directors B FEHITEE
Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard kB 7R %t 4

Dr. Liu Xu 281§+

Mr. Zhang Yuqing R E 4 4

Each of the executive, non-executive, and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a continuous service contract with the
Company. The Company is committed to the view that the independent
non-executive Directors should be of sufficient caliber and number to
warrant their views are acknowledged. The independent non-executive
Directors, biographical details of whom are set out in the section
“Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual Report, are free
from any business or other relationships with the Group which could
interfere in any material manner with the exercise of their independent
judgment. The composition of the Board as at the date of this Annual
Report is set out in the section “Directors and Senior Management”
in this Annual Report and the term of appointments of the Directors
appointed during the year 2014 is set out in the section “Directors’
Service Contracts” in this Annual Report. None of the Directors has
any financial, business, family relationships or any relationships in other
material aspects with each other. Each of independent non-executive
Directors has given a written confirmation to the Company confirming
that he has met the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
regarding the guidelines for the assessment of independence of
Directors. The Company believes that the independent non-executive
Directors have all complied with the relevant guidelines as stipulated

in such rules and are still considered as independent.

W7 BT RBYFRTESTESEERARF
RIMFERBEH - RARIRE - BILFEATE
ENTHEABAERERE FHEERAPE
N BIAFFRTESTNEEINAFRIEFTR
BREEE] 8 RELESREFMAIREY
BEHTEBIABOARERGREMER - &
ZERAFHRAPONEREHNAFRIES
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal

The Company has implemented a set of formal, prudent and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new Directors to the
Board. The Company has also put in place plans for orderly succession
of the Board. All Directors are subject to re-election between regular
intervals in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Board
must explain the reasons for the resignation, re-designation or removal
of any Director.

Responsibilities of Directors

Every Director is aware that he should devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Directors are kept informed from time to time on the latest
development of any changes to the regulatory requirements and the
progress of compliance of applicable rules and regulations by the
Company. Our Directors are also be updated from time to time on the
business development and operation plans of the Company.

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of Corporate Governance
Code, the Company will arrange for, and provide fund for, all the
Directors to participate in continuous professional development
organised in the form of in-house training, seminars or other
appropriate courses to keep them refresh of their knowledge, skill and
understanding of the Group and its business or to update their skills
and knowledge on the latest development or changes in the relevant
statutes, the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction training
covering the statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company. Circulars or guidance notes are issued to Directors and
senior management, where appropriate, to ensure the awareness of
best corporate governance practices.

The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the
Company. During the year of 2014, they received a total of over
250 hours training, including internally-facilitated sessions as well as
external seminars/programmes on topics relevant to their duties as
Directors.
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To summarise, the Directors received trainings on the following areas
to enhance their skills and further their knowledge during the year:

BT BEFERNFARAESEIANERNE
PADNSR 182 55 B9 £ B M AN A -

Training area

=LKk

Corporate Business/
governance Regulatory Management
TEER BEE ¥% 8
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Ye Liaoning HEBLE v v Vv
Mr. Sun Yang HFoks v V vV
Mr. Wang Wenjie TEXAREE v v vV
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wang Wenjian TxERE v vV vV
Independent non-executive BIYEHITES
Directors
Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard KBSA T E v V Vv
Dr. Liu Xu ZeEL Vv Vv Vv
Mr. Zhang Yuging RARESTE v v Vv

Regarding the Listing Rules’ requirement for Directors to obtain
a general understanding of an issuer’s business and to follow up
anything that comes to their attention, it is considered that the current
arrangements for keeping the Board informed of the Company’s
business performance through regular presentations and/or reports
by management at Board meetings, and timely reports on urgent key
events at ad hoc Board meetings are effective, and have satisfied
the requirement. To improve on the existing practice, a monthly
management report, covering key business issues and the financial
performance of the Company, has been made available to Directors
on a monthly basis throughout the year.

BATHETHNESSESTIEHERR IR
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Ye Liaoning, being the Chairman of the Board, directs the
strategic growth and development of the Group, with responsibility
for reviewing implementation of communication with the media and
external parties. Mr. Sun Yang, being the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations
of the Group and the implementation of the Board’s policies and
decision, including execution of annual business plan and investment
plan. This segregation of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company aligns with the requirement under
the code provision A. 2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

There are 3 independent non-executive Directors in the Board, all
of whom possess adequate independence and therefore the Board
considers that the current structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of
business of the Group.

THE ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS OF
THE BOARD

Regular meetings of the Board were held. During the year, the Board
convened 5 meetings having considered the business developments
and needs of the Company. In addition, special meetings of the Board
would be held when necessary. Details of the Director’s attendance
record in full meetings of the Board are as follows:

TRERBME
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SREARERE

Name of Director

Full Meeting of the
Board of Directors
No. of Attendance
by Directors (Note)/
No. of Meetings

EESEeE

EEHERH

EEng (faE)EBARE
Mr. Wang Wenjian (Honorary Chairman) EXELA (FEFE) 5/5
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) HEELEE (FF) 5/5
Mr. Sun Yang RSt 5/5
Mr. Wang Wenijie FXREAE 5/5
Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard KU A 5/5
Dr. Liu Xu BeE L 5/5
Mr. Zhang Yuging RARBSE 4/5

Note: The meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not by an

alternate.

Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for regular
Board meetings. Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at
least 14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to all Directors,
ensuring that they are given an opportunity to attend. For all other
Board meetings, reasonable notice will be given.

During the year 2014, as part of the commitment to best practices, all
Directors attended electronic correspondences in respect of certain
business development of the Group. Such arrangement ensured fast
and timely provision of information to Directors from time to time to
supplement the formal Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established and delegated authorities and
responsibilities to four specific committees with written terms of
reference to assist it in performing its functions, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Strategy and Development Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference, the Nomination Committee comprises 3
members, namely, Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard and Dr. Liu Xu (both
are independent non-executive Directors) and Mr. Wang Wenjian
(non-executive Director).

The principal roles and functions performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year include:

ieE : BERHHRFHFESH  MAFMKREELE -

KEEEEERGRETH  ARATEXAEES
AIABIENEE - i% EREZNBEHIR
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HAEREERELE MABEHEMEZEEES

AgFHAERA -

R-F-—OFR EREAKEFRANELST
tF 2REEUAKEETERERETETR
Ao RLBRARNARIERBAEFRHEER
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a) Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

b) Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship according to
the stipulated nomination procedures;

c) Assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors with regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules;
and

d) Making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters related
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
plan for Directors.

Meeting of the Nomination Committee is held at least once a year.

2 meetings were held in 2014. The attendance of each Director at
Nomination Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

TRERBME

a) WIESECEE  AHRAS  UHTE
NAKIDEER - W EMEEL 2 #8Hn
EEgRmEE

b) MEARBABERAEITETENEZA
T UREENREEFHERZABAL
HEESSBEREETSREER

o MEBELMMRAUZBE  FFRBUIFATES
2B R

d REENBEEERURBFETAEZEH
EHREESROER -

REZEEEFHELETIREE T —N0NF
NBITT2R % SEEHFERETECSSE
RIFEERINT ¢

Nomination Committee
No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

REZEY
BEENR HERE (M) &ERE
Dr. Liu Xu (Chairman) BB (£E) 2/2
Mr. Wang Wenjian EXELRE 2/2
Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard KIEA T E 2/2

Note: The meeting was attended by the Directors themselves, not by an
alternate.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. From 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2014, the members of the Remuneration Committee were Mr. Chu
Peng Fei Richard, Dr. Liu Xu and Mr. Zhang Yuging (all are independent
non-executive Directors).

The principal roles and functions performed by of the Remuneration
Committee during the year include:

(@) Making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

(b) Approving the terms of Directors’ service contracts, determining
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management and making recommendations to the Board
of the remuneration of the non-executive Directors;

(c) Reviewing and approving remuneration by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d) Reviewing and approving the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their offices or appointments.

The meeting of the Remuneration Committee is held at least once
a year and otherwise required. 2 meetings were held in 2014.
The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
remunerations and bonus payable to executive Directors and senior
management for the financial year. The Remuneration Committee
chairman has reported to the Board on the proceedings of the
meeting. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments of 2014
are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. The
attendance of each Director at Remuneration Committee meeting is
as follows:

YMEES

RARIEKLEFMEES W EEMB SR
B-B-ET—NF—A—BE-Z—WF+=A
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Name of Director

TRERBME

Remuneration Committee
No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

FMEESHERE
BEsgR (HisE) ERRE
Mr. Zhang Yuging (Chairman) RRELE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard EN P 2/2
Dr. Liu Xu ZEEL 2/2
Note: The meeting was attended by the Directors themselves, not by an  [fit : EEHEGEEZSS  MIEARBELE -

alternate.

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference. The Group’s audited final results for the year ended 31
December 2014 were reviewed by all of the members of the Audit
Committee of the Board, namely, Mr. Zhang Yugqing, Dr. Liu Xu and Mr.
Chu Peng Fei Richard (all are independent non-executive Directors).

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed by the
management. The work done and findings of the Audit Committee have
been reported to the Board. During the year, the issues which were
brought to the attention of the management and the Board were not
material and therefore no discussion is required herein. Full minutes of
Audit Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary. Drafts
and final versions of minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are sent
to all members of the Audit Committee for their comments and record
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the meeting.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of external auditor, to discharge its duties.

The principal roles and functions performed by of the Audit Committee
include:

(@) Considering and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor,
and to approve their remuneration, and any question of their
resignation and dismissal;

(b) Reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements
of the Group together with the Company’s interim and annual
report;
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TRERBME

(c) Maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Group’s external
auditors;

(d) Reviewing the continuing connected transactions; and
(e) Overseeing the Group’s financial controls and internal controls.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, 2 Audit Committee meetings
were held. The Audit Committee reviewed the annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2013, external auditor’'s remuneration,
internal control system and interim report for the period ended 30
June 2014 at the relevant meetings and reached unanimous consent
to recommend the aforesaid be approved by the Board. The chairman
of the Audit Committee reported to the Board on the proceedings of
these meetings. The Board has not taken any view that deviated from
that of the Audit Committee.

Furthermore, another meeting was held on 9 March 2015 to review,
inter alia, the annual report and financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014, the report from external auditor
on the audit of the Group’s financial statements, the continued non-
exempt connected transactions, internal control system review and
the re-appointment of external auditor.

The attendance of each Director at Audit Committee meetings is as
follows:

Name of Director

() BEAKESNSZHBENEREEBE

(d) BHFEBERS R

() EEAREEZMIEIE A AREE -

BE_Z-NF+-_A=+t—HLFE BKZ
BEgBIT2REZ 8L ERZBECEM
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ITRER LA ERRFTREFRAESSFELRE
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o EREEE TR T -AF=ANBET
FHTRE®E M%B@ (A ak) AEEEE-
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BEEFTHRERREGQRMENT ¢

Audit Committee

No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

EREEEHERY
ESpE (MaE) EBRY
Mr. Zhang Yuging (Chairman) RRERE (/7)) 2/2
Dr. Liu Xu BB+ 2/2
Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard NP 2/2
Note: All the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not by an Bz . BEHEILEMESE  MIERAZSELE -

alternate.
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STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

The Company’s Strategy and Development Committee comprises
5 members, namely, Mr. Ye Liaoning, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr. Wang
Wenijie (all are executive Directors), Mr. Wang Wenjian (a non-executive
Director) and Dr. Liu Xu (an independent non-executive Director). The
primary duties of the Strategy and Development Committee are to
advise the Board on the Group’s strategy for business development
and future prospects in the international market for optical and optical-
related products. It is intended that members of this committee shall
consist of local and international experts in the optical industry and
other related industries.

Name of Director

TEERRE

KERBRREES

ARBNEHENERZEGHBRERTMAR

BRTERREEESL %’wﬁ&f‘ﬁi&fﬂ?‘if“:
£ FITEREINERENLBIUINTES
ZEEL - KA BERZESTIZAEHAEE
) 5 745 38 R SR IA % it B2 B ¢ B2 4 A E o O BB
MEARRAEFSRHER - ZEENKEREE
S KRB R R AT RNER

Strategy and Development
Committee

No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

KHRRBEREES
EEHR HERE (M), &FXE
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) BERBELLE (FE) 4/4
Mr. Sun Yang FRSHE 4/4
Mr. Wang Wenjie FXRFEE 4/4
Mr. Wang Wenjian T EESLAE 4/4
Dr. Liu Xu e L 3/4
Note: Al the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not by — MisE : BEEHHEBHEMESE  MIFRRBEELF -

an alternate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION {X& 5B

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for the corporate
governance functions on 22 December 2011 in compliance with the
code provision D.3 of the Corporate Governance Code which was
adopted on 1 April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the
corporate governance function, the Board shall be responsible for
developing, reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company; training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management; and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements of the Company.
The Board has performed the above-mentioned corporate governance
functions and this corporate governance report has been reviewed by
the Board in discharge of its corporate governance functions.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, and after having made specific
enquiry with regard to securities transactions by the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the required standards
set out in the Model Code regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s approval of appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT”) as the Company’s external
auditor for 2015. Their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this
Annual Report on pages 85 and 86. Details of the amount of auditors’
remuneration in 2014 are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Company has also paid fees amounting to HK$2.5
million to the auditor for audit service and review service as a reporting
accountant during the year. Besides, DTT also provided profits tax
filing services for listed company amounting to HK$29,800 to the
Company. Other than as disclosed above, DTT did not provide any
other services to the Group.

DTT will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at AGM of the
Company to be held on 15 May 2015. The re-appointment of DTT as
the external auditor of the Group has been recommended by the Audit
Committee and endorsed by the Board, subject to the shareholders’
approval in the forthcoming AGM.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
and preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries, in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014, the Directors have made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.
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Management has provided such explanation and information to the
Board as it would enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial and other information before the Board’s approval.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in this Annual Report.

The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extended to annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as
well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Group’s systems of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board, the Group’s internal
audit department and management reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
Audit Committee reviews the findings and opinions of the Group’s
internal audit department and management on the effectiveness of
the Company’s system of internal control, and reports to the Board
on such reviews. In respect of the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Board considered the internal control system is effective and
adequate. No significant areas of concern which might affect the
shareholders was identified. The effectiveness of the Audit Committee
itself is reviewed annually through a formal process which involves the
Company Secretary preparing an evaluation report on its effectiveness.
This is examined by both the internal and external auditors before
submitted to the Board for endorsement.
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TRERERE

The internal audit division of the Group should ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets. The main
functions of the internal audit division are to audit the operating
efficiencies of each of the operating units, to carry out audit upon
resignation of any key management personnel, to assist the Board
in reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group and to review internal control of business processes and project
based auditing (such as auditing of trade receivables and issuance
of commodities auditing report). Evaluation of the Group’s internal
controls covering financial, operational compliance controls and risk
management functions has been done on an ad hoc basis.

CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS REGARDING
PRICE SENSITIVE AND/OR INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has developed a system with established policies,
processes and procedures across all relevant segments and
departments for complying with the disclosure obligations regarding
price sensitive and/or inside information. The system continues to
be effective. Efforts to further enhance the system in the light of the
business operation, development of the Company and new regulations
and laws will continue.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Group is committed to creating two-way channels of communication
between senior management and investors, maintaining close relations
with all its shareholders through a variety of channels and promoting
understanding and exchange between investors and us. The Company
has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy to formalise and
facilitate the effective and healthy communication between the Company
and the shareholders and other stakeholders, which is available on
the website of the Group (http://www.sunnyoptical.com). Our main
communication channels with the shareholders include:
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Investors’ Meetings

Group meetings will be held by the Group with institutional investors
and analysts in respect of its annual results and interim results.
In addition, the Group’s senior executives and staff from investor
relationship department will hold regular meetings with institutional
investors and analysts and investors will be provided with the latest
information on the development of the Group, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

In 2014, the Group’s investor relationship team held various meetings
with the analysts and its investors, 2 results briefings, 1 reverse
roadshow, 5 non-deal roadshows, and participated in 27 investors’
forums and conferences.

General Meetings

The AGM is an important discussion platform for shareholders
to participate in, facilitating the communications between the
management of the Group and the shareholders. The AGM is held
once a year, being accessible to all shareholders. The Group’s senior
management members answer any questions shareholders have at
the meeting, being attended by the external auditors.

The attendance of each Director at the AGM held in 2014 is as follows:

Name of Director

Annual General Meeting
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by Directors (Note)/
No. of Meeting
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by Directors (Note)/
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Mr. Wang Wenjian (Honorary Chairman) TXERE (FEFE)
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) EEBELE (FE)

Mr. Sun Yang by

Mr. Wang Wenjie FMAREE

Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard RIS A

Dr. Liu Xu FEEL

Mr. Zhang Yuging RARBELE

Note: The meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not by an

alternate.
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Apart from AGM, any one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. One EGM in relation to the acquisition of the entire
equity interests in Sunny Group Limited was held on 22 September
2014. For details, please refer to the circular published on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Group’s website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) on 31 August 2014.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman lIslands Companies Law
or the Articles of Association. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene an EGM following
the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

All matters proposed to shareholders for approval shall be submitted
in separate resolutions and resolved by way of poll at the general
meeting. The procedures of conducting a poll will be explained in
details to shareholders prior to the voting, to ensure the shareholders
are familiar with such arrangement. Minutes of the meetings together
with the voting results will be published on the Group’s website.

The Group has also maintained the procedure for director nomination
by the shareholders, which has been published on the Group’s website
(http://www.sunnyoptical.com), to safeguard the interests of shareholders.
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Annual Reports, Interim Reports, Announcements
and Circulars

The Group issues its annual reports and interim reports after publishing
the annual results and the interim results in March and August every
year respectively, so as to periodically review the development of the
Group as well as to update its shareholders with its latest business
information and market trends. In addition, the Group will explain to
the shareholders through announcements regarding any major event
or price-sensitive information. For any matter requires the approval of
the shareholders, the Group will hold an extraordinary general meeting
according to the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
issue a circular prior to the specific date of the meeting, allowing the
shareholders to have sufficient time to learn more about the matters
for making voting decisions. All annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and circulars will be uploaded to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Group’s
website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com).

The Group’s Website

The Group’s website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) offers timely access
to the Group’s press releases and other business information. Through
its website, the Group provides shareholders with the electronic
version of the financial reports, the latest slides presented at investors’
conferences, as well as the up-to-date news about the Group’s business,
announcements and general information, etc. To make contributions to
environmental protection and maintain effective communication with
shareholders, the Group encourages all shareholders to browse the
Group’s information on the Group’s website.

Investor Contact and Inquiries

The Group has a dedicated team to maintain contact with investors and
handles shareholders’ inquiries to the Board. Should investors have any
inquiries, please contact the Group’s investor relationship department
(Tel: +86-574-6253 8091; +852-3568 7038; email: ir@sunnyoptical.
com).

On behalf of the Board
Ye Liaoning
Chairman

9 March 2015
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RS- HBRERRE
BACKGROUND

The Board of Sunny Optical recognises the importance of having a
good standard of corporate governance and maintaining an effective
corporate governance framework which will enhance the reputation of
the Group. It has also conduced to implement a full range of Corporate
Social Responsibilities (“CSR”) activities, taking our Environmental,
Our
strategy is to strengthen the infrastructure, internal engagements and

Social and Governance (“ESG”) standards to a higher level.

external partnership in order to create true and tangible values to our
stakeholders through our ESG programme.

As the first ESG Report published by the Company, this report is
a review of its performance in environment, social and governance
areas, which sets out the Company’s policies and practices in four
aspects namely environmental protection, working environment, supply
chain management, and community involvement for the period from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014. This report is designed to
allow shareholders, investors (including potential investors) and the
public to have a more comprehensive and profound understanding
of the Company’s corporate governance and culture. The Company
is willing to take more responsibilities for the society but with a view
to maintaining a balance between the shareholders’ interests and the
society’s benefits.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Environmental Policy

The Company pledges to uphold quality management and implement
policies for conserving resources and managing waste. The Company
has established the following policies in compliance with environmental
regulations:

1. During the stage of design, research and development,
environmental impact assessment for each material or
machinery is conducted prior to any purchase decision.
Accordingly, such impact assessment data is considered as
one of the key criteria for procurement decisions.
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During production, consumption, delivery and waste disposal,
the Company undertakes environmental protection measures
through technological enhancement, usage of recycling
materials and conservation of resources. Besides, minimum
environmental impact approach and systematic recycling
methods are employed to best protection to the environment
as well as the ecosystem.

The Company commits to fulfil and comply with national and
regional environmental protection regulations and establishes
self-regulating frameworks and standards accordingly.

Awareness for environmental protection of all employees is
enhanced through environmental protection activities, training
programme and promotion. The concept of “Reduce”, “Reuse”,
“Recycle” are strongly promoted. By promoting them, the
Company is striving to protect the environment as well as
contributing back to the society.

Top management of the Company act as a core in establishing
a well-defined structure and system for environmental
management by outlining corresponding responsibility, scope
and policy. Besides, this environmental protection policy is
always given first priority, overriding production needs wherever
necessary.

The Company always keeps track of the development of
international environmental protection legislation and ensures
its environmental policy is implemented not only to comply with
international standards, but also to ensure it is at the same
pace as worldwide counterparts.
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WORKING ENVIRONMENT

The Company believes that people are its most valuable asset. We
provide our staff with trainings and career development opportunities.
The Company strives to be a caring employer, encourages work-life
balance, and communicates with the staff to enhance their sense of
belonging and morale.

Employment Policy

Almost 99% of employees hired by the Group have been located in
the PRC. The Company strictly complies with the requirements of
the Labour Law of the PRC without violating the relevant rules and
regulations:

1. Workers’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are
made in accordance with the local minimum wage (or above);

2. Holidays and statutory paid leaves are compliant with the
requirements of the PRC;

3. The Company treats all the employees equally, and their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be affected
by their social identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality,
gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction and
marital status;

4. Integrated computation of working hours is implemented with
reference to the requirements of the Labour Law.

TFRE

ARRREATREMREENEE - HMIRE
TREBIMBEEREE - ARRABIRBE
DREE - WREFEGITHERLE  TEHETE
BAERE THRERMEAELR -

REBE

AEBEMEANESZETIONUNFE - A7
BRREENTESEENHRE - BERMREEL R
R

1. BITTE  MLEREBBIEEKREE
RETE (HER) XN

2. BHIMAE B H BT ERBERBTE

3. AAFFEHFEFLEL  THEINKR
Tk~ Bk BIEE MR REC FE T
A -~ BURIkA - BRRRERE FH M
FEEER 58 TTEE

4. SELHENBRETRAMETIRTIE
i o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Labour Standards

1. The Company hires employees who are eligible for hiring with
valid citizen identity card issued by the public security bureau
in strict compliance with the requirements of the Labour Law.

2. Employment by the Company is based on the principle of
fairness, openness and willingness, and the Company enters
into labour contracts for legal employments without acts of
forced labour.

The Company employs workers in strict compliance with the
requirements of the Labour Law without incidences of illegitimate
employment. The following procedures will be adopted in case any
incidence of illegitimate employment is discovered:

1. To confirm the existence of such illegitimate employments.

2. To timely investigate the reason and channel of illegitimate
employment, and to devise relevant measures of improvement
to prevent future occurrences.

3. To contact the relevant labour affairs authorities to assist in the
follow-up actions.

4. To terminate the employment, fully pay the labour remuneration
and make compensation in accordance with the relevant
requirements.
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EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Company has established a comprehensive training system and
mechanism to provide on-job teaching and training for its employees,
in order to enhance their knowledge and skills. The trainings mainly
consist of orientation training, on-job training and external training.
With further development of the Company, the establishment of the
training and development system for position qualification becomes more
important. Thus, the Company has newly issued “Administrative Measures
for Internal Tutors” to develop and build a team of internal tutors,
with an aim of facilitating the accumulating, sharing and transmitting
knowledge within the Company. In addition, the Company also issued
“Development Programme for R&D Technology Team” and “White
Paper on Employee Training and Development”, incorporating employee
training into the strategic development of the Company. From February
to December 2014, the Company has organised training camps for 265
frontline personnel engaged in production and manufacturing. A master
course of engineering hold by Zhejiang University for Sunny commenced
in November 2014, with 50 key R&D personnel enrolled. Part-time
courses for associate degree in electromechanics and bachelor degree
in mechanical engineering and automation hold by Ningbo University for
Sunny commenced in December 2014, with 100 key frontline personnel
enrolled.

Care and Assistance to Employee

The Company has shown its care to its employees through the
following ways, including but not limited to:

1. More investment in hardware, striving to improve the
accommodation conditions of the employees;

2. Lower requirements for applying for emergency assistance,
allowing more sick employees to receive assistance and
increasing the percentage of granting assistance;

3. Enhancing the cooperation between the Company and colleges,
to solve the difficulties in education arrangement for children of
employees from other provinces; and

4, Organising diversified cultural and recreational activities,
such as singing contests, badminton matches and
calligraphy and painting competitions; inviting arts team of
employees in Yuyao to perform; establishing the “Charity
Films Sharing Corner” and setting up the “Arts Team of Sunny
Employees”.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
Supplier Management

The Company requires all suppliers to provide hazardous substances
test reports issued by third party laboratory and carries out long-term
quality monitoring and regular reviews on all suppliers. In case there
is a significant change in suppliers, their qualifications or serious
quality issues, the Company may suspend delivery from the supplier in
question at any time and, if necessary, disqualify it to ensure promising
quality of our products.

Product Responsibility

The Company has adopted the following measures for enhancing
product safety and quality:

1. In order to reduce quality risks on our products at their initial
stage of mass production, the Company sets up a quality
control team and applies product tests in higher frequency
and of higher level at the initial stage of mass production. The
Company also follows up the quality of our products in real
time;

2. The Company develops special testing equipments to conduct
internal quality control on products;

3. The Company implements strict internal quality control process;
and
4. The Company complies with the Restriction of the Use of

Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (“RoHS”) and the halogen free standards issued by
the European Union in the process of its production.
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Customer Satisfaction Management

The Company endeavors to provide customers with satisfying products
and services by implementing the following measures:

1. The marketing staff of the Company will complete trail operation
and assessment of new project within 1 to 3 working days
upon receiving customer’s request of cooperation, and reply
to customers in time regarding projects not suitable for trail

operation;

2. The Company responds to customer complaints within 24
hours;

3. The Company will work out emergency measures within

1 working day upon being notified of customer’s product
abnormal issues, and prepare a corrective action report within
5 working days; and

4. The Company will conduct customer satisfaction research from
time to time to learn about customers’ satisfaction levels with
our products and services, thus enhancing our products and
service standard constantly.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTIES

Certain product designs and manufacturing processes used by
the Group are independently developed by the R&D personnel of
the Group. The Group relies on the regulations and rules such as
patents, copyrights, trademarks and Anti-Unfair Competition Law
and confidentiality regulations to guarantee its intellectual properties.
The Group has adopted preventions and entered into confidentiality
agreements with its senior management and key R&D staff, to protect
its intellectual properties. The Company reserves its right to claim
losses on revealing of its intellectual properties against offender for
violating the confidentiality agreement of the Company.
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ANTI-FRAUD

In order to strengthen its corporate governance and internal control,
to regulate its operation, to safeguard its shareholders’ lawful interest
and to promote the healthy and stable development of the Company,
the Company has established the Anti-fraud Regime in accordance
with the Basic Standards for Corporate Internal Control and taking into
account the actual situation of the Company, under which:

1. accepting kickbacks or bribes is not allowed;

2. transferring any transaction that the Company would be
benefited from under normal circumstances to others is not
allowed;

3. illegal occupation or misappropriation of the Company’s assets

is not allowed;

4, procuring the Company to pay for false transaction is not
allowed;
5. concealing on purpose or incorrectly reporting any transaction

is not allowed;

6. forging or counterfeiting account records or certificates, or
providing false financial reports is not allowed;

7. revealing any trade secret or secret technique of the Company
is not allowed;

8. abuse of duty by the executives or implementing or inspiring
others to implement activities such as purchase or investment
individually throughout the whole process for individual or small
group’s interest is not allowed;

9. other corrupt practices detrimental to the Company’s financial
benefit are not allowed;

10. the Company encourages its staff to report any behaviour
violating the Anti-fraud Regime, and established a standing
department of anti-fraud and set up a reporting hotline and an
email box;
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11.  all staff committing corrupt acts are subject to corresponding
financial and administrative punishment by the Company
and those contravening criminal laws will be sent to judicial
authorities.

During the reporting period, these regimes and systems fulfilled the
duties of monitoring and prevention over risk control and anti-fraud
management of the Company and its subsidiaries, and has not been
identified with any material weakness.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

As a global corporate citizen, the Company strives to improve
the society through community involvement. Apart from making
cash donations to charitable organizations, both management and
employees of the Company have been eager to take their own
initiatives in helping and supporting the local communities and
neighbors.

During the year 2014, the following activities have been organised and
carried out by the Company:

1. On 12 September 2014, Mr. Wang Wenijian, the Honorary
Chairman of the Company, made a donation of RMB2 million in
the name of himself to his alma mater, Yuyao High School, for
establishing its history hall. The Company has been adopting
“Supporting education is supporting the enterprises” as its key
development philosophy. Over the last more than 20 years,
scholarships have been granted to secondary schools and
colleges such as Zhejiang University and Changchun University
of Science and Technology. Such donation made by Mr. Wang
Wenijian, has expressed his gratitude to his alma mater and
represented the respect to education from the Company.

2. The Company took part in charitable activities actively and
supported the disadvantaged groups in the society and non-
governmental education organisations through donations to
Yuyao Charity Federation.

Going forward, the Company will continue to identify new opportunities
in promoting sustainability through its business operations, as well as
to strengthen our partnership with charities for the minority groups and
to nurture a culture of giving within the community.
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The Directors are pleased to present the 2014 Annual Report,
including the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 87.

The Directors recommend the declaration of a final dividend at the
rate of approximately RMB0.155 (equivalent to HK$0.190) per share
payable on 10 June 2015 to all persons registered as holders of shares
on 20 May 2015.

In order to be qualified for the dividend, the Register of Members will
be closed from 21 May 2015 to 27 May 2015, both days inclusive.
Shareholders should submit share certificates together with transfer
documents to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong on or before 4:30 p.m. on 20 May 2015.

In order to be qualified for attending the AGM to be held on 15 May
2015, the Register of Members will be closed from 12 May 2015 to
15 May 2015, both days inclusive. Shareholders should submit share
certificates together with transfer documents to the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong on or before 4:30 p.m.
on 11 May 2015.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Details of the Group’s transactions with its major suppliers and
customers during the year are set out below:

In 2014, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
14.4% (2013: approximately 20.5%) and the 5 largest suppliers
combined accounted for approximately 53.1% (2013: approximately
49.4%) of the total purchase of the Group.

In 2014, the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
15.9% (2013: approximately 17.4%) and the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were less than
55.0% of the total turnover of the Group in both of the years of 2013
and 2014.

At no time during the year did of the any Director, their associates, or
any shareholder of the Company have an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement of property, plant and equipment of the Group,
during the year in the fixed assets are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of change during the year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2014,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Law amounted to
approximately RMB2,875.1 million (2013: approximately RMB2,477.2
million) including share premium of approximately RMB873.0 million
and retained earnings of approximately RMB2,002.1 million.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning (re-elected on 13 May 2014)
Mr. Sun Yang
Mr. Wang Wenijie (re-elected on 13 May 2014)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Wenjian
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Peng Fei Richard
Dr. Liu Xu
Mr. Zhang Yugqing (re-elected on 13 May 2014)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at least one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company. A circular containing the explanatory statement
on repurchase by the Company of its shares, the biographical details
of the director candidates and the notice of AGM will be sent to
shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory compensation.

Directors’ Report

EEEWRE

XA B B9 ] 73K 1

ERSHEARVANE  AATIR=Z—NF+=A
=+ —HHRDIRFEEL A AKE2,875,100,0007T
(ZZT—=F: H9 5 ANR¥2,477,200,0007T) * £
TR EE X A A R#873,000,0007T &R B EF
#5 AR#2,002,100,0007T °

==

RAFERBERREARNARREENOT

HITES

ERmiet (W -_ZT-NERAF=H0ET)
EXREAE (R-ZE—NFRA+=HET)

FHITES
IXERE
BMFHTES

REERFEE
2L
RRELE (RZT-NFAA+=HEE)

REANRERAANGEN  EL=D2—BF
ARARAEERRBEFAS LRESE - #ER
ENAERAUMBESET - HABNARABE
Bl FHA KT EEREABEMBRBF
REBEHNBUEFTETARRBE

EERBEL

BREERRAFASLEREINESTTEA
BEARNRBIARER —F2RNEERE (EF
HYEEBRERRSN) BN T AR IERIRIBEA] -

/N
U/



/N

>/

Directors’ Report

EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN

EERE E?TBIAE}?E’EE’JH‘Q
g

E‘I
Fﬁ
)

SHARES

As of 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the RZ-=
Directors and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or of any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ"), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as

follows:

—OFE+-A=+—H8  REAQARE
HFRBME D ([FEFRREERD ) £362FE

MBS  HRBE LT ARNESETES

R HWRZEST AR E AN E AR ) MBS FTH)
EERTBETRABHAARNRASE (AR
B (E&REFLBEGRGIEXVED) BB - 48
Rl RIESFHEm SORR T

Approximate

Name of Long/short Capacity/nature Number percentage of
Name of Director Corporation position of interest of shares shareholding
Y EEERE BR /KR g5 EEME ROBE FHEREAEIL
Mr. Wang Wenjian The Company Long position Trustee and Beneficiary 421,460,060 38.42%
of a trust (Note 1)
FELE YN ) RFAARETIXEA
(PHEE1)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner 1,296,000 0.12%
(Note 2)
VNG 1B BEREAA (MiE2)
Mr. Ye Liaoning The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust 421,460,060 38.42%
(Note 3)
REELE PAN/NG] 1A EEXmA (MiEE3)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner 2,160,000 0.20%
(Note 4)
Vi N/NC| 1A BB A (Mizd)
Mr. Sun Yang The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust 421,460,060 38.42%
(Note 5)
by v PA/NG] 1A EAXaA (Mizs)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner 2,160,000 0.20%
(Note 6)
VNG 1B EREAA (MiE6)
Mr. Wang Wenijie The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust 421,460,060 38.42%
(Note 7)
EXAEE VN/NC iE EaXmA (HEE7)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner 1,338,000 0.12%

NG

8

(Note 8)
E=BEBA (K3E8)



Notes:

Mr. Wang Wenjian is one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust
(HK) Limited (formerly known as Equity Trust (HK) Limited)) and one
of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust. The
Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust is a trust on the entire issued
share capital of Sun Ji, which owned 92.32% equity interest in Sun
Xu, which in turn owns 38.42% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjian is deemed to be interested
in 421,460,060 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,296,000
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 7.39% of the beneficial
interest. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in
all the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns
under the SFO. Sun Ji owns 92.32% equity interest in Sun Xu, which
in turn owns 421,460,060 shares of the Company. As a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that
Sun Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed
to be interested in 421,460,060 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,160,000
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.40% of the beneficial
interests. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in
all the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns
under the SFO. Sun Ji owns 92.32% equity interest in Sun Xu, which
in turn owns 421,460,060 shares of the Company. As a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that
Sun Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to
be interested in 421,460,060 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,160,000
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.
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(7) Mr. Wang Wenijie is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 4.69% of the beneficial
interests. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in
all the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns
under the SFO. Sun Ji owns 92.32% equity interest in Sun Xu, which
in turn owns 421,460,060 shares of the Company. As a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that
Sun Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjie is deemed
to be interested in 421,460,060 shares under the SFO.

(8) Mr. Wang Wenijie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,338,000
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Director and chief
executive had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as of 31 December 2014,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 May 2007, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Company.
Eligible participants of Scheme include, without limitation, employees,
Directors and shareholders of the Group. Up to 31 December 2014, no
share option has been granted or agreed to be granted to any person
or exercised by any person under the Scheme.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 22 March 2010 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board has adopted the
Restricted Share Award Scheme, the Director, all employees, senior
staff, agents and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries are
entitled to participate in the scheme. The purpose of the scheme is
to assist the Company in attracting new talents as well as motivating
and retaining its current staff. The Restricted Share Award Scheme
shall be effective from the Adoption Date and shall continue in full force
and effect for a term of 10 years and be managed by its management
committee and the trustee. Details of the Restricted Share Award
Scheme could be found in the Note 37 of the consolidated financial
statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, details of movements of the
shares issued under the Restricted Share Award Scheme are as follows:

Number of shares
RH#8AE
Fair value Transfer-in/ Granted Vested Lapsed
of each 1 January (-out) during during during 31 December
Date of grant share (Note 1) 2014 (Note 2)  the period  the period  the period 2014  Vesting period
SRERHH K-Z-mE 8BE/(H) RZZ-mF
BFEH DM (HE1) -A-H (WdE2) RERELE REREE RERXN t-A=+-B BRES
HK$
B
7 May 2010 1.637 8,972,250 (3,354,500) - (5,100,750) (85,000) 432,000  From 6 May 2014
to 6 May 2015
—Z-Z “E-WERASHEE
T AtA ZZ-15RANA
14 March 2011 2.67 2,246,500 277,000 - (1,620,500) (60,000) 843,000  From 13 March 2014
to 13 March 2015
“E——F “IT-MEZA+ZHE
Z“A+mA “E-1F=-A1+=H
18 August 2011 1.64 2,504,750 33,750 - (1,759,250) (40,000) 739,250  From 17 August 2014
to 17 August 2015
—F——F ZE-WENATERE
NA+/\R ZZ-REN\ATtA
14 March 2012 2.7 3,136,000 408,750 - (1,328,250) - 2,216,500 13 March 2016
-2 ZE-rF-At+=H
=A+mA
17 August 2012 3.08 5,535,350 1,281,000 - (2,478,650) - 4,337,700  From 16 August 2015
to 16 August 2017
-z ZE-REN\A+RHE
NAt++H “E—+FNA1+NH
21 December 2012 5.12 90,000 - - (30,000 - 60,000 20 December 2016
-3 ZFAETIAZTR
tZAZ+-H
9 March 2013 8.10 2,352,000 453,000 - (716,250) (165,000) 1,928,750  From 8 March 2015
to 8 March 2017
= “Z-1%=A/\HE
=AhA —E-+E=A/\H
13 August 2013 8.69 5,618,000 176,500 - (1,748,629) (120,000 3,925,875 From 12 August 2016
to 12 August 2017
—2-=F “Z-"EN\A+t=HE
NAT=H ZE—tENATZH
22 QOctober 2013 7.97 120,000 (120,000) - - - - 21 October 2017
e ZE—tETAZT-H
TA=+=A
11 March 2014 7.19 - 844,500 2,784,000 - - 3,628,500 10 March 2018
—E-mE —Z-)\§=A+H
=
15 August 2014 9.74 - - 7,948,000 (495,600 - 7,452,400  From 14 August 2017
to 14 August 2018
—Z-mE ZEtEN\ATHAZE
NA+RA “Z-\ENA+WA
21 October 2014 12.46 - - 220,000 - - 220,000 20 October 2018
“E-MER “F-NE+A=TA
Zt+-H
30,574,850 - 10,952,000  (15,277,879) (470,000) 25,778,975
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Notes:

(1) The fair value of the shares was calculated based on the closing price
per share on the date of grant.

(2) As an internal policy of the Group, shares granted yet vested to
employees who are subsequently promoted remain unvested at the
year of promotion and will be carried over to the year subsequent of
his promotion.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

The Company is empowered by the applicable Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of the Association to repurchase
its own shares subject to certain restrictions and the Board may only
exercise this power on behalf of the Company subject to any applicable
requirements imposed from time to time by the Stock Exchange. There
was no purchase, sale, redemption or writing-off by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the exception of purchases by the trustee of
the Restricted Share Award Scheme, of the Company’s listed shares
during the year ended as of 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions” of this
Report below, no significant contract, to which the Company, its
holding company, its controlling shareholder, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No management contract in force during the year for the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Group’s
business subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

B aE

(1) BREHAAEDHRENET BBSRBREGHIK
AEE -

@ REAEERABES SETES (LEE
B BHRBBOBRE - BRERFERE
MARE  EHEHEREA GO TR -

B EXPREES - RARHEWMB AR RHAR
WES MR EFEFRFEEFSTANEBX
RM18ER Y T 2 Al B B U AN A R SR B A&
[ 0 B £ 3 (B 55 T B ERR 2

BE - HENEERAXQTKRSG

RIFEANHSHEARDEMERMAA  AAF
AEETRHTERERTRD  HEEEERE
RRABITEZERNE - LA A BT
BRENEMEARE RBEE-_FT—HF+_-A
=t HLEFE ARFHEEMHBELR (F
R REABXEAMBERIN) HER
B hE  BESMEEARER EmARD

EERNEASHER

BRAHRE TX [BHERXS] —fmEEEIN - K
NE > HEEAR - ZERERR  ARMBRF%
B 8 2 B3 B O N A 4 I S IR ART B R AT 21T
AREYMEERNED (THERXHEER BEE
RAZEOEREH ©

BEEHN

VTEAHEEREEAREZRMEBHEMEXN
EE D AR A FFIE K EFAEREREDRER
WIRITEREH -



DISCLOSURE OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS
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As of 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors are aware of, the
following persons or institutions have beneficial interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, or who is directly and/or indirectly interested in 10% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to

vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member

of the Group:

RZE—NF+—A=+—RH RESHM - T
ATHWERBRIEBBENBEEZFSFR
HEIRBIEXVER L2 RID ERE AR A A H &
B fR] AR A RAR 19 Sk AR EE AR (9 7R B B a7 2 2%
B REER SHEEREEURTABER TER
SETREMKERARBREASREMNEAER
B AT E10% 8k LA EHE S ¢

Long/short/ Approximate
lending pool Number of percentage of
Name position Type of interest Share shareholding
BE/ KR/
=1 AEEHARE  ERER BROHE - HRESEIL
Sun Xu Limited (“Sun Xu”) Long position Beneficial owner 421,460,060 38.42%
FEMRAERRA ([52E]1) e ERBEAA
Sun Ji Limited (“Sun Ji”) Long position Interest in a controlled corporation 421,460,060 38.42%
(Note 1)
REARAA ([#2E]) e R EEER (M)
Mr. Wang Wenjian Long position Beneficial owner (Note 2) 1,296,000 0.12%
IXERSE e EnEAA (M2)
Long position Interest in a controlled corporation, 421,460,060 38.42%
and trustee and one of
beneficiaries of a trust (Note 3)
e RIEFEEZRRFIARET—F
ErERam A (M)
TMF Trust (HK) Limited Long position Trustee of a trust (Note 4) 421,460,060 38.42%
ERERRY (BE) BRAR R EREXFEA (MiFE4)
Mr. Ye Liaoning Long position Beneficial owner (Note 5) 2,160,000 0.20%
REERE e ERBAA (MEs)
Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 6) 421,460,060 38.42%
e FrEX@A (M56)
Mr. Sun Yang Long position Beneficial owner (Note 7) 2,160,000 0.20%
FrisE ) BEREAA (M3E7)
LLong position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 8) 421,460,060 38.42%
R FaXmA (M)
Mr. Wang Wenjie Long position Beneficial owner (Note 9) 1,338,000 0.12%
EXREE e EnEAA (M)
Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 10) 421,460,060 38.42%
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Long/short/ Approximate
lending pool Number of percentage of
Name position Type of interest Share shareholding
e/ %E/
% AHREHARE  ERER BHEE FREAES
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.  Long position Beneficial owner 55,454,000 5.05%
and its affiliates
T.Rowe Price Associates, Inc.  #f& E=EBA
K EEE AT
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Long position Beneficial owner, investment manager 54,891,836 5.00%
and custodian cooperation (Note 11)
) ERAA  RELBRREANEE
(P5E11)
Short position Beneficial owner (Note 11) 813,000 0.07%
wE BEaEAA (BE11)
Lending pool Custodian cooperation (Note 11) 50,199,636 4.57%

Notes:

AELORD REAEE (HE11)

As Sun Ji owns more than one-third of the voting power of general
meetings of Sun Xu, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in the
421,460,060 shares held by Sun Xu under the provisions of SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,296,000
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

As Mr. Wang Wenijian is the sole shareholder of Sun Guang Limited and
one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust (HK) Limited) and one
of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust, Mr.
Wang Wenjian is deemed to be interested in the 421,460,060 shares
held by Sun Xu under the provisions of SFO.

As TMF Trust (HK) Limited is one of the two trustees (together with Mr.
Wang Wenijian) of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust, TMF Trust
(HK) Limited is deemed to be interested in the 421,460,060 shares held
by Sun Xu under the provisions of SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,160,000
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

fo3E

(1) HREEREBB=22 MR BRERTE
=i AR RBEBERBEEN  RERES
REENBFTH 421,460,060 A% 15 R R B AEZS ©

©2) T X E kAR BER AW B RIBIE 2R $I 5
5 B2 B =+ 2 9% 1 #91,296,0000% f% 17 /0 #E & 1

><
fm ©

3) AR EXELREAERLHR DR —REKE
EEBELERE (B8) BRARARTFEERE
BEIMEEHMUSTARER 2 — FAZE
AMEHmAZ— B RIEES RBEEG -
T E S E AR AR JEBFTIF421,460,060 4% %
DR E R -

(4) HREBERARE (FHB) ERATERIX
Bt ARTEERBBIMETHNMAIZIIA
Hpz— BHBEZIHFMBEKEN 8
L ERTS (FB) AR QA BIWR AR 5B
421,460,0600% A% {7 A 1S o

(5) REEREERAE AR RRRIEZ R I
17 22 B &1 3 4% 1 #92,160,000% i 17 7 7 5 #
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Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 7.39% of the beneficial
interest. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in
all the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns
under the SFO. Sun Ji owns 92.32% equity interest in Sun Xu, which
in turn owns 421,460,060 shares of the Company. As a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that
Sun Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed
to be interested in 421,460,060 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,160,000
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.40% of the beneficial
interests. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in
all the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns
under the SFO. Sun Ji owns 92.32% equity interest in Sun Xu, which
in turn owns 421,460,060 shares of the Company. As a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that
Sun Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to
be interested in 421,460,060 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenijie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,338,000
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 4.69% of the beneficial
interests. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in
all the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns
under the SFO. Sun Ji owns 92.32% equity interest in Sun Xu, which
in turn owns 421,460,060 shares of the Company. As a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that
Sun Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijie is deemed
to be interested in 421,460,060 shares under the SFO.

JPMorgan Chase & Co., through various subsidiaries, had an interest
in the shares of the Company, of which 2,590,300 shares (long
position) and 813,000 shares (short position) were held in its capacity
as beneficial owner, 2,102,000 shares (long position) were held in its
capacity as investment manager and 50,199,536 shares (long position)
were held in its capacity as custodian cooperation. These 54,891,836
shares (long position) included the interests held in its capacity as
beneficial owner, investment manager and custodian corporation.

(10)

(1)
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Definition of terms:

- “TMF Trust (HK) Limited” refers to the additional trustee of the
Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust appointed pursuant to
the Deed of Appointment of Additional Trustee dated 2 July
2011; and

- “Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust” refers to a trust
established on 28 July 2006 on the entire issued share capital
of Sun Ji

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2014, none of the
shareholder of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules which are required
to be disclosed in this report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has carried out
certain business transaction with the following connected companies
and entities:

° As the Company announced on 21 December 2012, Sunny
Hengping, Sunny Instruments, Sunny Opotech, Sunny Infrared,
Sunny Optics, Sunny Automotive and Suzhou Shun Xin
Instruments leased certain facilities and properties for general
business and ancillary uses from Sunny Group Limited (“Sunny
Group”) pursuant to the tenancy renewal agreements entered
on 21 December 2012 (the “Tenancy Renewal Agreements”) for
a term of three years from 1 January 2013 and to 31 December
2015 amounting to annual rent of approximately RMB4.5 million
in aggregate.

ARBER ¢

- [ERELRS (B%8) BRAA] BRE
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° Following the Acquisition (defined hereinafter), the Tenancy
Renewal Agreements were terminated on 30 September
2014. The total amount paid to the Sunny Group during the
year ended 31 December 2014 under the Tenancy Renewal
Agreements amounted to approximately RMB3.3 million which

did not exceed the annual cap of RMB5.0 million.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the above continuing connected transaction was entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(if) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than those available to or from independent third
parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The transactions are defined by the Listing Rules as “continuing
connected transactions” and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements. The transactions have complied
the reporting and announcement requirements set out in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
of the Company has issued an unqualified letter containing findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in the paragraph above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As the Company announced on 15 August 2014 and further reported
in a circular dated 31 August 2014 (the “Announcements”), the Group
acquired the entire equity interests in the Sunny Group from its 25
registered holders of the equity interests (the “Equity Interests”), who
acting on behalf of the employees or ex-employees of Sunny Group
or its subsidiaries having beneficial interests in the registered capital
of Sunny Group, pursuant to a conditional agreement dated on 15
August 2014 at a consideration of approximately RMB351.4 million
(the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition is a good opportunity for the Group,
among others, to expand its productions facilities and to eliminate
continuing connected transactions, thereby enhancing the overall
effectiveness of the Group. For details of the purpose and benefits of
the Acquisition, please refer to the Announcements. On 22 September
2014, an ordinary resolution to approve the Acquisition was duly
passed by the relevant independent shareholders of the Company by
way of poll at an extraordinary general meeting held on the even date.

Sunny Group is principally engaged in investment holding and property
leasing, and is owned as to 100% by the Group since the completion
of the Acquisition on 26 September 2014.

The Acquisition is defined by the Listing Rules as “connected
transaction” and is subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements set out in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Acquisition has complied the above
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED PERSONS

Mr. Wang Wenjian is a non-executive Director and the honorary
chairman of the Company and is therefore a connected person of
the Company. Since Mr. Wang is able to control more than 30%
of the equity interests in Sunny Group, Sunny Group is hence the
associate of Mr. Wang and a connected person of the Company. The
transactions contemplated under the Tenancy Renewal Agreements
in December 2012 and the Acquisition therefore constitute connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the defined the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions of
the Group. The auditor has reported the factual findings on these
procedures to the Board. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and the report
of the auditor and have confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into by the Company in the ordinary course of its business
and in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

No Directors or chief executive of the Company holds any interests in
entities which compete with the Group in any aspects of its business.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and
motivate talented individuals to contribute to the success of the
business. The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regards to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme
under rules and regulations of MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged to
consolidated income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years as of 31 December 2014.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the applicable
regulations of the PRC, participated in a state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the local government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll costs
to the retirement benefits schemes. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group to the
schemes and costs charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contribution payable to the schemes by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within knowledge of its Directors at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of the annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet date are
set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors
Ye Liaoning
Chairman

Hong Kong
9 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY (GROUP) COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sunny
Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
87 to 214, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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B TR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and
of the its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with HKFRSs and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

9 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HfezmEaE =

él‘vj_A =\/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #% — &

—mEFZA=1—HILFE

2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Fff 5 AR®T T AREET T
Revenue YA 5 8,426,458 5,812,771
Cost of sales $H& KA (7,137,040) (4,845,690)
Gross profit FEF 1,289,418 967,081
Other income HAth Uiz 6(a) 81,226 49,364
Other gains and losses £ fi U5 X 518 6(b) (11,548) 392
Selling and distribution expenses 4% X 7 #4552 (89,324) (87,864)
Research and development expenditure fiff 2% 5 3% (392,271) (251,041)
Administrative expenses 1T % (230,722) (166,258)
Share of results of associates 7 {HEE % N &K 345 16 1,209 (590)
Finance costs @i & XA 7 (13,981) (6,595)
Profit before tax B 51 s £ 634,007 504,489
Income tax expense FTE#:5 X 8 (72,739) (63,623)
Profit for the year & &7l 9 561,268 440,866
Other comprehensive expense Hth 2 HBH X
Items that may be classified subsequent to profit or loss:
R 72 EmfEE -
Exchange differences arising on translation from foreign operations
MESINEFESNER 28 (871) (1,416)
Total comprehensive income for the year F A2 W48 560,397 439,450
Profit for the year attributable to: {54 R F|
Owners of the Company A2 A% E 566,096 440,498
Non-controlling interests FEFEA% #E %5 (4,828) 368
561,268 440,866
Total comprehensive income (expense) attributed to:
FERE2EkE () 858
Owners of the Company A2 alf% & 565,663 439,561
Non-controlling interests FE#E A% ## 2 (5,266) (111)
560,397 439,450
Earnings per share - Basic (RMB cents) Fix&F] —&EAKR (ARESD 11 52.91 44.30
- Diluted (RMB cents) -8 (ARE%H 11 52.43 43.53
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 R=F—pF+=-HA=+—H

2014 2013
= .k —E=F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=s AR®T T AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ #HiE8&E
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - # 23 & 3% & 13 1,035,159 784,656
Prepaid lease payments B FH & 14 116,223 22,808
Intangible assets 2 & & 15 15 27
Interests in associates FABf & N B HYE S 16 62,531 392
Deferred tax assets #E I & & 17 5,417 3,745
Deposits for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
WHEMIZE - R RRERIRS 18 87,613 74,204
Available-for-sale investments AJ & H &% & 19 52,279 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of a land use right
MUE LI E AR MRS 21 27,033 -
Derivative financial assets T4 ¢ B & & 24(a) 3,176 -
Other receivable HE i f& Y5118 21 - 13,000
1,389,446 898,832
CURRENT ASSETS HE8&E
Inventories 7 & 20 895,693 767,915
Trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 I E At JE WO IE TR FRIE 21 2,388,469 1,171,802
Entrusted loan receivables Z =t & 2 e W 5018 22 - 20,000
Prepaid lease payments T8I & 14 3,337 642
Derivative financial assets $74 & gl & & 24(a) 5,307 -
Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss
RAREGFABRNEREE 24(b) 374,946 983,000
Amounts due from related parties & #iE A 78 35(c) 474 270
Tax recoverable 7] U @18 7,175 =
Pledged bank deposits 2 ER1T1ER 23 4,392 113,750
Short term fixed deposits 52 8 F B 7F & 23 20,000 =
Bank balances and cash $R174&5 8 MR & 23 504,600 709,037
4,204,393 3,766,416
CURRENT LIABILITIES #iE & &
Trade and other payables & 5 & £ fth f& < 78 25 1,744,472 1,257,179
Amounts due to related parties &8 A+ 718 35(c) 3,010 3,044
Amount due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
JE AT 8 1 B FE PR AR 2R R IR 26 - 232
Derivative financial liabilities {74 4 @ & & 24(a) 8,479 -
Tax payable JE{F#{1B 8,155 21,822
Borrowings & & 27 521,571 488,929
Deferred income — current portion #EIEUT A — BNEAEE 5 36 11,105 10,740
2,296,792 1,781,946
NET CURRENT ASSETS REIEEFE 1,907,601 1,984,470
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES @ EERAEBEE 3,297,047 2,883,302




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 R—Z—py#+—-F=+—H

2014 2013
= Lk —E—=F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARE T ARBFIT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES R8I A E
Deferred tax liabilities BRI A & 17 10,787 5,595
Derivative financial liabilities $74 & &l & & 24(a) 2,905 =
Other payable Hfth /& {~ FA 25 9,537 =
Deferred income — non-current portion & E Y A — FEENEAEE 5 36 23,228 17,822
46,457 23,417
NET ASSETS B & FE& 3,250,590 2,859,885

CAPITAL AND RESERVES R 1%

Share capital %7 28 105,177 105,177
Reserves f# & 3,142,520 2,744,628
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 72 &) I 5 B (5 #E 25 3,247,697 2,849,805
Non-controlling interests FE{2 I 4 5 2,893 10,080
TOTAL EQUITY #EZ4%5 3,250,590 2,859,885

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 214 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9
March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

YE Liaoning
B
CHAIRMAN
FE

HNESTEF2IAB 2R BRRELEETET RN
TE-RFE=AABMERKFETNZE  XHT

EERRRE

SUN Yang
DIRECTOR
BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEER

#E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRARREE
Shares held Share
Statutory Discretionary under share award Non-
Share Share Special surplus surplus Other award scheme Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves sc%igg reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
N iz Bfs LBl ROR . ‘ .
BE  RGEE  KAEE  BEGE BRRE  BMRE  KEDRG  SHER  RERE  REEA &3 FERER @zt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note ag (Note bg (Note b) (Note c}
(Fiita (Bzkb (o) (Wse
!E\Ateﬂf Decegber%W? 97,520 510,310 152,191 31,008 916 123,460 (75,729) 14,673 2716 1064596 1,921,656 10,191 1,931,847
Profit for the year & R - - - - - - - - - 440,498 440,498 368 440,866
Exchange differences arising
on translation
AEREENELZE - - - - - - - - (937) - (937) (479) (1,416)
Total comprehensive income
for the year
FREEREER - - - - - - - - (937) 440498 439,561 (1) 439450
Shares issued BE77RA 7657 600,463 - - - - - - - - 608,120 - 608,120
Purchase of shares under share
award scheme
RERN R EEERR - - - - - - (53,011) = = = (53,011) - (53,011)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
BANEREER N ANFA = = = = - - - 30,843 - - 30,843 - 30,843
Shares vested under share
award scheme
RERH REESRORG - - - - - - B4 (2293 - (2,790) - - -
Dividends paid (Note 10)
BfIRE Fwam) - (105,000 - - - - - - - - (105,000 - (105,000
Dividends received under share
award scheme
RBRN RRA EURORE - - - - - - - - - 7,63 763 - 7,636
Appropriation & - - - - - 38,522 - - = (38522) = = =
At 31 December 2013
AZE-=F12R=1- 105,177 1,005,773 152,191 31,008 916 161,982 (103,016) 22,582 1,779 1,471,418 2,849,805 10,080 2,859,885
Profit for the year A&7 = = = - - - - - - 566,096 566,096 (4,828) 561,268
Exchange differences arising
on ranslation
BEREENENER - - - - - - - - (433) - (433) (438) (871)
Total comprehensive income
for the year
EnZESREE = = - - - - - - (433) 566,096 565,663 (5,266) 560,397
Purchase of shares under share
award scheme
BEROREEBERD - - - - - - (79,480) - - - (79,480) - (79,480)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
BN EREERAHITE - - - - - - - 40,420 - - 40,420 - 40,420
Shares vested under share
award scheme
RERNRB:EISENRD - - - - - - 43175 (40,09) - (2,237) - - -
Acquisition of
non-controlling interests
WiEELRER - - an - - - - - - - an (1,921) (1,544)
Dividends paid (Note 10)
BfiRE meo) - (182737) - - - - - - - - (182737) - (1273
Dividends received under share
award scheme
RN RRERERE - - - - - - - - - 3,649 3,649 - 3,649
Appropriation Z - - - - - 36,857 - - - (36,857) - - -
At 31 December 2014
RZE-RET=A=1-H 105,177 873,036 152,568 31,008 916 198,839 (139,321) 22,064 1,346 2,002,069 3,247,697 2,893 3,250,590




Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEERBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

The amount recorded in the special reserve was resulted from:

(i) the capital contribution by/distribution to Sunny Group Limited
(“Sunny Group”) in relation to the acquisitions/disposals of
equity interests in subsidiaries;

(if) the difference between the net carrying amounts of equity
interests in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the shares of
their respective holding companies arisen in share exchange
transactions during the group reorganisation; and

(iii) the amount of non-controlling interests being adjusted in respect

of acquisition of additional interests in Sunny Instruments

Singapore Pte. Ltd; and

(iv) the amount of non-controlling interests being adjusted in

respect of deemed disposal of partial interest in Shanghai

Sunny Hengping Scientific Instrument Co., Ltd.

The statutory surplus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve are non-
distributable and the transfer to these reserves is determined by the
board of directors of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for
previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company. Discretionary surplus reserve can be used
to expand the existing operations of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserves represent enterprise expansion fund and reserve fund.
These reserves are non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves
are determined by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Other reserves can be
used to make up for previous year’s losses or convert into additional
capital of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

)
>/

2014 2013
—Z2-NF —T—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥TFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES & & E &)
Profit before tax B& T Al i 7 634,007 504,489
Adjustments for: A% :
Share of results of associates 7 {5E& R ) ¥4 (1,209) 590
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)3 « #22 LR EITE 214,707 147,324
Unrealised losses on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments
PTEERAARAEZENARES EE 2,901 —
Release of prepaid lease payments J& {0 & fi# & 1,452 642
Amortisation of intangible assets %2 & & # £ 12 12
Written off on damaged inventories #5188k 7 & - 45,249
Written off on damaged property, plant and equipment
WEHIER Y - MR RRE - 2,529
(Reversal on overprovision for) provision for repair expenses on property,
plant and equipment arising from flooding accident in Yuyao City
Hk AN EREE 2 W BERREREXH 2 BE (BOBEEEE) (4,650) 25,842
Allowance for (reversal of allowance for) inventories 77 S8 (BB ) 5,535 (1,896)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts R ik # {5
— trade receivables — & 5 JE W 18 2,401 1,838
— other receivables — E fth fEUZ 5k 1E - 14
— amount due from an associate — EEE & A 7] ZIB - 3,087
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment & - #22 K REKRZ (2,541) (1,805)
Expense recognised in respect of share award scheme
SRR 17 B2 BT & i #ERR 2 2 40,420 30,843
Release of deferred income &Y A iR (9,735) (10,769)
Bank interest income $R17F B U A (1,664) (1,572)
Interest income from short term fixed deposits 58 Hi7F HA7F Z A B U A (222) (330)
Interest income from pledged bank deposits 2 3R R 1777 Z A B U A (7,659) (1,709)
Interest income from financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss
REBRAREFABRNEREENMEUWA (31,329) (10,525)
Interest income from entrusted loans & L& Z A B U A (8,845) (3,366)
Finance costs Bh& k28 13,981 6,595
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
HEEFPAINKERERE 847,562 737,082
Increase in inventories I &N (133,313) (89,437)
Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 N Ho b JE W R TE K TR A SRIE I AN (1,198,292) (272,608)

Increase in amounts due from related parties &4k #8388 A L R IEIE 1N (204) (76)

Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K H {th f& < ZRIE L Hn 375,985 317,852
Increase in deferred income #EIE UL A IE H1 15,506 26,862

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to related parties
FERTREEATRIE OFd) &N (34) 151

Cash (used in) generated from operations &< &5 8) (FTH) SRS (92,790) 719,828
Income taxes paid B 1 Fr15Fi 78 (90,061) (51,995)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

ReEES (FTA) ERSFE (182,851) 667,833




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AeRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #Z= —ZF—F+=-H=+—HIFF/Z

2014 20183
—Z2-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥TFTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES & ;E5
Refund of other receivable & [B] H fib & U 18 13,000 =
Placement of short term fixed deposits 1752 8 & i1 X (670,033) (10,000)
Withdrawal of short term fixed deposits $2EE 8 F BA7F =X 650,033 10,000
Deposits paid for acquisition of a land use right Ft4EE + i BIES N 2 184 (27,033) -
Advance of entrusted loan receivables Z& T & 7 & W IE £ 31 (270,000) (20,000)
Receipt of entrusted loan receivables U ER Z +F & 2 FE U 7118 290,000 90,000
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE %3 « #22 KR (274,406) (244,340)
Placement of pledged bank deposits 152 IR1T1F K (251,892) (296,750)
Release of pledged bank deposits ik 2 IR IE 1T K 361,250 183,240
Purchases of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit and loss
WA B ABRNSREE (9,776,714) (5,413,718)
Release of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit and loss
RRRAREFABRN SR 10,550,568 4,711,491
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
BB  BRIEREIN2ES (81,089) (74,204)
Receipt of interest arising from financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss
WEIE A Bt ABR R SR EEE LTS 31,329 10,525
Receipt of interest arising from pledged bank deposits
WHR B IR IRITERE £ RIS 7,659 1,709
Receipt of interest arising from short term fixed deposits 4 ER 52 B 75 BiTE 70 E A B 7 &2 222 330
Receipt of bank interest YEUER 77 F & 1,664 1,572
Receipt of interest arising from entrusted loans Y EXE st & X E A B 7 B 8,845 3,366
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEWE - W RRETEHIA 7,788 7,698
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments U i& a] it H &% & (52,194) =
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of a subsidiary Y& B A Al FEIERL RS (1,544) =
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y& M B A 7] (348,025) =
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
RETEHRE (A) RAEFHE 169,428 (1,039,081)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EE
Interest paid 2~ Fl &2 (13,981) (6,595)
Dividends paid E{J % & (132,737) (105,000)
New bank borrowings raised #T1&R1T{EE 910,089 1,088,379
Repayment of borrowings & EE (877,447) (702,092)
Proceeds from issue of shares Z1TA% 7 F 13 718 - 617,169
Expenses on issue of shares 277 /%15 Fi X2 - (9,049)
Dividends received under share award scheme R4 A% 7 58 Eh 51 2 U B A9 A% B, 3,649 7,636
Purchase of shares under share award scheme 1815 M {7 22 Eh=t 2 & & A% (7 (79,480) (53,011)
Advance from non-controlling interest of a subsidiary Ff B A 7 JE#2 Bk 4 25 4 3% - 232
Repayment of the advance from non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
EEM B R R IR R 2K (232) (147)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
MEEH (TA) FEREFH (190,139) 837,522
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

2014 2013
—E2-OF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REeERBREEEEE OAY) ©MER (203,562) 466,274
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY
R—A—HWEERESEHEER 709,037 243,442
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
EXSFHNTE (875) (679)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,
R+-—B=+—HWRERELZEEER -
represented by bank balances and cash Bl$R 174584 IR & 504,600 709,037




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
September 2006 as an exempted company under the Companies
Law Chapter 21 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 15 June 2007. Its
ultimate holding and parent company is Sun Xu Limited, a private
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Wang Wenjian, also a Director of
the Company. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is principally engaged
in the business of designing, researching and developing,
manufacturing and selling of optical and optical related products
and scientific instruments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

1. B

RABIRZZEZERNFARAZT—AERSE
ERBEAEHERNREF2IE (—hAK—F
FERRN - EERE RIBE]) MK AE
Hena o ERmhEe —ZETZ+EFATHAE
REBBHERSMERAF LT - KK
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MIABRAGZBERAR @ E&xE&ER
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AlEEM B R B B A it TR
HARER —HHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #2 —F—/1F 1+ =-A=+—HIFF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FE A #:
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING e

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) Al [)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) ERFAIRKEITEEAMBRE
5
The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs RAFE  AEEHAEMBEBS
issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current year: B AZRMGE TR RIS BB

B

EEMBREENEI0% . REER
BAMBREENF12%

Amendments to Investment Entities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27 REAGHERIETH
(B3T%)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and BAQHENER BHEeREER
Financial Liabilities (fB3IA) TREE

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for BEREHENE6HR FeREEL
Non-Financial Assets ({E5TA) e S ERE

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and BAGIERIE395 TETACEER
Continuation of Hedge Accounting ({BFT%) heiti e

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21

Levies

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current

year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial

performance and positions for the current and prior years and/

or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

Bk (ARMBHRERE HE
ZEE)-REF1R

RERERAFM MEETERMBRS
EUHAEERAFEBEFENE
BRERMAE  LBERZEEATH
BROBBLBEATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #2 —F—/F 1+ =-A=+—HIFF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?®

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions*

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with earlier application permitted.

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement requirements
by introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive
income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #2 —F—/F 1+ =-A=+—HIFF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below: (Continued)

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

e In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #2 —F—/1F 1+ =-A=+—HIFF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below: (Continued)

e The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test
has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities
have also been introduced.

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that
the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede
the current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in
the future may have an impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Regarding the Group’s consolidated financial statements, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until a
detailed review has been completed.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property, plant
and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate basis
for amortisation of an intangible asset. This presumption can only
be rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

(@) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group uses the straight-
line method for depreciation and amortisation for its property, plant
and equipment, and intangible assets respectively. The Directors
believe that the straight-line method is the most appropriate
method to reflect the consumption of economic benefits inherent
in the respective assets and accordingly, the Directors do not
anticipate that the application of these amendments to HKAS
16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements

e At cost

e In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (or HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for
Entities that have not yet adopted HKFRS 9), or

e Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28 Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to be
an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it shall
account for the change from the date when the change in status
occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are consequential
amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential conflict with HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements and to HKFRS 1 First time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKAS 27 in
the future may have an impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Regarding the Group’s consolidated financial statements, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until a
detailed review has been completed.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. @E%ﬁﬂ&&ﬂ%ﬁ 5B
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of
‘vesting condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions
for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’ which were
previously included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The
amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured
at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the
contingent consideration is a financial instrument within the scope
of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability.
Changes in fair value (other than measurement period adjustments)
should be recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to
HKFRS 3 are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments
have ‘similar economic characteristics’; and (i) clarify that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the
entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify
that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure
short term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate
at their invoice amounts without discounting, if the effect of
discounting is immaterial. As the amendments do not contain any
effective date, they are considered to be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or
an intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify
that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent
with the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently,
the reporting entity should disclose as related party transactions
the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the
management entity for the provision of key management personnel
services. However, disclosure of the components of such
compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities
within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3
are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards may
be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property
must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property in
terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners (or vice
versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued.
The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in
a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures required
in relation to transferred assets and clarify that the offsetting
disclosures (introduced in the amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure
— Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities issued in
December 2011 and effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013) are not explicitly required for all interim periods.
However, the disclosures may need to be included in condensed
interim financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality corporate
bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-employment
benefits should be issued in the same currency as the benefits
to be paid. These amendments would result in the depth of
the market for high quality corporate bonds being assessed at
currency level. The amendments apply from the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements
in which the amendments are first applied. Any initial adjustment
arising should be recognised in retained earnings at the beginning
of that period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #{% = —/Y#+—-H=+—HIFFE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements relating
to information required by HKAS 34 that is presented elsewhere
within the interim financial report but outside the interim financial
statements. The amendments require that such information be
incorporated by way of a cross reference from the interim financial
statements to the other part of the interim financial report that is
available to users on the same terms and at the same time as the
interim financial statements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TEFTBER (&

/22
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POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TEFTBER (&
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POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that Standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #% — &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, investment
in associates are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investments in associates, any
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of an associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
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the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value RIEEB ST ERFE35R H MR Z A
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance RE-BEATNKIEEAEREER R

with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment ERBERRZRENEBNEGELEZRE
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture. There is B ASEBESEEFRAERE  RILERE
no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership EREREHEAER  ARBETZEHE

interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s policy for recognition of rental income from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy below.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefit from the leased assets are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefit from the leased assets are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss the period.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) at exchange rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares granted to employees

For shares of the Company granted under The Sunny Optical
Technology (Group) Company Limited Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Restricted Shares”), the fair value of the employee
services received is determined by reference to the fair value of the
Restricted Shares granted at the grant date and is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share award scheme reserve). At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of Restricted Shares that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised
in the profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share award
scheme reserve.

For the Restricted Shares not vest immediately at date of grant,
the fair value of the Restricted Shares granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When the Restricted Shares are vested, the amount previously
recognised in the share award scheme reserve will be transferred
to retained profits. When the Restricted Shares are lapsed before
the vesting date or are still not vested at the expiry date, the
amount of previously recognised in the share award scheme
reserve will continue to be held in the share award scheme
reserve.

RARE R XA

FUTE AR AR IR B T &) R B B R R
BB RESHRES RMAX -

UESEEROXNNRS

KT ER /K17

BRAsFIER K (RH) BRARZR K
0 RBEAT BIE TR B AR R (TR H1E
Binl) BEERBEERBOAAEBIIZR
PR R BIERO R L BRI R AE - %
RARBEAE AR FE IS - W H RIR
ez (fn REDAHBIRME) - RWEHR - A
SESTHRGIMERO R RKEBROTAN
PRBUPREEY (5T - ERT BRI EMEE (10
B) HREEPHER - Bt RFFRAXRBR
RBRTEFT - XA TR SRRt B -

BN B RN 55 8 6 IR 1 AR
7 FIRERFIERD O QA EBNRRIESE
IR

2RI REBE - AT B (D 2Rt 8l
REERANSRSEREREEN - BRI
TER D 1A 57 B B HA AT R A B 5 B DR 57
B AIERR D R B ET AN S
BB TR RE)ET B EARE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognise d for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, other than construction in progress, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price of
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

3. TEEFHE (&)

FERRARAI SR FENREESR - K
A g EFE - BB FEREFER
AEEREET IR MMATRAREEE
BIFTFRACAN ©

BREREFVEEREEBR (HEU
M)

REBEHR  AKRERTEEVRELE
ENREE NBEETEEBEMNTRBETZ
FEECRIRERBRE - WiFEERZFT
R AT % FEER A B BURR DA R
EBRREE (M) - WEXGEFENEEZ
AR EIRIE - ARBEE AT ZEEME R E
RS 2 BALZ AT HEIFRIA - i 7] &R A 2
R—BzoEEE  AEXEENEIRE
ERREELEM XD EREAHHEER
—BoEREE&/NMERIRSEL B -

ERAERAFHZEVEERRATRER
BREEELBFRNERAEREZIR
RrETTRLE R -

A] U [e] 5 BB 23 A At LR B 5 AR AN B R (B B
MEFRZBREE - RFGEEREER - T3
RELB R TS ERREEREEN G
ARAGREABNZBARBRZHANE
R EMARKRBRSREZTHBE - Wb
BE (FREELEM) 2AAREEBEINE
RHE  BE (IReELEMN) ZREER
HORZEEAKE SR - BEBRNSNRER
FERR/FX °

~

®



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

N
2/

gy

~

&

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), available-for-sale investments
(“AFS”) and loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &%= = —/Y#+_—H =+—HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments, other than those financial assets classified as

FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

assets is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the
‘other gains and losses’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans and
receivables or financial assets at FVTPL.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, entrusted loan receivables,
amounts due from related parties, bank balances and cash,
short term fixed deposits and pledged bank deposits) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment loss (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &= —ZF—pJF+ —-A=+—HIFF/E

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value of the security below its cost is considered to

be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance for an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even
if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TEFTEEK (&)
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POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &%= = —/Y#+_—H =+—HIFF/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liability and equity instruments

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
FVTPL, equity instrument or other financial liabilities.

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL

on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing
it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;

e or it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

3. TEGFHEE (#)

%HmI,E'\ (nﬁ)

THEERREATA
TRABBEIBRREREANENAEZENERE
& BRATASEMEmAs -
HEEERETNEBRRATERMAETL
A%’J;ﬂ%kﬁ’] ARk BERKRATAN
FEMPBELATHBERER

BAfEFABRENERAE

%’ﬁmﬁﬁ{aﬁh{’ﬁiﬁ;&?\%ﬂ*ﬁﬁ REF1EE
BAREFABRDN - @0 8RRAAER
ABSHESRAME -

& IR THE

FEE

AlERAEJRIEAR

EEZETEZBNARTAKEERD ; =X

o MNFHERE  HBAKE
ERbemTAMASZ 8D
BB BREHERN 2B

BEBZ
1 4T 58

s REA/THEMRBERIE/LE FTAZIT
ATA-

D)

P
\&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #Z2 —F—F+ - A =+—HI-F&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liability and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other
gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 30.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liability and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issued costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties, amount due to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary and borrowings, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees, points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in profit or
loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TEFTEEK (&)
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POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise, and the part
it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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e P BwRME
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and entrusted loan
receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2014, the carrying amount of trade receivables and entrusted loan
receivables are RMB1,503,303,000, net of allowance for bad and
doubtful debt of RMB5,953,000 (2013: RMB786,711,000, net of
allowance for bad and doubtful debt of RMB3,552,000) and RMB
Nil (2013: RMB20,000,000), respectively.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION

—FE+—A=+—HIFFE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold to outside customers, less returns and discount, if
any, during the year.

Information reported to the Board of Directors, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods delivered because the management has chosen to
organise the Group among different major products. No operating
segments identified by chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8

R
5/

G

\C

Operating Segments are as follows:
1. Optical Components
2. Optoelectronic Products

3. Optical Instruments

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

operating and reportable segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z-DNE+-A=t—HLFE
Optical Optoelectronic Optical Segments’
Components Products  Instruments total  Eliminations Total
XESH *EER KEER PHER B am
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTL ARET ARETR
REVENUE WA

External sales MR & 1,402,533 6,803,178 220,747 8,426,458 - 8,426,458
Inter-segment sales 7 S EE 189,317 291 3,137 192,745 (192,745) -
Total 4% 1,591,850 6,803,469 223,884 8,619,203 (192,745) 8,426,458
Segment profit 7% &7 205,222 488,471 16,354 710,047 - 710,047
Share of results of associates 2MEH SN A1 £E 1,209
Unallocated expenses A2 EH X (77,249)
Profit before tax F 7 A 1 634,007



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #Z —E—#+_—H=+—HIFFE&F

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. RAKR S HER (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBM AR ELE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BHE-_T—=F+-A=+—HIFE
Optical  Optoelectronic Optical Segments’
Components Products Instruments total Eliminations Total
KEZH KEEM HEER HEETE B &3

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBIL  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARBTL  AREIR  ARETR

REVENUE H A

External sales SMiP3A & 1,163,587 4,416,372 232,812 5,812,771 = 5,812,771
Inter-segment sales 7 ZhE 4 123,222 36,872 1,802 161,896 (161,896) =
Total 2% 1,286,809 4,453,244 234,614 5,974,667 (161,896) 5,812,771
Segment profit 725l 139,096 366,725 30,146 535,067 = 535,967
Share of results of associates 7 {68 & A Al (590)
Unallocated expenses &7 E2F % (30,888)
Profit before tax BT F 504,489
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the oS S EE It AER S
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. SRR o 9 203 F B & 5 26T B E A
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment SHH BWEHSAPRTBERA (BIEES
without allocation of central administration costs including o) EiSeREE - DEBE A j%ii
Directors’ salaries, other gains or losses, share of results of BRRBRKA o LiBHIREIFEETETES
associates and finance costs. There were asymmetrical allocations EERRAEBESREF B A - Tﬁ%&ﬁ&
to operating segments because the Group allocates interest M EYE BERLHEEEZTESY
income, depreciation and amortisation and loss on disposal of B WARMAESDBOEMBETLES - Al
property, plant and equipment to each segment without allocating ERENEBESRITE - W RTEZER
the related bank balances, depreciable assets and the relevant SRR RO N R E R EE o

financial instruments to those segments. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEEEEIRIRITMEALR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. AR HER (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities AEEZRAHREDHBEONEERAESM
by reportable segments: N
As at 31 December 2014 R-B-mE+=A=+—H
Optical Optoelectronic Optical
Components Products Instruments Total
HEZH XEER HEESR ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Assets BE
Trade receivables & 5 EWzE 332,246 1,145,182 25,875 1,503,303
Bill receivables [EME 15 15,392 761,480 565 777,437
Inventories 7 & 221,719 641,364 32,610 895,693
Total segment assets A& EBE 569,357 2,548,026 59,050 3,176,433
Unallocated assets A2 A& E 2,417,406
Consolidated assets & E 5,593,839
Liabilities & &
Trade payables & 5B Z08 287,208 841,143 37,849 1,166,200
Note payables &I 21 - 212,050 - 212,050
Total segment liabilities 72 & 4258 287,208 1,053,193 37,849 1,378,250
Unallocated liabilities &7 it & f& 964,999
Consolidated liabilities 488 {& 2,343,249
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #2 —F—/F 1+ =-A=+—HIFF/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013

5. RARZHEFR (&)

THMEERER (H)

R-BE—=Ft+-A=1+—8

Optical Optoelectronic Optical
Components Products Instruments Total
HETH KEEM HEER B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETL AREFTL AREFL AREFTL
Assets BE

Trade receivables & 5 EUzE 163,520 584,527 38,664 786,711
Bill receivables EWE 1R 37,170 259,339 1,678 298,187
Inventories 7 & 130,797 604,313 32,805 767,915
Total segment assets 7 & E#A&(E 331,487 1,448,179 73,147 1,862,813
Unallocated assets KB & & 2,812,435
Consolidated assets #2&E 4,665,248

Liabilities & f&
Trade payables & 5 /& 7R 152,695 712,403 43,019 908,117
Note payables fEff 215 3,649 42,626 = 46,275
Total segment liabilities 7 SF & & 44 156,344 755,029 43,019 954,392
Unallocated liabilities &2 & & 850,971
Consolidated liabilities 4 & f& 1,805,363

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

e trade receivables, bill receivables and inventories are allocated
to the respective operating segments. All other assets are
unallocated assets, which are not regularly reported to the
chief operating decision maker.

e trade payables and note payables are allocated to the
respective operating segments. All other liabilities are
unallocated liabilities, which are not regularly reported to the
chief operating decision maker.

REZENBRARED FHED

RER

o BZERUNE BRURBREFEEHIE
ERHNLELE - 2HMEMEERL
TEHMETELERRERENARDE

BE -

s BZRNFAREBNEESEKEMEHN

Po2EEMBERL T ERM

TREERREBENARDEARE -

)

P
\&



=
Y,

G

&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. RAKR D HER (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information H fth 5 EB & K}
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z—NE+-A=+—HLEFE
Optical Optoelectronic Optical Consolidated
Components Products Instruments Unallocated total
KEZH XEER REER AOE GeRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Amounts included in the measure of segment
profit or loss:

TR BRER T ALNRE -

Depreciation and amortisation #7& K & &5 108,586 100,911 4,366 856 214,719
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on trade receivables

BIRUFIENRZRER 64 2,039 298 - 2,401
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEME - BERZENE (2,213) (56) (272) - (2,541)

Reversal on overprovision of repair expenses on property, plant
and equipment arising from flooding accident in Yuyao City

BT EREINE - BERREN

BERXNERRERE (4,650) - - - (4,650)
Share award scheme expense {3 2Bzt &I 19,390 12,280 5,102 3,648 40,420
Interest income from bank and financial instruments
RITRERMIAFEMA (21,596) (14,394) (4,861) (23) (40,874)
Interest income from entrusted loans Z & ZFI 2 KA (3,791) = (5,054) = (8,845)
Allowance for (reversal of allowance for) inventories
FEEE (BEED) 6,253 (1,036) 318 - 5,535
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating

decision maker but not included in the measure

of segment assets:

EHOEEEERARERMEARIPERRRTANTE
Addition to property, plant and equipment
NE  BERRBEM 198,691 154,713 8,567 108,482 470,453
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #2 —F—/F 1+ =-A=+—HIFF/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

5. RARZHEFR (&)

Hftto 3MER (&)

BE

—E-ZF+_A=T+—HILFE

Optical ~ Optoelectronic Optical Consolidated
Components Products Instruments Unallocated total
KETH KEEM HEES AAE e g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
Amounts included in the measure of segment
profit or loss:
SRS MBS ANRE
Depreciation and amortisation 472 [ 2 4 84,618 58,189 4,529 = 147,336
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RZER B {5
- trade receivables — & 5 B 5 1,433 62 343 - 1,838
- other receivables — Eft KA - - 14 - 14
- amount due from an associate — JEMES & A RIFIE - 3,087 - - 3,087
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HMEWE - BBRRE (K) B8 (1,881) 17 (41) - (1,805)
Insurance claims for flooding accident in Yuyao City
Sk SRR RS (39,060) (26,749) (4,605) = (70,414)
Written off arising from flooding accident in Yuyao City
I R
- Inventories — 7 & 14,700 26,908 3,641 - 45,249
- Property, plant and equipment — #13 + 2% & &/E 1,947 461 121 - 2,529
Repair expenses on property, plant and equipment
arising from flooding in Yuyao City
RTE L EHEINE - RERRIBORER 23,126 128 2,588 - 25,842
Share award scheme expense {3 23t 8137 i 17,528 7,008 4,412 1,895 30,843
Interest income from bank and financial instruments
BITRERMIAFSRA (3,917) (6,814) (1,937) (1,468) (14,136)
Interest income from entrusted loans Z#E & FF SUA - - (3,366) - (3,336)
Reversal of allowance for inventories 17 S @ (179) (465) (1,258) = (1,896)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating
decision maker but not included in the measure
of segment assets:
EHOTEEERRERMEHEIPEERATANTE
Addition to property, plant and equipment
n% - BRERXBEM 179,923 111,258 3,215 - 294,396

S

P
\&
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5, WARDEHER (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)
Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products:

FEEmMRBHERA

AT HAAREERE ETZEMOBADHN

2014 2013

—E-NmEF —=—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Mobile phone related products % &)E 55 HE = @ 6,791,172 4,212,009
Digital camera related products £i5 8 # +8 B8 2= & 501,143 572,551
Optical instruments Yt 2225 192,242 184,181
Other lens sets HAth§E 58 511,312 375,823
Digital video lens S5 1% SAE A 13,324 14,971
Other spherical lens and plane products E fth B E 5 2 K 3 [ 2= & 50,027 35,935
Industrial endoscopes T ¥ NEHE 21,586 8,790
Other products b & 345,652 408,511
8,426,458 5,812,771

Geographical information ith & & R

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, Korea, Japan, AREBMEBRBMAPE - 8B - BA - 0

Singapore and the United States.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the
locations of goods physically delivered and information about its
non-current assets by the geographical location of the assets are
detailed below:

R EE -

AEERBERAEERNE YRR KB I
MEFHBARZEENIEMES DRI

MBEEMNERNT

Revenue from external

R
>/

G

e

customers Non-current assets
REMBEFHBA IRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—g-mE 2= —F-mE  —T=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT AR®T T ARBFIT
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong)

(country of domicile) B (TNEIEEH) (BIER) 6,973,059 4,375,747 1,264,434 893,674
Hong Kong &8 470,085 533,861 = =
Japan B 240,539 310,594 1 &
United States £ 215,886 166,781 109 137
Others HAth 526,889 425,788 1,499 881

8,426,458 5,812,771 1,266,043 894,695
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

5. WARZ#ER (&)

Information about major customer EHRFXEEFHNEHR
Revenues from the following customers contributed over 10% of RERATEPHKRAGAREEHEEEE L
the total sales of the Group: HiHEiB10% :
2014 2013
—E—mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Customer A, revenue from Optoelectronic Products
ARF  REXAEERARA 1,341,694 1,009,786
Customer B, revenue from Optoelectronic Products (Note 1) N/A
B&EPF REXABE@OUA (K1FE1) 1,055,972 i A
Customer G, revenue from Optoelectronic Products (Note 2) N/A
CEF RahkBEMMBA (FizF2) i A 651,798
2,397,666 1,661,584
Note 1: Revenue from Customer B contributed less than 10% of total 1 : REBRPHBAGAEEHZE-T—=

sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Note 2: Revenue from Customer C contributed less than 10% of total
sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

B EE2

Ft-A=+—HEFEHEEREZL
BA0% °

REACEFHBAGAEERE =B
F+oA=+-AULFERERBIL
ELR10% -

6(A). OTHER INCOME 6(A). H bz
2014 2013
—2-mF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Interest income from short term fixed deposits
72 B TE BRI R B A 222 330
Interest income from pledged bank deposits
EERRITERAEMA 7,659 1,709
Interest income from financial assets designed as at FVTPL
RARBEFABENSREENN WA 31,329 10,525
Bank interest income 877 F B4 A 1,664 1,572
Government grants (Note 36) BUF#Bh4& (MF:£36) 19,761 25,686
Income from sales of moulds #§& &K A 6,104 1,710
Income from sales of scrap materials 5% EE LA 1,940 1,500
Interest income from entrusted loans Z £ & ZF B U A 8,845 3,366
Rental income and recharge of utilities & WA KA EE A 738 576
Others Hth 2,964 2,390
Total #2%8 81,226 49,364

~

®
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SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 # % — &

6(B). OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

—FE+—A=+—HIFFE

6(B). Hftt iz R EE

2014 2013
—E-NmE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEME - s RRERE 2,541 1,805
Net foreign exchange (losses) gains JMNE (E518) Uz 58 (16,338) 6,732
Insurance claims for flooding accident in Yuyao City (Note)
grok Tt K EHURR R (FRE) = 70,414
Written off arising from flooding accident in Yuyao City (Note)
eRk TRt S EHOE B (M EE)
— inventories — 7 & = (45,249)
— property, plant and equipment — ¥13 - # 23 K &/ 45 = (2,529)
Reversal on overprovision of (provision of) repair expenses on property,
plant and equipment arising from flooding accident in Yuyao City (Note)
ERIKTE G B % - MR R BN R ER A
RS (BE) 8o (fEE) 4,650 (25,842)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RiE B #
— trade receivables — & 5 fE W k18 (2,401) (1,838)
— other receivables — E th fE U518 = (14)
— amount due from an associate — J& B & A 5] 58 = (3,087)
Total #8%8 (11,548) 392
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2013, several subsidiaries iz RBE-T—=F+-_A=+—HBLHF

of the Group located in Yuyao City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC,
incurred damages to inventories and production facilities of
handset camera modules, glass spherical lenses, handset lens
sets, optical instruments and infrared related products during
the typhoon and flooding accident occurred in October 2013.
The Group had insurance policies in place to cover damages
to inventories and property, plant and equipment incidental to
the flooding. With the measures taken to minimise the impact
of temporary suspension of production facilities on the Group’s
customers, the Group had not suffered from any material loss of
purchase orders from customers. A provision of RMB25,842,000
had been included in other gains or losses in relation to repair
expenses on damaged property, plant and equipment for the
year ended 31 December 2013. During the current year, the
Directors considered that certain property, plant and equipment
was not economic beneficial for repairs and that less repair work
was actually carried out. An overprovision of RMB4,650,000 was
reversed in other gains and losses and the remaining balance of
the payable was fully settled.

o AKEMRFBINIE SIS T
MEBARE _-_Z—=F+AR4EHEBEM
A E AR - FREBAEAE - FERE
Hh - FHRIEE KB EBURLINERA
ERNGEEREEREETELX - A5MH
BB ERE ﬁ%/katmrf&%¥
He 22 R R 1R K o R B EREUE R 4>
E%%H%%Eﬁﬁ$iggﬁmws
AEBUWAEREFPHRBIIETEEXE
MEXE% - REE-_ZT—=%1+_A
=+—HILFE EHEZEWE  HBER
HEOEECHINEMKESNEIEE BIE
B 5 A R #25,842,0007T © R K FE fE
EERRETYE HBERZEOHEEL
TR ENE - BERETHEEDORE
H - M ARE4,650,000 T BEBEHEE R
Hi s REEhEE - AEMHAEE
HEE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #2 —F—/F 1+ =-A=+—HIFF/Z

7. FINANCE COSTS . ALE A
2014 2013
—E2-NF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Interests on: A T5IZBHF S
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within five years
ARAEFANEPEENRITEE 13,981 6,590
Amount due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
FE TR BB A R FEIE AR A e 3K IR - 5
13,981 6,595
/8
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE . FrBHBA X
2014 2013
—E2-—OF T —=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBET T
Current tax: BIEAF A
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A B> ¥ 7155 67,207 63,280
Other jurisdictions Hth & = 181 =
67,388 63,280
Underprovision in prior years: {BEFEBEENE ¢
PRC Enterprises Income Tax Bl 2FT15H; 1,831 2,409
Deferred taxation (Note 17): EIEFIE (FFsE17) -
Current year INF[E 3,520 (2,066)
72,739 63,623

~

o\
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 8. TS (&

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards, except as described below.

Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Optics”), Sunny Optics
(Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Zhongshan”) and Ningbo Sunny
Instruments Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Instruments”), domestic limited
liability companies, were approved as Hi-Tech Enterprises and
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% with the expiry date on
31 December 2015.

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Opotech”), Shanghai
Sunny Hengping Scientific Instrument Co., Ltd. (“Sunny
Hengping”), Ningbo Sunny Automotive Opotech Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Automotive), Suzhou Shun Xin Instruments Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Shun Xin Instruments”) and Ningbo Sunny Infrared
Technologies Company Ltd. (“Sunny Infrared”), domestic limited
liability companies, were approved as Hi-Tech Enterprises and
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% with the expiry date on
31 December 2016.

No charges to Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years have been
made in the consolidated financial statements as the Group has
no assessable profit arising from Hong Kong for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the tax effect of temporary
difference attributable to the PRC undistributed earnings of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and 2014 as the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. The Directors plan to set as
aside the undistributed profits for reinvestment purpose. If such
amounts exceed the investment plan, the Group will recognise
the deferred tax liabilities in respect of the withholding tax on the
then undistributed profits.

R EARKNECEAEBE ([RHEF
BBA]) ROEFEBOAEMIED - EH
BATERNHRA SR \5—A—A 8
B25% - HETFRERS -

AT FTHBBERAR (RFHIIHRE]) -
ETXRB(PWL) ARAF (5T H LK
B]) hERAETERERAF ([RFHR])
RANEEREERR - WERR A&
T¥ AIZEXI5RNEEREX - R-_F—H
F+-_A=t—HBEW-

BERAETHREEEARAR ([FHE])
tERFEFHEEEARAR ((#F1E
TSR BERAETEHAEBEMERAA
(IRTEHALB])  HMNEFERARAF
(T&RINZERT RS ]) MBIRFEFAIMNRIMAR
AR ([#FAHNNRE]) BREBREER
A WERABEHRMEE  AIZX16%
MESBHE  R-FT—A"F+-A=+—8
&

HRAKERMEALER BT EELERT
wH > BERAMBHRRET I FERTRINE
HFX -

HitEBERNBRIARREWERAREGE -

A A A Rl AR IR M = AR B
TR BN AL RTETRED - Eit
TEAGAMBREAR-E—=ER-F
—mE+= A=+ —AEEAEERERD
TR R BB 2 BRI B BRI BIE
B - EEH BB SRS RRFIEBRE
A WZEFERBRESE HAEEE
1 24 5 5k 5 B2 L o X B R AR KE R
1 -



8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #% — &

8. FIEHiMx ()

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FRAMNRIEX HEES
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other AR AR FIEERAT ¢

comprehensive income as follows:

—mEFZA=+—HILFE

B M E A2

2014 2013
—E—MEF —_ZT—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
Profit before tax B % 51 i £ 634,007 504,489
Tax at PRC EIT tax rate of 25% #EI{bZ TS & R25% 158,502 126,123
Tax effect of share of results of associates D {HE# 4 A B 48 2 TG 2 (302) 148
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose A 0% 5 s 2 Fi f mr 28 6,678 4,925
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes % & YA K3 #6552 2 (1,543) (872)
Tax effect of allowance granted under share award scheme in the PRC
RIEAR 5 RENFT BT R R D2 (21,788) (18,600)
Tax effect of preferential tax rates for certain subsidiaries
ETHBRARAREEBE BB E (89,150) (60,834)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ERTHEIE 2 IS £ 18,731 11,765
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised f 8 4 Bl R FE 251 1B &5 18 (275) (1,657)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions
REMEERLLENMBATNTRABRE BB E 55 216
Underprovision in prior years i@ & E B E T2 1,831 2,409
Income tax expense for the year & N5 552 72,739 63,623
Details of deferred taxation and unrecognised temporary difference IR IE R R R E i = e B B A KT

are disclosed in Note 17. FE17

)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

9. £ X

i )

FREMEIR GtA) LTEIA

2014 2013
—2—nmF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) =& (FI5F12) 31,410 8,696
Other staff’s salaries and allowances Efth 8§ T #) % & & )EB, 727,303 549,049
Other staff’s discretionary bonuses Hfth 8 T H)EIFIEAT 88,622 68,865
Other staff’s contribution to retirement benefit scheme
Hh 8 T 8RR FET SR 50,428 35,062
Other staff’s share award scheme expense 1 8 T HY(D t2 @2 37,771 28,706
Total staff costs B TR AN 4E5E 935,534 690,378
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN & 2,817 2219
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)3 - #28 KR EITE 214,707 147,324
Release of prepaid lease payments F& 170 & Rk 1,452 642
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in research and
development expenditure) & E# s (B ENAZERY) 12 12
Allowance for (reversal of allowance for) inventories
(included in cost of sales) (Note)
FEEE (BERE) (BRENREEKRA) (M) 5,535 (1,896)

Note: Reversal of allowance for inventories was recognised because of
subsequent usage.

BRREERRER  REERTERBR
@ o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

10.DIVIDENDS 10. R 2
2014 2013
—2—mF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: F KR 2 IKHI IS,
2013 final dividends — RMB12.10 cents (2013: 2012 final dividends
— RMB10.50 cents) per share
—ZE-—FREKRE - BRAR¥K12.10D

—E—=F: _Z-_FREPKRE — AE¥10.509) 132,737 105,000

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, a final dividend
of HK$19.00 cents per share, equivalent to approximately
RMB15.50 cents per share, amounting to a total of approximately
RMB170,035,000 (2013: HK$15.40 cents per share, equivalent
to approximately RMB12.10 cents per share, amounting to a total
of RMB132,737,000) has been proposed by the Directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The final dividends proposed after the end of
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of reporting period.

RmEHRE  EFEH RN ER19.00%8
W T/ AREI5500) A HEHARE
170,085,0007T (= & — = & : & Ix15.40
B (HEBERARE12100) 6 HEARKE
132,737,0007T) BIAREAMR E - HEBAERER
FEERRBEFASIE - BERNREHRE
IR B RERRR S KRR E I RER R A S o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 1.ERER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RABIRRELERERREERF TIIRE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the IATEUREE -

following data:

2014 2013
—ZT-mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Earnings 27|
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share
AEHEREAREERANNER 566,096 440,498
2014 2013
—E-pmEF —F=F
’000 000
TR F A%
Number of shares R & B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share T8 & % ZL 78 21 Fl| 79 3 18 % N 29 25 1,069,823 994,294
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: /& # #8 E BAL K2 -
Restricted Shares BR il 14 B% 17 9,816 17,741
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of diluted earnings per share & & I #5% Z 7 /) & A% hn e F 5 & 1,079,639 1,012,035
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

12EE TETHRAEREES

AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS [k
The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis are as follows: BUZEDWESHESMT -
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share
Fees benefits Bonus contributions award Total
R RIKER
e HAt3ER AL HE 5 R A3 %R ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR
For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—WF+-F=+—HIFE
Ye Liaoning (Note 1) &% (Kiz1) - 739 1,561 60 758 3,118
Sun Yang (Note 1) 7 (FiizE1) - 601 1,356 57 758 2,772
Wang Wenjie (Note 1) T 378 (FifsE1) - 552 1,268 49 512 2,381
Wang Wenjian £ X% - 799 21,561 - 621 22,981
Chu Peng Fei Richard K7 - 79 - - - 79
Liu Xu ZI8 - - - - - -
Zhang Yuging R&E - 79 - - - 79
- 2,849 25,746 166 2,649 31,410

e

=N
&
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SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #2 —F—/1F 1+ =-A=+—HIFF/Z

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share
Fees benefits Bonus  contributions award Total
ek RIKEF
ik HhiaFl il AR fth 22 k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AEEFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AEETT
For the year ended 31 December 2013
F_E—CFET_A=+—HIFE
Ye Liaoning (Note 1) Z& %= (Fiz1) = 795 1,386 41 758 2,980
Sun Yang (Note 1) #ik (FiizE1) - 662 1,209 36 758 2,665
Wang Wenjie (Note 1 and Note 2)
ESCN RN i) = = = = > =
Wang Wenijian £ 3 & - 795 1,386 9 621 2,811
Sha Ye (Note 3) ) (Fff5F3) = = = = = =
Chu Peng Fei Richard & EFR - 80 - - = 80
Liu Xu 178 - 80 - - - 80
Zhang Yuging R E - 80 - - - 80
- 2,492 3,981 86 2,137 8,696
Note: FffaE

1. Mr. Ye Liaoning, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr. Wang Wenjie are also the
Chief Executives of the Company and their emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by them as the Chief
Executives.

2. Mr. Wang Wenjie was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 21 December 2013.

3. Mr. Sha Ye resigned as a non-executive director of the Company with
effect form 21 December 2013.

=

AIMERTRAE M EXARBERSENME
BREREETEIETHRARNME -

EXRNEEEZERARBRNRITES A=

T—=F+-f-F+—HEEH -

DEEEBRTARBNENTEE B
—=F+_A-+—B4%% -
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e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 4 (2013:
3) Directors and Chief Executives for the year. Details of their
emoluments are set out above. The emolument of the remaining
1 (2013: 2) highest paid individual was as follows:

12EF TETHRAEREES

Z (&)

AEBRAFENAEESTMATEEN
FZH(ZE—=F: =ZR) B2 REFEITHA
B HMeFBaERN L - H#—% (=T
—=F WA ZasMATAOMESnT

2014 2013
—Z2-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Employees & 8

— salaries and other benefits — & & E M 4EF| 360 721
— bonuses (Note) — 1E4T (Mf5E) 825 1,217
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — 3Rk 4& K5+ 2]t 7% 37 106
— share award — %17 428} 1,122 1,408
2,344 3,452

Their emoluments were within the following band: HENMESSHEWNT -
2014 2013
—2-mEF —F=F
No. of No. of
employee employees
EE A EE A
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 7T £2,500,0007 7T 1 2

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals (including Directors, chief executives
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. In the year ended
31 December 2014, 1 (20183: 1) director waived emoluments of
RMB79,000 (2013: RMB157,000).

Note: The performance related bonus payment is determined by
remuneration committees based on the Group’s performance
for each financial year and subject to a maximum of 5% of
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company.

REER AREBYERAERSHFMAL
(BREEE EBTRAERES) M
T EABBEMAIMAAEER RN ES
SIEABBEE - REE-_FT—NF+=A
=t+—HLEFE —&(ZT—=F: —%)
EEWMEHNS ARMT,000T (ZFT—=
F: AR¥157,0007T) °

M XETCATHTFHEZESRBEAEERE
HRERNRRETE A SRARA]
PR FEAE 4R B HI5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 13 - HBENRE

Machinery
and Fixtures
production Motor and office  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
R R
BF EERME RE BAERE ERIR aE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT N S AEEFT AEETT ARBTT ARETT
COST B&
At 1 January 2013 R=E—-=%—-F—H 184,917 867,770 11,855 141,558 2,873 1,208,973
Additions A E 405 214,062 1,638 20,665 57,626 294,396
Transfer & 20,684 28,900 36 7,658 (57,278) -
Disposals i (40) (44,583) (1,086) (2,034) = (47,743)
Written off (Note) # & (Fif+) (208) (18,711) - (268) - (19,187)
Exchange realignment J)E f% - (87) (45) (121) - (253)

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014
RIB-=F+t_A=t-HRK

—“F-mF-A-A 205,758 1,047,351 12,398 167,458 3,221 1,436,186
Additions R E 84,721 232,819 2,367 75,914 74,632 470,453
Transfer 8 25,850 17,399 - 1,415 (44,664) -
Disposals i (19) (8,435) (2,445) (17,673) = (28,572)
Exchange realignment hE 8% - (41) 1 (123) - (163)
At 31 December 2014
RZZE-NE+=A=+—H 316,310 1,289,093 12,321 226,991 33,189 1,877,904

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT 23t ERFE

At 1 January 2013 R=E—=%—-A—H 55,454 412,657 7,308 87,494 - 562,913
Charge for the year £RX 10,048 118,302 1,723 17,251 - 147,324
Eliminated on disposals £ &4 3 (17) (39,222) (1,015) (1,596) = (41,850)
Written off (Note) #i38 (BizE) (181) (16,293) = (184) = (16,658)
Exchange realignment 5ME F% - (78) (1) (120) - (199)

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014
RZE-=F+-A=+-Bk

“Z2-NE-A-H 65,304 475,366 8,015 102,845 - 651,530
Charge for the year FRX ] 11,622 175,166 2,096 25,823 - 214,707
Eliminated on disposals H &4 ) (4,499) (2,311) (16,513) = (23,325)
Exchange realignment 9ME F% - (32) - (135) - (167)
At 31 December 2014
RZE-NF+-A=+—H 76,924 646,001 7,800 112,020 - 842,745
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2014
R-E-MFE+-A=+—H 239,386 643,092 4,521 114,971 33,189 1,035,159
At 31 December 2013
RZE-=F+-fA=1—H 140,454 571,985 4,383 64,613 3,221 784,656
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 # %= —E—#E+ _—H=+—HIFEZF

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Note: In October 2013, the production facilities in Yuyao City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC were suffered from severe flooding occurred.
The Group had written off the damaged property, plant and
equipment with carrying value of approximately RMB2,529,000
accordingly.

13. 9% - e RRE (&)

e ZE—=F1+7  ARFBENTIESHKT
MEESEEARERERLERIBL-
it AEEEMEREEENARE
2,529,000 KRB - HEE R ©

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated b KELHREBEBERBESEER
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: TH|Et ] BEHREITINE -
Buildings 20 years or B 204F 8,
over the lease term MRABERA
Machinery and production equipment 5to 10 years WA N £ E % 52104
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years RE 4B 55
Fixtures and office equipment 3 to 10 years TS N 3F104
The carrying value of properties shown above comprises: i ERNREEARAT
2014 2013
—2-mEF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT
Buildings on land held under medium-term lease outside Hong Kong
RPHEOREBAIIMFEN L FAET 239,386 140,454
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, none of the Group’s property, RZEBE-—HERZE—Z=F+"H=+—
plant and equipment was pledged as security. = $’$ BrmE - S KRBT EERK
@ T AR o
Included in the newly additions of property, plant and equipment of TAEBEME BERZEAR ﬁ%

RMB470,453,000 is RMB18,445,000 in relation to the machineries
and related accessories acquired from Konica Minolta Optical
Products (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“OMS”), a subsidiary of Konica
Minolta, Inc., an independent third party of the Group. During
the current year, the Group had entered into various agreements
with OMS so as to allow the Group benefits from OMS’s
strong capabilities and extensive experience in production and
manufacturing of the lens sets of mobile phone, smartphone, paid
terminal and other portable data terminals. Furthermore, the Group
acquired several buildings and construction in progress properties
amounting to RMB106,320,000 through the acquisition of Sunny
Group Limited (Note 31). The construction in progress properties
acquired through the acquisition of Sunny Group Limited are all
transferred to buildings as of 31 December 2014,

470,453,0007C B & B 7 e < E #8 & )
ZeE (LB BER AR (TOMS]) « K& l
K %8 37 % = 77 ° Konica Minolta, Inc.ty Bff
BRARBEMREREERGILEMNARE
18,445,0007T © A AFEE + NEE EOMSE]
N Z B WS AEBOMSTEAE R
ERHEREE SFHE IR mEEE
HEEABBRENEEE I REFERT
B o i AEEERKRERFERER
NEIEAAR106,320,0007TH & TEF
REZTRME (M:E31) - ‘%354&%*’*?%
BBERARMBEMNEZIEWEER
—NFE+=—A=+— El?&%@ﬁ%éﬂ%; °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

14. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 14.FEFHEE
2014 2013
—E-pmE —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYET T ARBTTT
Analysed for reporting purpose as: FBRDHTLAT
Current assets &) & & 3,337 642
Non-current assets JETENE E 116,223 22,808
119,560 23,450
During the current year, the Group acquired several leasehold RAFE  REBZBREZRFEEBRA
land located in the PRC amounting to RMB97,562,000 through a8 A A R#97 562,000t AL AR B A9 &
the acquisition of Sunny Group Limited (Note 31). FHRELH# (MIEE31) ©
Prepaid lease payments represent the payments for leasehold FENEES AL B AR HE L P T
interests in land situated in the PRC and held under medium- FA#NES -
term lease.
>
15.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 5. 8EEE
Patents
SR
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
COST KA
At 1 January 2013, 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014
RZE—=F—A—H ZZ—NF—A—AR=ZZT—NF+=-A=1+—H 8,907
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT ##4 & Rl &
At 1 January 2013 R=Z—=F—H—H 8,868
Charge for the year A 12
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R=ZE—=F+_-_A=+—HFK_-_ZE—NFE—H—H 8,880
Charge for the year FA X 12
At 31 December 2014 R—Z— &+ - =+—H 8,892
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 December 2014 R _Z—F+_=-A=+—H 15
At 31 December 2013 R —ZE—=%+—-A=+—H 27
Patents have finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line B EEEHERRAFE - WIREHRENIE
basis over 3 to 8 years. 8F N H o
No impairment loss on patents was considered necessary by the BE-_Z2-—NWEN_ZE—=F+_A=+—
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. HIFEE EERAEEREFNERRRE
518 o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 # % —E—p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. ABEE ARV ER
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Cost of investment in unlisted associates FE - HB & A B E A 85,407 24,477
Share of post-acquisition profit or loss and other comprehensive income
DG % B Rk E 2 (12,879) (14,088)
Impairment loss recognised & &R EE 18 (9,997) (9,997)
62,531 392
Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the RBEHER AEESHEQARNFEN
reporting period are as follow: T
Proportion of
ownership
Places of interests and
incorporation/ voting rights held
registration/ by the Group
operation TEBIFEW
Name of associate M W FEREERR Principal activity
BE QT ARE B B B RERELL A FTEEK
2014 2013
—2-mNFE —T=-fF
Visiondigi (Shanghai) Technology The PRC 30.85% 30.85% Manufacture and sale of

Co., Ltd. (“Visiondigi”) A
FEEEAARMARAR ([ L8R ])

Jiangsu Sunny Medical Equipments The PRC 26.00%
Co., Ltd. (*Jiangsu Medical”) A EY

L5 TRESWMAR AR
(DIzRTEE])

Yuyao City Sunny Huitong Microcredit ~ The PRC 25.00%
Co. Ltd. (“Sunny Huitong”) elE

ERok T 3R T R N R E D

closed circuit television

26.00% Manufacture and sale of
medical instrument
business

FENMHEEBRERRER

(Note) Provision of financing service
(M3%)  in Yuyao City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC

BRAR ([2#FEB]) TEFR BT A satkh
IR R E AR TS
Note: During the current year, the Group acquired Sunny Huitong e RAFE  AEEZRNERZRFEEEGR

through acquisition of Sunny Group Limited (Note 31).

AR EFETIER (MFS1) -

@
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the associates’
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

16. REEE R R ER (&)

EXRBEQARANYRERBE

ERASBEERBERRANMIEEMGTER
I c LT BEMBREIIERERTEY
TR & A R fm B A Bt 2 X B IS R PR
M8 o

Sunny Huitong RFESR
2014
—Z-mF
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Current assets REN & E 240,187
Non-current assets JER BN & &= 11,028
Current liabilities 7 £ & & (1,547)
Non-current liabilities 3ER B & (& -
2014
—E-IOF
RMB’000
ARMT T
Revenue WA 6,857
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year & A& K| K & [ U 55 42 58 5,946
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Summarised financial information of material
associate (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

16. REEE N R ER (&)

EXBEQXTANYBRERBE (&)

R B B R B BAR A B TS R P HERR Y
REfE R A REERNERAT

2014
—E-ImF
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Net assets of Sunny Huitong %2 & B8 & & FE 249,668
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in Sunny Huitong
REER#FERN A EER LD 25.00%
Carrying amount of the Group’s ownership interest in Sunny Huitong
AEEREFEBNAEREERNREE 62,417
Jiangsu Medical IERTFEE
2014 20183
—ZE—MF —T—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥EFTTT
Current assets B & & 1,266 1,302
Non-current assets JERBI & &= 3,491 4,264
Current liabilities RBI & & (4,019) (3,758)
Non-current liabilities 3F7 &) & & (300) (300)
2014 20183
=F-mE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥EFTTT
Revenue WA 2,193 1,531
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year
FABERFRNZHERAXERE (1,063) (2,273)

=\
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SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 g% — E—py#+—H =+—HIFFZF

16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. Rt E DRI ER (8])

(Continued)
IEEFER (F)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LB ER B ERIELRE VIS RER P ER

the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in BIPREE S A RIS REENE RO T ¢
the consolidated financial statements:

Jiangsu Medical (Continued)

=
)

R

&

2014 20183

—ZT-mF —F—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFTT

Net assets of Jiangsu Medical L &%z T & B & & F(E 438 1,508

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in Jiangsu Medical

REBENIE T RRN B EER LD 26.00% 26.00%
Carrying amount of the Group’s ownership interest in Jiangsu Medical

REERN I#HRTFERNMBEERNREE 114 392

Unrecognised share of losses of an associate

The investment in Visiondigi was fully impaired by 31 December
2012 and no further share of loss or impairment is recognised by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2014.

AERTHBEQTNEE

REBREHNRER T ——F+ - A
Z T HRZERE MAEEREEZE-Z
—ZER_FE-—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

AW — RS (AR -

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFT

The unrecognised share of loss of Visiondigi for the year
FARERDE LB EE - (56)

Cumulative unrecognised share of loss of Visiondigi

REFRER DG LB R EE (56) (56)

.DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

iR

ARAMBIMARNEIMS - ETELEHR
REENRABEEEE - FMBHRS BN

EEBRRGEHAITT

2014 2013

—ZT-mF —2—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Deferred tax assets EILFIBE &= (5,417) (3,745)
Deferred tax liabilities #EIEFIE & & 10,787 5,595
5,370 1,850
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #% — &

17.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

%-?\/-\Eﬁ“ﬂi%% B =

—mEFZA=+—HILFE

IEER A (4)

ERANTIEREHREE (BE) RAFE

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior MBEFEEHOT -
years:
Allowance on
Undistributable inventories Deferred
profits of PRC  and doubtful subsidy  Accelerated
subsidiaries debts income depreciation Total
HERE AR 7ER
A BEER RERE BEERHEUA mEFE #E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT ARBTFT ARETFT ARETT
At 1 January 2013 R=ZE—=F—F—H 5,595 (1,021) (658) = 3,916
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (Note 8)
RERF (GEA) 1Bk (HEE8) = - (2,066) - (2,066)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014
RZE—=F+_A=+—BR-F-WE-H—H 5,595 (1,021) (2,724) - 1,850
Credlt to profit or loss (Note 8) Pz &r A (KizE8) = (991) (681) 5,192 3,520
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MF+-A=+—H 5,595 (2,012) (3,405) 5,192 5,370

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB206,264,000 (2013: RMB135,967,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of such losses in both 2014 and
2013 due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses arising from PRC subsidiaries of RMB164,514,000 (2013:
RMB96,038,000) can be carried forward for five years and will
expire during 2015 to 2019. Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

18. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The deposits are paid for construction of factory buildings and
acquisition of plants and equipment located in the PRC for the
expansion of the Group’s production plant. The deposits will
be transferred to property, plant and equipment during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

18.

RBEEHR NEEBAEREABTEBBLY
A R #206,264,0007T (:%—Zi AR
#135,967,0007T) A # A R 8 R R &
F o B AR R I /ﬁﬁ Bl W EH =T
—MER T =FMNZEEBRERELTR
BEE HBENBRAAEENBEBEA
R#164,514,000C (T E—=F: ARK
96,038,0007T) AT AFANAEE - WHN =
T-RFE-T-NFEH - HtHIEEE
AJAER HR A o

g,ﬂﬁ%% BB R ARV IR

AEEREZEBERTARKBLNHHH
MR hREAREEERSIBRM X MiZ
T - AARSENBE_T—RF T A
ST HLEFEEREYE - S RRE -

)

P
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2074 &% — E—py#E+—H=+—HIFEZF

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AJft HERE

2014 2013
—ZE—MF —ET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®ETFT
Unlisted equity securities 7 XN & % 52,279 -
Places of
incorporation/ Proportion of ownership
Name of the available- registration/ interests and voting rights
for-sale investment operation held by the Group Principal activity
MR rEEREN
AHEERESR Ho B E B FrEREERIRERELLH FEXEH
2014 20183
- i T =F
MantisVision Ltd. (Note 1) Israel 1.61% N/A Developing,
(“MantisVision”) &5 T#EA  manufacturing
MantisVision Ltd. (Ff&E1) and marketing of
(['MantisVision ]) emergent vision
technologies
for consumers
and professional
applications
REFPREXERR
B R Ko i T
188 iy
MEMS Drive, Inc. (Note 2) The United States 17.46% N/A Development and sales
(“MEMS Drive”) EH @A of MEMS actuator
MEMS Drive, Inc. (FfzE2) MEMSHE )25 1) f 2 62
(TMEMS Drive]) HE
Zhejiang Zhenxing Yiqi Yibiao Co., The PRC 12.50% N/A Provision of consulting
Ltd. (Note 3) (“Zhenxing Yiqi”)  FAE T and information
LR B F S EEBREERA services in the PRC
(MaE3) ([HRE 2R ) EhBERERARES
BR 75
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

On 17 January 2014, the Group had entered into a joinder
agreement to join as another purchaser in the Purchase
Agreement with MantisVision relating to the purchase of 200,711
Series B Preferred Shares of MantisVision at a consideration of
US$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB6,107,000). The
investment in MantisVision had been completed on 22 January
2014. As the investment in MantisVision represents less than
5% of attributable equity interest held by the Group and that the
Group has no controlling power or significant influence over the
management and the operation of MantisVision, the investment
in MantisVision is classified as available-for-sale investments by
the Group.

On 19 September 2014, the Group signed an agreement for the
purchase of an aggregate volume of 710,723 Series A Preferred
Stock of the MEMS Drive for a consideration of US$7,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB46,088,000). As the investment
in MEMS Drive represents less than 18% of attributable equity
interest held by the Group and that the Group has no controlling
power or significant influence over the management and the
operation of MEMS Drive, the investment in MEMS Drive is
classified as available-for-sale investments by the Group.

On 26 September 2014, the Group acquired 12.5% equity
interest in Zhenxing Yigi through acquisition of Sunny Group
Limited (Note 31). As the investment in Zhenxing Yiqi represents
12.5% of attributable equity interest held by the Group and
that the Group has no controlling power or significant influence
over the management and the operation of Zhenxing Yiqi, the
investment in Zhengxing Yiqi is classified as available-for-sale
investments by the Group.

19. AMEHERE (&

s

fizE2

PFIEES

RZT—NFEF—A+ER ~EHA
MantisVision#t LA X &1,000,000% 7T
(BERH AR ¥6,107,000T) B B
H200,711AXBH Il 18 & IR 51 32 Bt & 1
FZOUERS—BEANMAEERHZ - B
MantisVision® & E E R =T — M F —
A=+ ZB5K - B MMantisVision
WIE B AEE BN EGER D R5%
B KN & B P MantisVisionf £ 375 $) 1 A
HHEBREBEWRSEATE N ¥R
MantisVision®)1& & D AR EE A A
HHERE -

RZT—MFENALA+NAA  AEEFIA
K 187,500,000 7t (FHERH AR
46,088,0007C) # BEMEMS Drived #
710,723RAR S B LR E T HZE - AR
FAMEMS Drive®)3& & 15 48 5 B35 5 K g
iz DM 18% B AL B MMEMS Drive
VEEFEEHEEEREETESEX
TS HWHMEMS Drivety 18 B D IR
AREENIHEEIRE -

MR-ZZB—MEHLAZ+/B KNEBEE
WU RE T T & B A R A R U IR o (% 28
12.5%B% #E (P 5E31) o B A P Ik B 44 22
MIREMAEBRF AR EIEEEN12.5%
BEAREERREERTETGIEALYH
EREREETEEATEN RN IRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2074 &% — E—py#E+—H=+—HIFEZF

20.INVENTORIES 20. 78
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTTT
Raw materials B ¥t 207,596 135,475
Work in progress £ 29,780 20,505
Finished goods £4A in 658,317 611,935
895,693 767,915

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES NEFRHEMENRERTEN

AND PREPAYMENT FRIE
2014 2013
—E—F —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables & 5 EUGR18 1,509,256 790,263
Less: allowance for doubtful debts J& : RER B # (5,953) (3,552)
1,503,303 786,711
Bill receivables fEUR =% 777,437 298,187
Other receivables and prepayment £ fth f& UG08 [ F8 15 5008
Value added tax and other tax receivables [& W% {E 3 K H b & W £ 18 12,995 22,112
Individual income tax receivable from employees FE U1 8 & A FT1EHE 24,145 21,463
Advance to suppliers Zvt it fE 75 28 23,214 14,186
Interest receivables J&U K & 4,831 1,338
Prepaid expenses TEfFI X2 20,728 11,348
Others EAth 21,816 16,457
107,729 86,904

Total trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 N EL R W GRIA K FR A SR IB R 2,388,469 1,171,802
Non-current asset JEREEE
Other receivable £ th & 7718

Advance to Yuyao City Government (Note)

Bk A RBUSIE (MiEE) - 13,000
Deposits paid for acquisition of a land use right (Note)

FUEE i (F AR S MEE (FsE) 27,033 =




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENT (Continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2012, Sunny Opotech, a
subsidiary of the Group, advanced funds of RMB13,000,000 to
the Yuyao City Government for land development expenditure
cost to be incurred for the demolition and resettlement work.
The advance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is repayable
when the piece of land was put into public auction. During
the current year, the Group was successful in acquiring the
land use right at the public auction at a cash consideration
of RMB27,033,000 which has been paid by the Group and
disclosed as the deposit paid for acquisition of a land use right
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2014. The advance of RMB13,000,000 is refunded
by the Yuyao City Government during the current year. The
management expected that the land use right will be obtained
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group allows a credit period from 60 to 90 days to its trade
customers and 90 to 180 days for bill receivables. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the end
of reporting period, which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates.

REBEE-T——F+=-A=+—HItF
B AEEWBARRFTLERFTER
T E T VRS E & M 1+ i B 2 AR AN 6] 8 6
mARBT2AE S AKRH13,000,000
T RZETHAHBER BNAE
ER GRERAEE RAFE K&
ERAHEE LRIUNREREARE
27,083,000c W B L (F A #E - ZE
HEEAAEEINMN R =ZFT—WF
TZA=+—BHREVBRRERPE
BABRWB M EREEIAHRS -
BUTARBBRAFEREZEAR
%£13,000,0007T 1) # 5% » & 12 [E 78 Hi 5%
TiEAEEREBEE T —HFE+_A
=+—HILFEES-

AEEGTE S EFOREIORNEER -
N6 T EWEEIOKRE180KMEEH - M
TARBREHREREEZR (B a0k

RAMAEE) 208 FEWFIE (KRR
BRI ) MBRER DA -

2014 2013
—E—NmF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥EFTT
Within 90 days 90K AN 1,472,709 775,192
91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 28,518 10,239
Over 180 days 180KJA £ 2,076 1,280
1,503,303 786,711
Ageing of bill receivables at the end of reporting period is as R EARNERERRRAOT ¢
follows:
2014 2013
—ZT-mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
Within 90 days 90 KA 694,421 272,368
91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 83,016 25,819
777,437 298,187

)
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND PREPAYMENT (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits for
the customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once
a year. 98% (2013: 99%) of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have the best credit attributes assessed
by the Group.

The Group has made specific allowance for certain receivables
which are past due but with ageing less than 365 days based on
an evaluation of the collectability of each receivable and provided
fully for all receivables over 365 days because historical experience
is such that receivables that are past due beyond 365 days are
generally not recoverable.

After assessment of impairment on individual balances, included
in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB30,594,000 (2013: RMB11,519,000)
which are past due at the end of the reporting period but not
considered impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. The average age of these receivables is as follow.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

.f%&ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂ&%ﬁﬁ

KM

/:j_t(A I;\ ( Il?-E )

i

BEWNEMTERA - AEBSTHBERP
MNEEEERATHEELR  WEFEZ
—REBEFEELR - BREAEEHNTGE -
98% (—ZE—=1F : 99%) WZ 5 UK IERE
RO ERE  ERTRER °

AEBEEFHSEWFENTYE S  ®E
T %0 218 BR % 7T B 1365 K HY B U 3R IB 1E
FrRIEE AR BIBEBRTAR  AHEA
365K K E MR IE — M B AW E - iR & E
B 5L AT B A B B 365 K M) JE IR IBIE H 2
B -

AHA E R EERRER - ARBERE 5 RUGK
HBRENEEHRE B 50 UK R AR E AR
BEARM30,594,000C (ZE—=F: AR
%11,5619,0007T) * 1M 7% F BRI | AR /508
B AEEYENZFEHRT A TAER
i o X FRWFIATHREMT -

B EERENE 5 B FIRKER

2014 2013

—ZE—MF —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARBTTT

91 to 180 days 91 AE 180k 28,518 10,239
Over 180 days 180KJA £ 2,076 1,280
Total &5t 30,594 11,519
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENT (Continued)

21.

BR A

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREE# &

2014 2013

—ZE—MF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTT
Balance at beginning of the reporting period & 8145 &4 3,552 1,714
Impairment losses recognised on receivables & & /Y & U 5k T8 8 (B E5 18 7,757 4,830
Impairment losses reversed Ji {E 518 £ [2l (5,356) (2,992)
Balance at end of the reporting period %5 B K 45 &8 5,953 3,552

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts made for the year
are individually impaired trade receivables with a balance of
RMB5,953,000 (2013: RMB3,552,000) which might be in financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

ENTRUSTED LOAN RECEIVABLES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group entered into
entrusted loan arrangements with banks, in which the subsidiaries
acted as the entrusting parties to provide funding to specified
corporate borrowers, unrelated to the Group. The entrusted loan
held by the Group as of the year end date was current and due
within one year, borne fixed interest rate of 10.7% per annum.
During the current year, the entrusted loan receivables were
settled in full by the borrower.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT
TERM FIXED DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES

Bank balances, represent saving accounts and deposits, carry
interest at market saving rates at 0.35% (2013: 0.35%) per annum
while short term fixed deposits and pledged bank deposits carry
fixed interest rate ranging from 3.08% to 3.38% (2013: N/A) per
annum and Nil (2013: 4.30% to 5.50%) per annum, respectively.
Short term fixed deposits have an original maturity date less than
one year and therefore classified as current assets.

22

23.

FRAREBEHERLECRENEREZ S EK
FIE - A AR¥S5,053,000 (ZE—=
F: AR¥3,552,0007T) ' % ERANES
ATIBEPA AR IR - REEW BB ZEL
HIFHEMIEEG -

ZitEREWFIA

HE-_ZT-—=F+_"A=+—HLEE K&K
SERRITIVELERTH  EFHEBR
AEREZRT  MEREEWEBENSTTE
TEERARERE AEERFLEARF
ENZAERANBER—FANES &
10.7%HEEFFEFT B - RAFE » £t
ERERGRIERERABEZA

EEMBITEREHEH
FRMITEER

IRITHEBIERERPS RFH  180.35% (=
T—=%F:0.35%) WM I HEFREN=E
R BETEBMERREEBRITEROF
&5 5 BN F3.08%%E3.38% (=T —=
F:TNER) RE(ZZT—=F : 1 F4.30%
£550%) c M EHFEREINHBE LR —
F-EAmMEIEARBEE -
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24, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES/FINANCIAL
ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Derivative financial assets and liabilities
At the end of the reporting period, the Group held certain

derivatives classified as held for trading and not under hedge
accounting as follows:

FESHEERAE B
ABHABRNEMEE

(a) TTEEMEERER

RMEMR AEERFEETHERE
EEERRZE MR STEREEMITAET
BT

Assets Liabilities
BE 8f&

2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=F —E—-nmF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥TTT ARBT T AR¥TFTT
Foreign currency forward contracts (Note 1)

EHIMES K (FHEE1) 8,483 - 8,912 -
Foreign currency options contracts (Note 2)

SNEE EBARE S 4 (MHEE2) - - 2,472 -

Total #2%8 8,483 - 11,384 -

Less: current portion J& : BNEAEE 5

Foreign currency forward contracts (Note 1)

EHSNES A (1) 5,307 - 6,007 -
Foreign currency options contracts (Note 2)

SNE EBRRE S 4 (MHEE2) - - 2,472 -

5,307 - 8,479 -

Non-current portion FERIEFZ(45 3,176 - 2,905 =
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24, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES/FINANCIAL
ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(a) Derivative financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Note:

1)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group held a series of foreign
currency forward contracts to sell USD and buy RMB with a
weighted average forward exchange rate of USD:RMB at 1:6.16*
at an aggregated notional amount of USD50,000,000 (2013:
N/A). The foreign currency forward contracts were recognised
as derivative financial assets at their fair value of RMB8,483,000
as at 31 December 2014. Furthermore, the Group held a series
of foreign currency forward contracts to buy USD and sell RMB
with an weighted average forward exchange rate of USD:RMB
at 1:6.17* at an aggregated notional amount of USD61,000,000
(2013: N/A).
recognised as derivative financial liabilities at their fair value of
RMB8,912,000 as at 31 December 2014.

The foreign currency forward contracts were

All the foreign currency forward contracts would be settled at
their respective maturity dates from 10 April 2015 to 10 March
2016.

*  Weighted average forward exchange rate represented the
average RMB:USD or USD:RMB exchange rate weighted by
their notional amounts.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group held a foreign currency
barrier option (the “Option”) in relation to RMB:USD. The Option
was recognised as derivative financial liabilities at its fair value of
RMB2,472,000 as at 31 December 2014. The Option contained
a strike rate of RMB:USD at 6.25:1 and a barrier rate of
RMB:USD at 6.30:1. The aggregate amount of the Option was
USD52,000,000 and would be matured in November 2015.
The Option would be settled in twenty six times from 11
December 2014 to 27 November 2015 at a notional amount of
USD2,000,000 on each settlement date.
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T RHE R B1.6.16" BEESHE
£50,000,000%€ L (ZZE—=F: 7@
M) - R—ZT—WmW&E+-_A=+—H " &
HBAONE & KR E A 2 B A R ¥8,483,000
TTHERBTESREE ° I RNEME
BE—ZRIERMIESEHABEAZTR
EHARE  Hexoi ARB & INE
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24, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS 24. £T

/2N
&

AND LIABILITIES/FINANCIAL
ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b) Financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

During the current year, the Group entered into several
contracts of structured deposits with banks. The structured
deposits contain embedded derivatives which were not closely
related to the host contracts. The entire combined contracts
have been designated as at financial assets at FVTPL on initial
recognition. Except for the principal of RMB25,000,000 (2013:
RMB565,000,000) which was guaranteed by the relevant
banks, the remaining principal of RMB349,946,000 (2013:
RMB418,000,000) was not guaranteed by the relevant banks
in which the return of the structured deposits was determined
by reference to the performance of certain government debt
instruments and treasury notes and the expected return rate
stated in the contracts ranges from 2.25% to 6.20% (2013:
2.39% to 6.30%) per annum.

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the structured
deposits at 31 December 2014 approximated their principal
amounts, and the fair value of the embedded derivatives is
insignificant. At the date the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue, structured deposits amounting to
approximately RMB213,981,000 (2013: RMB773,000,000)
have been matured after the reporting period ended 31
December 2014 at their principal amounts together with
returns which approximated the expected return. The
remaining principal amounts together with the expected
returns will be received by the Group when the structured
deposits mature during the year ended 31 December 2015.

D\
i} \)

(b) &

B S HE
Tt
g |
>
i

To
=)
s
mt

N

AREFABENEREE

RAFE  AEBERTRETERE
MEREH ZEERBEGTREERE
EHTEINEBAORATETIR - 2
BEHEHNEVIERBEETERK
DABEFABENEREE - BRASA
R #25,000,000c (ZZE—=F: AR
#565,000,0007T) 2 B A B iR 17 & %
AN TR AN & A R #349,946,0007T (=
T — =% : AR¥418,000,0007t) &
BEBRITER  ZIH&BEERL
W IR EE THRAER TARBEES
MERRET  AHTPHBEHFREEN
F2.25%%6.20% 2 B (ZF — =
2.39%%E6.30%) °

iémﬁ' RZT—NF+=—A=+—
RBUEFERONARERERSES
m)\mEIEE’J AREBHMTIEE R
REMBRERETER  HARK
213,981,000 (ZZE—=%F: AR¥
773,000,0007T) # B M F R A &
FREBARSEENREERNEE=S
—ME+=-A=+—A It REHMEE
Hle BT ASEREHREEHAER
REBEE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HLHF
BB TR EEKE -



25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
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25. B 5 R EMESTE

The following is an aged analysis of trade and note payables UWTARBREHAREREEZEANE ZEAR
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting T8 & B IR BRER D AT ©
period.
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —=—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Current Liabilities R E & &
Trade payables & 5 FE {5078
Within 90 days 90K AR 1,000,589 713,303
91 to 180 days 91 AE180K 74,127 82,913
Over 180 days 180K = 5,676 11,929
Accrued purchases fEFTERIEEE 85,808 99,972
Total trade payables & 5 fE{f FRIB 4258 1,166,200 908,117
Note payables &+ =&
Within 90 days 90K AR 212,050 20,822
91 to 180 days 91 AE180K - 25,453
212,050 46,275
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment
BEMX MBS LRERMNRE 40,381 32,104
Payable for acquisition of assets (Note 3)U 8 & E /B 308 (K17£3) 4,233 -
Staff salaries and welfare payables JEft & T4 K1zl 168,714 133,984
Advance from customers & P 8t ZUIE 16,635 10,048
Value added tax payables and other tax payables
JE S SR (B A5 Ko At A< T3 R 87,727 51,943
Technology grant payables (Note 1) BRI BN % (HizE1) 1,670 8,606
Commission payables FEfHA & 18,193 24,779
Payables for repair of property, plant and equipment (Note 2)
BB - MBS RRBENFIE (FiEE2) - 24,529
Accrued research and development expenses [&&Hiff 25 X2 14,838 =
Others EAth 13,831 16,794
366,222 302,787
1,744,472 1,257,179
Non-current liability 7B & &
Other payable E fth &~ F8
Payable for acquisition of assets (Note 3) Y iE & &= {18 (Fi:E3) 9,537 -
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 5. B 5 REMENIE (&)
(Continued)
Note 1: Sunny Hengping, a subsidiary of the Company, cooperated with Mzt ARRMBARRFEFHRFREE T
several business partners to perform development and research BRHEERBRSHRNEMAOHREE
projects on hi-tech products. The technology grant payables B - BRI SEREMER T W
represent the government grants received on behalf of other BEBAHEE -

business parties.

Note 2: During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group made a feo: BHE_T—=F+=ZA=+—HLEF
provision of RMB25,842,000 in relation to the repair expenses B AEER T =ZF+AEEN
on damaged property, plant and equipment due to typhoon and RRMELEHREENZEYE %
flooding accident occurred in October 2013. REZENREEHIARBEARSE

25,842,0007T °

Note 3: The balance represents the unpaid cash consideration for the MEES : Rz&EsRTHIERBEOMSE E (MisE13) Mk
acquisition of assets from OMS (Note 13) which were unsecured TRHBEERE REERREE - B
and interest free. According to the relevant agreements, the HEm= AEBESTFERRER
Group is required to settle the purchase consideration in 5 yearly B EE-RXARERZZ—N\F -

instalments, with the last payment in 2018.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days ERRENTHEEHAROX (ZTE—=
(2013: 90 days) and the credit period for note payables is 90 days F:90K) REMNEHRMEEH AIOKE
to 180 days (2013: 90 days to 180 days). The Group has financial 180K (ZZE— =4 : 90K E180K) - & &
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are BEEERMBRAREEBR  UERFIERE
settled within the credit timeframe. RNFEREEBRX A -
= N\ = Sa A 3¢ &
26. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON- 26. Y By B 1 Rl SR IR B FX
CONTROLLING INTEREST OF A b= |
SUBSIDIARY
The amount was unsecured, bears fixed interest rate at 2% per FERN A BEIERRIZE T ENKR2%TE
annum and repayable on demand. BZERERKREE -
-
27. BORROWINGS 07, 1
2014 2013
—E-pmE =5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
Secured bank loans B IHEITE K - 2,857
Unsecured bank loans EEFRITER 521,571 486,072
521,571 488,929
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27. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all bank borrowings are to
be repayable by the Group within one year after the end of the
reporting period and are shown under current liabilities for both
years.

The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate and variable-rate
borrowings and the contractual maturity dates are as follows:

e P BwRME

—mEFZA=1—HILFE

21. 5 8 ()

RZZE—WNFER_TE—=F+=A=+—
B FAERITEEHEAANEBRERSHR
B —FANEE  REMEFEINTRRE

BEET -
AEBEEMERAZMNENEERRRE
ABEREBENT :

2014 2013
—E2-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Fixed-rate borrowings: Bl M X EE

Within one year —F R 521,571 407,656

Variable-rate borrowings: A] & F|REE :
Within one year —F A - 81,273
Total 48%8 521,571 488,929
As at 31 December 2013, the Group has variable-rate borrowings R-ZZE—=F+-"HA=+—H XEFHA

which carry interest at prevailing market rate of 2.02% per annum.

The weighted average effective interest rates (which are equal
to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as

ERREEUERTSENEGF2.02%:T 8 °

AR EEE R IEFHERAE
MR ZE) E

(HERAE

follows:
2014 2013
—E2-NF =%
Fixed-rate loan [&E A% & 5% 2.02% 2.07%
Variable-rate loan 7] # || & & 7 - 2.02%
The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other REBUBBEER TR EE I &K
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are SENEEENT -
set out below:
2014 2013
=F-mF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®T R ARETTT
United States Dollar (“USD”) 7T 521,571 486,988

~

S)
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. Bg 7
Number of
shares Amount Equivalent to
R EE L HER
HK$’000 RMB’000
FHET ARBTT
Authorised: JA7E
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 1 January 2013,
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014
R=2-=F-F—B —2-=F+=A
—+t—BFk-_ZT—WNF+-_A=+—H
FIREE.10B Ay & @ A% 100,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued & fully paid: B2 317 R & 2 :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 1 January 2013
RZZE—=F—A—HREMBEC10ETH MK 1,000,000,000 100,000 97,520
Issued of new shares (Note) B #7758 (FIE) 97,000,000 9,700 7,657
At 31 December 2013 and 2014
RIE—=FK_ZE-—NF+-_A=+—H 1,097,000,000 109,700 105,177

Note: On 7 October 2013, the Company, a controlling shareholder
and the placing agent entered into a placing and subscription
agreement, in which, the controlling shareholder agreed to sell
97,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each and sold at a
price of HK$8.06 (equivalent to RMB6.36) each to several third
party placees. The Company then issued additional 97,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each and sold at a price of HK$8.06
(equivalent to RMB6.36) each to the controlling shareholder
and the new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in
all respects. The proceeds from the subscription were used to
optimise production capacity expansion, future development and
general working capital of the Company.

29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 27, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and
other reserves.

fizx: MZT—=F+AtB AQ7 —%
ERBREERERBITIVEERRE
W Bt BRBRERERLEEE
=HAREALESREE10% TH
97,000,000% ¥ i % - B 1% = 5 1%8.06
BT (HER AR¥e.367L) « Hi& -
RAREITEINFRE B0 TTHY
97,000,0000% ¥ @ % - 1% 5 §%8.067%5
T (HEERARYEG.367T) NEKHET
ERIRR - REFIRMES A EEIE AR
NEBRSHER - ZRBIEENBX
B AREBEERER  AREREKA
REIN—REEES -

2. EXRE M EE

AEBEEERER  BERRENNER RE
SAER - NERAKEE T RAREHFEL
2 RERRAER - ANKE B ERAE
EFHER -

AEENEARBEARBEFR (BRERHE
IR EENEE (HRRERBASFER
B)) RARBBRREGED (BRERTK
A RSN R EA ) AKX o
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29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt
or the repayment of existing debts.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

==

0. EXAETE (8§

EEBLFREEARE - FATRREN

HEIEE A HHREE

MER - REEBFNER  AKERKEEX
MRS -~ BT R RO BRI REITHE
SEEREEBRTEEEBEARES -

0. £/ T A

a. EMIASE

2014 2013
—E-NmEF —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Financial assets & @ £Z&
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalent)
ERKEWFIE (BEReRREEEER) 2,835,701 1,945,136
Available-for-sale investments A fftH &% & 52,279 -
FVTPL RA S EFT AR s 374,946 983,000
Derivative financial assets #1744 G4 & 8,483 -
3,271,409 2,928,136
Financial liabilities % @2 &
Liabilities measured at amortised cost & # 5 At ER A & 1,905,699 1,428,908
Derivative financial liabilities $74 ¢ @& & 11,384 -
1,917,083 1,428,908

~

=\
&/
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 0.2 T EHE (&)

(Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. M¥RAKREREBERBER

=3
8/

&

\&

policies

The Group’s financial instruments include derivative financial
assets/liabilities, available-for-sale investments, trade and
other receivables, entrusted loan receivables, amounts with
related parties, financial assets designated as at FVTPL, short
term fixed deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, amount due to a non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and borrowings. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (foreign currency risk, other price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure
relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

rEENSRIARETESREE/
BE - AHEERE EH5REMEK
RIE - REEREYGOR - BEAEAL
ZHEMFIA  HMAIABEFABZNE R
BE RYEHEFER CEWRTHE
FROTERERE EHREMEN
RIA - EATHE R BFE R EKIRA R
B8 - EMTAMNFBEHRNBREME -
HzEFeRTAEENRAREEMSEA
R (SN R B ~ LA (B A% L B 2 ) =
®) FERARNREBE SRR - REZ
FRBMBRFIINTIX  EEERR
EEMEREZFRR  BELSRREA
I ©

AEETRTANRRIEERAER
B O SRS I B KNS -

(6o

= )

PN

m‘

R-ZE—ME+-_A=+—H0 BEX5H
HFREBTEAESRAEERZ TG
BENEXEERR  TRAGEHH
MRFFISHEERREMEENRET
18

RAEEEERR  AREEEED RIK
EEGKM AREEEERE  FEHE
EREMEFERERF  URARKIUEE K
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Before accepting any new entrusted loan borrower, the Group
assesses the credit quality of each potential entrusted loan
borrower.

The credit risks on liquid funds and derivative financial assets
are limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group has concentration of credit risk as 15% (2013: 19%)
and 52% (2013: 49%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. The top five customers represent
over 50% (2013: 49%) of the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2014. The Directors, the associates and the
shareholders have no interest in the customers mentioned
above. The largest five customers’ manufacturing facilities
are located in the PRC and their principal activities are
manufacturing of smartphones and optoelectronic related
products.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had concentration of
credit risk on its entrusted loan receivables as all of the total
entrusted loan receivables was due from the Group’s one
entrusted loan borrower equally. The borrower was an PRC
private entity engaged in utility and manufacturing. The credit
risk on entrusted loan receivables was limited by the assets
pledged to the Group or the guarantee granted to the Group
by related companies of the borrower.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group has
concentration of credit risk on its structured deposit
designated as at FVTPL. The credit risk on structured deposit
designated as at FVTPL is limited by the underlying assets of
the structured deposits being PRC government related debt
instruments and treasury notes.

0. &R T H (&

BEEERE B FEREGR (F)

FEmERE (5B
RERTAHFZEERERAR - A&
BedEsBaZaERERANEER
Bx-

HRXSEFHREEFRRIFHR
T BEERDEERTEEREERN
EERBRER -

BRRETEEFRRITHNIRITERNR
PESTFREEESRRERIN KEES
EEESTRAR BRAAEERLZEFE
WHkIER - ZABRFEAAKREFE DR
515% (ZE—=F : 19%) &52% (=
T—=fF 1 49%) - FIARFPIEEHE=
E—NE+-_A=F+—HIFERAR
50% (CE—=4F :49%) - 25 HE
ARBERN Eill® P EE (s o
MARBEPMEERBMLNTRH  Hx
BEBARETRETFRELEEAER

R-B—=F+_"A=+—08 A&E
AEAEREURRENAZEEEHE
B BREAEBAZTERERZKE
b —REXERERALEIL - B
HTABFRAREERREENLAE
o R ERERFENEERREE
HARBERARER T EAEBENEELE
FAREENERMBER -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 0.2 T HE (&)

(Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. EKREEBEERBEER (&)

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on its deposit for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment as 34% (2013:
39%) of the total deposit for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment was paid to the Group’s largest three suppliers of
property, plant and equipment. The credit risk on the deposits
paid is limited as these suppliers are large construction
enterprises in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Other than the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

Market risks

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the market risks
of interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. Market risk
exposures are further measured by sensitivity analysis. Details
of each type of market risks are described as follows:

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank deposits (see Note 23 for details of these deposits)
and variable-rate borrowings (see Note 27 for details of these
borrowings).

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 27 for details
of these borrowings), entrusted loan receivables (see Note
22 for details of these receivables), short term fixed deposits
and pledged bank deposits (see Note 23 for details of these
deposits) and amount due to a non-controlling interest of
a subsidiary (see Note 26 for details of this balance). The
Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

(215 2 A/ 4E )
1= EEfE (&)

AEBERBEME  HERREOES
MEAZEESTRR ERAKEDH
AI=ZAME BEhkRXEBHERATE
EME  BBLRREEIZEH34% (ZF
—=%F :39%) - ENEENEERRE
ZEHRERRTERBEEALEENA
mEAR

B E XAt E S REEYL EE M EK
FESTRR  HRARRERT BN
SEHFHREFPZH -

33

7755 /2 %

AEEERBOERTHRER SN XELR
K ONE R o T 5 R R — IR SRR
DITEE ° AT RBEMHRARFFS

A= R

AEBREBITER (REFERFBRME
23) AT REE (ZFEEFERH
i27) MASRE REMN KRR

AEBETRBEEMERITEE (ZFEBE
FHIERME27) - ZREEFEWIR (%
FRWFRFHITE R E22) - REIEHF
REEERRITER (REFHFBERLW
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

0. &R T H (&

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MXEREEBZERBER ()

policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group did not have variable rate borrowing as at
31 December 2014 and is not exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk was mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of floating interest rate in Korea, Hong Kong and the PRC with
the effective interest rate of 2.02% per annum arising from
the Group’s Korean Wan (“KRW”) and United States Dollar
(“USD”) denominated borrowings as at 31 December 2013.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to floating interest rates from variable-rate
bank borrowings at the end of each reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the bank borrowings at variable
rates outstanding at the end of each reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used to present the reasonably possible change
in interest rates at the year end.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2013 would decrease/increase
approximately by RMB340,000.

The sensitivity analysis on the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk of bank deposit is not performed as the management
considers the exposure to these risks is insignificant.

w5 mE (&)
=R (&)
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

0. £/ TH (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. XEKREEBEERBER (F)

policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in debt securities classified as financial assets
designated as at FVTPL. The management considers the other
price risk is insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis
on such risk has been prepared. However, the management
will closely monitor such exposure and consider hedging such
exposure should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes certain foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Certain of the Group’s bank and cash balances, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities and expose to such
foreign currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and utilising foreign currency forward contracts
and foreign currency option contracts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies

= +8 [F] fe 455 )
Mz & E (A8 )

H b B R 2

BEBOBEREERBAAEFAEBER
TREENBEHESRE  AKEHY
HERRERR - EEERR  HMER
REERMTRER - Fi X REZER
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ERnERR  XEATEREEBEH T
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SN 8 ez
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PEEBe o NEBEE TRTRASER
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ERNNNERHERmE B BINER
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denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the BEEREEEERNIREME
end of the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2014 2013 2014 2013
—g-mz -3 =& —g-mE T -
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT ARMT T ARBTFTT
USD %7t 430,196 268,247 723,497 670,799
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) H 21,820 84 218 380
Euros (“EUR”) BT 8,328 6,953 = =
HKD 77T 4,512 4,173 - -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in USD, JPY, EUR
and HKD against RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
change in respective functional currencies against the relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end date for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates.

A positive (negative) number below indicates an increase
(decrease) in post-tax profit where the respective functional
currencies strengthen 5% against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 5% weakening of the respective functional
currencies against the relevant currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit.

0. €I A (&)

b. ¥¥EKREEEZERBE (8)

= A g )
e ()

BURE DT

AEENTREBRMKEERT  HE - B
TERBTLEAREHE XK

TR F AR R B B AR
W/ BHEER BB  BAE T
BB IE N R A H N EE AR -
A R BB 4 B R 4 A D S SR 96 T £
0 -

THES (B2 KERBEEE L
SN T 1E.5% 1T 28 B BR B 18 0 7138 o0 Ot
D) IBER - WMENEEER AR RE
5% @ AIGHBRRERENEFEERNE
.

Profit for the year

FR=F
2014 2013
—E2-F —T—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR¥EFTT
USD (Note) 7t (KizE) 12,465 17,108
JPY H (918) 13
EUR BT (354) (296)
HKD %7t (192) (177)

Note:  This is mainly attributable to the exposure to bank balances,
outstanding receivables and borrowings denominated in
foreign currency of USD at the year end.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 0.2 T EHE (&)

(Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MXEREEBZERBUER ()

=3
3

&

e

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group has net current assets amounting to approximately
RMB1,907,601,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB1,984,470,000), and has low exposure to liquidity risk
of being unable to raise sufficient funds to meet its financial
obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period from the balance
sheet date to their maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, based
on floating interest rate or exchange rates (where applicable)
prevailing at the balance sheet date.

REBE LR

AEBR-_ZE-—NE+_A=+—AH
TENE EIFELN A AR,907,601,000
T (ZE—=%F: AK®1,984,470,000
L) MAREKEESTHESFENHS
BMAEENRDESRARBEER -

REERDECRR AKREEENE
REBABRRRRANR e RAEEFE
HE RAEAKEMNZEEES RRER
ERETRENTE -
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RS AR BB NENEAEE SR
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

—mEFZA=+—HILFE

0. R T H (&)

b. MBEMREEBZERBX (

b. Financial risk management objectives and &)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEE TR (&)
Liquidity tables MENE R FIFK
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 3 months 1year undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year to 5 years cash flows amount
T RER
ERRIZ =fHAR Z=fRE-£ -F2EF BERELH REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETE  ARETRT  ARETE  ARETT  ARETR:
As at 31 December 2014 R=E—/WE+-F=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 £MEE
Trade and other payables & 5 & Lt fef 58 = 1,371,881 3,179 6,358 1,381,418 1,381,418
Amounts due to related parties & A 308 - 3,010 - - 3,010 3,010
Borrowings {5 & 2.02% - 531,800 - 531,800 521,271
1,374,891 534,979 6,358 1,916,228 1,905,699
Derivative financial liabilities 74 B E &
Forward foreign exchange contracts EZIMNEAH] - - 6,007 2,905 8,012 8,912
Foreign currency option contracts SMNE Ei#EA 4) - - 2,472 - 2,472 2,472
- 8,479 2,905 11,384 11,384
Total #5t 1,374,891 543,458 9,263 1,927,612 1,917,083
As at 31 December 2018 R=F—=#1=-H=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 £RE &
Trade and other payables 2 5 & £ b fE (78 = 936,708 = = 936,708 936,703
Amounts due to related parties fE(TEE#E A T708 - 3,044 = = 3,044 3,044
Amount due to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary FE{ i & 2 FIFEE R E R FIB 2.00% 232 - - 232 232
Borrowings f& & 2.07% - 499,050 - 499,050 488,929
939,979 499,050 - 1,439,029 1,428,908

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from
the estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

T 27 8 B L 1 2 Do B 0 R £
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

C.

Fair
instruments

value measurements of financial

0. &R T H (&

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial

liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Financial assets

THEE

Fair value as at

RATRBNAAE

31 December 2014
“E-mE+=ZA=1-H

31 December 2013
“®-ZFt-A=t-H

c. TMITAMNDARETNE

A FEREAEENMEE NR S BE
ERCRBEAIABNERER -

BAEE M BEL RN BT EN A EE T
BEERETHMBIEHAAE

Fair value
hierarchy

RAESR

Valuation technique
and key inputs
HEERTERAHE

Financial assets designated
as at FVTPL

BAREHARGNEREE

Foreign currency forward
contracts classified as
derivatives financial assets
and liabilities

PRRITEEREERARRN
2ENERD

Bank deposits in the PRC with
non-closely related embedded
derivatives: RMB374,946,000

BEERBENRAITET
AR ERTEN  ARK
374,946,000t

Current and non-current
derivative financial assets:
RMB8,483,000

Current and non-current

derivative financial liabilities:

RMB8,912,000
RBRIFRBITEEHEE
AR¥8,483,0007C

RBRFERDIEEHAE
AK#8,912,0007

Bank deposits in the PRC with  Level 3
non-closely related embedded
derivative: RMB983,000,000

BEERBENRAITET
RO ERTEN  ARK
983,000,000t

Current and non-current
derivative financial assets:
RMBNIl

Current and non-current
derivative financial liabilities:
RMBNIl

MBRIERBITESREE -
AREET

RBRFERDIEEHEE
ARBETL

Level 2

Discounted cash flows

Key unobservable inputs:

(1) expected yields of debt
instruments invested by
banks

(2) adiscount rate that
reflects the credit risk of
the banks (Note)

ARRENE

IENTBEEBANE

(1) RORERBLANES
Wz

Discounted cash flows

Key unobservable input:
A discount rate that reflects
the credit risk of the banks

BHRERE

IRTABRBARE
RBRFTEERRMOMBEAX
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 0. e T H (&)

(Continued)
c. Fair value measurements of financial c. ERTEMAARESE (8)
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial FLAE B M EEL N A EEE R R EE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEERTHBEENATE (B)
(Continued)
Fair value  Valuation technique
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs
tHEE RUTBEHAAE DAEZER REERTEBAAHE
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
—E-ME+=A=1+-H —2-=Z#+=-A=t+-H
Foreign currency option Current derivative financial Current derivative financial Level 2 Black-scholes model
contracts classified as liabilities: RMB2,472,000 liabilities: RMBNil
derivatives financial Key unobservable inputs:
liabilities (1) Volatility of the foreign
exchange rate
(2) A discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of
the banks
PREATESRAGENNESR RYTELREE: ARK TETESHERE: ARES  FR Hhz — S RIE
EaH 2,472,0007C T
FENHERGAHE :
(1) EX%E
() RERITEERRMER
Note: The Directors consider that the impact of the fluctuation in Mizx: ZFERA AREFIHARE -

BT ARG RBERNEE
MERNAAELBESAZE -
It 2 SIGURE AT -

expected yields of the debt instruments to the fair value of
the structured deposits was insignificant as the deposits
have short maturities, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 in the
period.

HRNFE— QB —f 2 ELEEE -

MRS RERIEL FEX - AFE
FBEFELENEDEAEREDES
F_REBUEFZNRIAEZDH AR
Wk EE AL EZINE=RAA
BEFFEMHER -

No gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss relating to
the change in fair value of structured deposits classified as
Level 3 in the current and prior year as the amount involved
is insignificant, and therefore no reconciliation of Level 3 fair
value measurements is presented.

EEZRANEEVBRREZNSHE
EXecRBEREEEEQAERE -

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.
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31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 3. WEE— R 2 Fl

2\
3/

&

e

On 15 August 2014, the Company, through Sunny Optics, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a conditional agreement with Sunny Nominees (as defined in
announcement of the Company dated 15 August 2014) to acquire
the entire equity interests of Sunny Group Limited (“Sunny Group”)
at a cash consideration of RMB351,372,000 (the “Acquisition”).
Sunny Group is established in the PRC and is principally engaged
in investment holding and property leasing.

The Directors considered that the Acquisition was beneficial to
the Company by expanding the production facilities, eliminating
of future continuing connected transactions and enhancing the
overall management effectiveness of the Group’s operations. The
Directors considered that the Acquisition is accounted for as an
acquisition of assets and assumption of liabilities.

Mr. Wang Wenjian, who is a non-executive Director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company, is one of the Sunny
Nominees and has more than 30% of effective equity interest
in Sunny Group. An extraordinary general meeting among the
independent shareholders of the Company was held on 22
September 2014 and the ordinary resolution in respect of the
Acquisition was passed. The Acquisition resulted in Sunny Group
becoming an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and was completed on 26 September 2014.

Acquisition-related cost were insignificant and were recognised
as an expenses in the year incurred within the “administrative
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

R-_ZE—NENA+HA  ARGBEBRT
KRB (KARRzHEZENBAR) BEFR
ZA(EERARRBHPA-_ZT—MFENA
THBZRAE) I —EBEGEHE - Ak
BRFEEERAT ([RFEE]) 22HK
- B RE A ARMS51,372,0007T ([Uk
BEE]) RFEENRTEKY  TERE
WEERRYIFEREZER

EERR/ WESHEABARABZEER
i BRRRETHEBERZRESASE
BEBCBEBEERE  HUHARAE
e BEZRR WEFABRARIEKREER
ERAEAE

o

RARERITESERFERREXESXED
RFREAZ - BRHERFEEBORE
BRARHE - AARIBYRRER =S —NF R
A+ ZHRITREFNAE  TRE LB
BEBKIEEE TBAESR WEEEE
SERFEEXNAARRAAICHAEZEMB AR
RERZZ—MNFRALAZTRETK °

WHERBKAY TEX  YERELFEE
mAEmkEMEERERN [1THFAX] A
THERRFAX



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(Continued)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

NIE—BHELR (&)

RREE ARFEERRIE

RMB’000
AR%T T
Non-current assets JER BN & &
Property, plant and equipment 4% - #2835 & 106,320
Prepaid lease payments 814 94,881
Investment in an associate R B & A F1IEE 60,930
Available-for-sale investment At H & 1& & 85
Current assets /i E & E
Other receivables £ fth fE U T8 20,776
Prepaid lease payments T8t & 2,681
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL (Note)
BAREFABRRNEREE (M) 165,800
Bank balances and cash 17455k M IR & 3,347
Current liabilities i) & f&
Other payables b & 5018 (4,454)
Dividend payable to Sunny Nominees
ER SR FREBAZRKRE (98,994)
351,372

The assets and liabilities were recognised and measured at their
relative fair value according to respective HKFRSs at acquisition
date. Property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
acquired through the Acquisition were located in the PRC under
medium-term lease and that the respective fair value had been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out by Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group. The
valuation was arrived at direct comparison approach by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the same locations and conditions; and, cost approach with
reference to the depreciated replacement costs.

BERABERENEERHNEETEY
BHREEAERLRESBZAAENE -
BRWBERBAZYE  BERREAR
BNESHURTE  WiEPHEERE -
BHEARENREBEAEEY BEELE
YABRBERMGEM P EBTREE R
ARRARETZAEEZR - EABETZ
ER - RETETRUMERZTERHE
RABRLEERSEREZTERAARAE
BRI

©
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31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

Note:

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL represent structured
deposits with banks. The structured deposits contain embedded
derivatives which were not closely related to the host contract.
The entire combined contracts have been designated as at
financial assets as at FVTPL on initial recognition. In the opinion
of the Directors, the fair value of the structured deposits as at
the date of acquisition approximated their principal amounts
and the fair value of the embedded derivatives is insignificant.
At as 31 December 2014, all structured deposits amounting to
approximately RMB165,800,000 have been matured at their
principal amounts together with returns which approximated the
expected return.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

NE—BHEBLR (&

BAREFABRRNEREERRTH
RBUHEEN - AEHEBUETREIEE
BHOTEIEBNRAITETE - 28
EHENENIERARCEERKRAA
B ABSNEREE - BEFRR 1
WEEAEBUEEROAAEEELR
ERE BRATEIANDABETE
ReRZZE-—WNE+-_A=+—H &
#H R A RH165,800,0007THIFT B 18
MR A £ E R 818 B S AR A R IR
BmEEH -

Wig FRELZHE it F5E

RMB’000
AR®T T
Consideration paid in cash &K (E 351,372
Less: Bank balances and cash 7 : $R{Té&68 RIRS (3,347)
348,025
32. COMMITMENTS 32. A Ife
2014 2013
—2—nmF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTTT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements
BETHERNGE M B RE B ERRREYE -
Hes Rk RIBNEARX 64,706 48,424
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33. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with

z«<.-é$ﬂ ’]
AEBEEAHEA

RBEHR  AEEER T RKRERS

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: R AT ART4Y
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Within one year —F X 833 385

Rental income represents rental receivables by the Group. Leases
are negotiated for a term of 1 to 2 years with fixed rentals.

HeBABEAEENREES - HOKLER
RN HEIA—EME  EMESEETE -

The Group as lessee AEBERAEEA
2014 2013
—E-NF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in profit or loss
REZPERNEEHORFEE SR 24,756 15,541

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

RBERR - AKRERBETAIMBELEED
BRI T 2R PR B 8 21 B RO AR B 1 S O R R &%

leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows: ERSNFEEDAT -
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Within one year —F X 15,601 16,066
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFHF N (BIEHEMF) 47,201 43,961
Over five years A 58,275 28,696
121,077 88,723

Operating lease payments represent rental payables by the Group
for premises used for production and operation. Leases are
negotiated for a term of 1 to 10 years and rentals are fixed over

the relevant lease terms.

REMONFTRAEERBIFLEEREEL
MERNNES - HOKLE®Z - HHA
—Z2 1% MENEREYAEE TE -

2

P
\&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2074 &% — E—py#E+—H=+—HIFEZF

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 4. RIKERIGTE

=
Y

@

3

2014 2013
—ZE—MF —ET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Retirement benefit scheme contribution made during the year
F R RAE R 8 K 50,429 35,148

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The Group also participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000 for the Group’s
Hong Kong employees. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. For employees who are members of the MPF Scheme,
the Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme
subject to a maximum of RMB1,188 (equivalent approximately
to HK$1,500) per month, which contribution is matched by the
employee.

AEE T HKHE QTN EEE 2077 BT
REMNBRERRAKENFE - ZFWER
AR TERABLRE B D LHRIRER
BRBFET A HR - AEBRZEIKEF
FHEIMME— R E R ZAT BIEH ERER -

AEENAEEREELNM_TTTHE+ A
1B 35 58 1 M A TE & 51 K B 3% 3 /9 38 Bl 1 2
BestE ([RESTE]) - RBESHENE
EBVRAEBREE  THRRBEIEAETE
MESD - AEERF BRESTEKENE
B2 EBH SR A% ML IR - LRA
FAARM1,1887T (FBERH1,50087T)
m{E 8 I YEFRFE LK o
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Names and relationships with related parties during the

BEAEALRS

(@ FABREALEBREFEALHWRAR

years are as follows:

Name

=L

Principal activities

EFRER

p(1 N

Relationship

e

Sunny Group (Note)
ST EE (M)

Ningbo Sunny Electronic Limited
(“Ningbo SST”)

ERATETERAT
([BRFEFRE])

Yuyao City Xingli Optics Instruments
Factory (“Xingli”)
BRI T B 7 B2 E3 R ([T )

Yuyao City Jiahua Optoelectronic
Components Factory (“Jiahua”)

PROETEE S ER MR ([EE])

Shanghai Shuangquan Scientific
Instruments Company Limited
(“Shuangquan”)

FeEENBREARAR ([£E])

HER T IRERA R
(“*Sunny Machinery”)
BERFBETHBRARAF ([FeTHM])

Investment holding
BB

Manufacture and sale of

telescopes and riflescopes
HERHEEREG R

Manufacture and sale
of parts for optical
instruments

EENMHEE R EREBIF

Manufacture and sale
of parts for optical
instruments

HERHE R RSRET

Distribution and sale of
scientific instruments

7 $H R S E R R 2R

Manufacture and sale of

telescopes and riflescopes
A RHE BIR 1R R AERS

A substantial shareholder of the
Company with significant influence on
the Group

RAFNFEFERR 2 —
(MAEEAFEATEN)

Company controlled by a close family
member of the Company’s director
and ultimate controlling shareholder,
Mr. Wang Wenijian

RRAFEERELIERBREENELE
sl 0FNC]

Company controlled by a close family
member of the Company’s director,
Mr. Ye Liaoning

RRAFESERELELRAZEFNQA

Company controlled by a close family
member of the Company’s director
and ultimate controlling shareholder,
Mr. Wang Wenjian

RRABIERRZRIERBRREXERE
sl 0F/NC]

Company controlled by a close family
member of the shareholder of Sunny
Hengping

SR FIE P RSSRFL R AR QA

Company controlled by a close family
member of the Company’s director
and ultimate controlling shareholder,
Mr. Wang Wenjian

RAREEREEIERBRRENESLE
AR AT HIEY R A
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

B.HAEALRS (&

(Continued)
(a) Names and relationships with related parties during the (a) FABEEALTBZBREBEALWER
years are as follows: (Continued) mE :(48)
Name Principal activities Relationship
28 FTEEK 22RES
Bk M E R B EEBRARF] Manufacture and sale Company controlled by a close family
([ZRENER ) of parts for optical member of the Company’s director,

Ningbo Sunny Mould Co,. Ltd.
(“Sunny Mould”)
EREFEARNERRA A

(TFHEA]D
Visiondigi
FBEE

Jiangsu Medical
RPN

Sunny Huitong
5k FHE A

instruments

HEEREE R RIERET

Manufacture and sale of
various precision moulds
for cars

EERHEESRRAE
BERE

Manufacture and sale of
closed circuit television

HEERHEMKRER

Manufacture and sales of
medical instruments
EEREEBEER

Provision of financing
service in Yuyao City,

Zhejing Province, the PRC
BT A%k TiZ g &

AR %%

Note: Sunny Group was acquired by the Group on 26 September

2014 and it is not considered a related party thereafter.

Mr. Ye Lianing with significant influence

on the Group
RARIESFEREREABRPAEGIHAR]

(HEXEEAFEATEN)

Company controlled by a family member
of the Company’s director and ultimate
controlling shareholder, Mr. Wang
Wenjian

RRARIEFREEERBRREXESER
BPTE SR A

An associate of the Group

ZAN S )k N

An associate of the Group
AN JET): L /NC]

An associate of the Group
NEEEEE QT

fier: BReEsARER-T-NER
A=t+ABKE EETHRRA
AL -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEEALTRSE (F)
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties: (b) BEEAEALRS :
2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Sales of goods (Note 1) $5&2E 7 (MfFE1)
o 352 315
Sunny Machinery %= - 515
Ningbo SST )i 52 FRH% 1,027 155
Shuangquan & 1,327 900
Jiangsu Medical jI %527 & 529 =
3,235 1,885
Purchase of raw materials (Note 1) 3 & R % (FizE1)
BN E 5,690 6,803
Ningbo SST )i 52 FRH% 9 722
Xingli 237 103 105
5,802 7,630
Property rental expenses (Note 2) ¥ % & H (HizF2)
Sunny Group Z#F 5% & 3,297 4,043
Jiahua {£# - 54
Ningbo SST )i 52 FRH% 1,667 727
4,964 4,824

Processing charge and other expenses (Note 1)
MITERREAMFES (FFE1)

Sunny Group $#F 5% H 41 383

Sunny Machinery 25 #4 27 -

Ningbo SST 2§ 72 FEHE 1,409 1,741

Sunny Mould Z#=F1R A - 83
1,477 2,207

Notes: MIEE -

(1) The transactions were entered into in accordance with the terms (1) ZERSBRIBHEBATHEDOGIGETT ©

agreed by the relevant parties.

(2) The property rental expenses were charged based on the terms (2 MERSHEZTIRBMAEBATHEDK
agreed by the relevant parties. FRUER o
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEEALTRSE (F)

(Continued)

(c) At the end of reporting period, the Group has the (c) REEHR  AEEHEBEALTHNEK

following significant balances with related parties:

EBRUT

2014 2013
—E2-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBET T
Current assets: JRBN & -
Amounts due from related parties FEJEEE A L+ 508
Ningbo SST %)% 52 FRHY 474> 223"
Shuangquan Z[# _ a7+
474 270
Current liabilities: R EN & &
Amounts due to related parties FE{fBliE A+ FE
prE= =] 2,772* 2,369*
Ningbo SST & s FRHE 220* 465"
Xingli £ 16* 44*
Sunny Group P TFEE - 166
Sunny Machinery 554 2*
3,010 3,044

Other than those amounts denoted with an asterisk ‘*’
which are of a trade nature, the other amounts are of a non-
trade nature. The amounts are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of related parties balance of
trade nature at the end of reporting period.

BRAT BTROBERESEESIN - &

MBBEHRIIFESEE -
ER 2N EARERKEER

RETERE

o

RBESHR FEEZUEENEEAL

IR DT -

2014 2013
—E-mF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Current assets: mENEE :
Within 90 days 90K A 474 270
Current liabilities: JREN & & :
Within 90 days 90Kk A 3,010 2,878

The Group allows a credit period of 90 days to related party
trade receivables (2013: 90 days). The average credit period
on purchases of goods from related parties is 90 days (2013:

90 days).

REBG THEALE HERKRIEIOR
MEEH (ZT—=%:90XK) - BEA

TEMRBNFOEE

—=4 : 90K) °

HI 90K (= F
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35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management, excluding all Directors
and Chief Executives whose emoluments have been set out

B.EAEALRZ (&)

(d) TEEEAESHMH

FR-IBEEAR (TEREAMEZCH
FIRK 12K EEEREBTHRAR)

in Note 12, during the year is as follows: T
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETIT
Short-term benefits 52 Hi4& 7| 11,515 12,136
Post-employment benefits B3 1% 18 Fl 535 639
Share award scheme f% 17 #2Eh =t 2| 5,262 4,991
17,312 17,766

~

=
&
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36. DEFERRED INCOME 36. IE L WA

2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Amounts credited to profit or loss during the year: RNt A58
Subsidies related to technology enhancement of production lines (Note 1)
EESETSCEMmAL (FIaE1) 7,592 3,675
Subsidies related to research and development of technology projects (Note 2)
BATIE B o L (Fisk2) 10,071 10,371
Incentive subsidies (Note 3) #2EN# 85 (MiFE3) 2,098 11,640
Non-current portion FEBNEREE 19,761 25,686
Deferred income related to government grants: B @B & iEIEU A -
Subsidies related to technology enhancement of production lines (Note 1)
A ERE M E RS (FIsET) 18,378 13,605
Subsidies related to research and development of technology projects (Note 2)
v I B AR AL (M95E2) 15,955 14,957
Total #2%58 34,333 28,562
Less: current portion J& : BNEAEE S (11,105) (10,740)
Non-current portion JEENERE(5 23,228 17,822

Note 1: The Group received grants from the local government Mt ANE BRSBTS G4 mE - X
unconditionally for the purpose of increase in production capacity BRANEEEGRaRBRFHRERE
for high technology mobile lens by enhancement of production B ZECHIEEEI RS ERLEER

lines. The amounts are deferred and amortised over the useful

MARRI B E 2 P L AE IR -

lives of the relevant assets in the enhanced production lines.

AERESHITRNLERES TN
Bh o LAREBYED D AR B BB - %
SLBBREL NS RMTIEE R -

Note 2: The Group received grants for reimbursement towards the costs MizE2 :
of research and development of certain technology projects with
local government and various parties. The amounts are deferred
and amortised over period of the respective technology projects.

MYRES © H077 U M 6 112 (L B2 Bl B A ZR /T AR
SERBHER FINBRABEERER

Note 3: Incentive subsidies were received from the local government
unconditionally in recognition of the eminence of development

8/

AN

of new products, achievement of certain revenue and export
volume milestones of the Group. The subsidies were granted on
a discretionary basis to the Group during the current year.

HAXER - ZEHPBERAFERBE
TALKHE -
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37.SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted The Sunny Optical Technology (Group)
Company Limited Restricted Share Award Scheme (“Restricted
Share Award Scheme”) on 22 March 2010 (“Adoption Date”)
with a duration of 10 years commencing from the Adoption
Date. The objective of the Share Award Scheme is to provide the
selected participants including Directors, employees, agents or
consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Selected
Participants”) with an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest
in the Company; to encourage and retain such individuals to
work with the Group; and to provide additional incentive for
them to achieve performance goals, with a view to achieving the
objectives of increasing the value of the Company and aligning
the interests of the Selected Participants directly to be the owners
of the Company through ownership of shares. The Group has
set up The Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited
Restricted Share Award Scheme Trust (“Trust”) to administer
and hold the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to Selected Participants. Upon granting of shares to
Selected Participants (“Restricted Shares”), the Trust purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open market
with funds provided by the Company by way of contributions.
Restricted Shares granted under the Share Award Scheme are
subject to a vesting scale in tranches of one-third to one-fifth
each (as the case may be) on every anniversary date of the
grant date starting from the first anniversary date until the third
to the fifth anniversary (as the case may be). The vested shares
are transferred to Selected Participants at no cost except that
the expenses attributable or payable in respect of the transfer
of such shares of the Company shall be borne by the Selected
Participants.

The grant of Restricted Shares is subject to acceptance by the
Selected Participants. Restricted Shares granted to but not
accepted by the Selected Participants shall become unaccepted
shares. The Trustee may use any remainder of cash and non-cash
income received by the Trust in respect of the shares held upon
trust to purchase additional shares after defraying all expenses
incurred by the Trust prior to the purchase of additional shares.
The Trust shall hold the additional shares, unaccepted shares
and unvested shares upon trust and may make any grant to
existing or new Selected Participants after receiving instructions
from the Administration Committee of the Group. The fair value of
Restricted Shares awarded was determined based on the market
value of the Company’s shares at the grant date.

1. R AD SR B ET &

ARBER-_Z-ZEF=A-+_-A ([HF#®H
BH]) ®ATHFTAEEME (RE) ARA
75 R i A 22 B ET & ([ 5 BR Bl A tn 2B Eh &t
) ZEHEERMAHERETFAR -
iy BB g ERRRMHSESLEE (B4
B RE ARAREWNBARMNRIER
BE) ([FE2uE]) —EREEARFMA
AEROEE SR RBERAEETIEN
ERIAL  REEIMESREFEUERIXER
B NEBRRAARRREENER  LAB
BREARD  ERHE2RENEGERRF
BRRMESE RS - AEBERIZIFET R
SR (RE) BRARZR G ZEhEt &
=58 ([ME7E)) NEERBAARRBRNEE
BB REETRHEZEE - ERAKES
EEFRERD (TRENERD]) & - ERER
AMmEEBERSTREZARR RN - i
ARBAEF T NIRHE S - RIFW ER
FPEIR AR GIER D AR E R RS —BF
EAREFEE=FFER (RB\EAME) BEF
BHE SEEFEIHEBE=22—%1
nz— (RERAME) - ERBORNEESE
BTRHE2EE  EFESEEAAREER
ARBZERDEEREMNNFEX -

RORGIER D AFFESEERMTTA(E
B RTRESEEETER ARG
N R TEZ AR - XFEARBAEFERIA
SR B A RO EER AR RIE
AW ASRBERBRERIIMND - BEBERBEIN
B AIZAE X HEFER B R ° EFEAMN
ERTAFTARIMNA - TEERRND KK
BERD UHEAKREEEZEEMNETRT
AREAFMNFESBEREZEFRD - F
REBOREERD O QL ERARFRD
REFH BT EERE
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37. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

Movements in the number of Restricted Shares granted and
related fair value are as follows:

37. R SR B ET & (&)

BEER MRS E REBERR A B
HEMT

Weighted Number of

average Restricted

fair value Shares

(per share) granted

gRMmE 2% i BR il

FHARE KRG EE

HK$ ('000)

BT (FR)

At 1 January 2013 R=F—=F—H—H 2.193 35,930

Lapsed & %3 2.821 (537)

Vested E.55 /&8 2.086 (12,998)

Granted (Note 1) B H (Hi7E1) 8.516 8,180
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014

RIE—=F+"_A=+—RHAKk=_FT—MOF—-H—H 3.919 30,575

Lapsed B K&K 4.519 (470)

Vested B 578 3.306 (15,278)

Granted (Note 2) 2% (FffzE2) 8.894 10,952

At 31 December 2014 KT —MF+_-H=+—H 6.385 25,779

Note 1: The Restricted Shares granted in 2013 vest on every anniversary
date of the grant date of each batch of Restricted Shares in
tranches on the following scales:

Restricted Shares Scales
2,352,000 shares One-fourth
5,708,000 shares One-third to one-fifth
120,000 shares One-fourth

The fair value of Restricted Shares granted is measured on the
basis of an observable market price.

Note 2: The Restricted Shares granted in 2014 vest on every anniversary
date of the grant date of each batch of Restricted Shares in
tranches on the following scales:

Restricted Shares Scales
2,784,000 shares One-fourth
7,948,000 shares One-third to one-fourth
220,000 shares One-fourth

The fair value of Restricted Shares granted in measured on the
basis of an observable market price.

MizEl: R-Z-—=FERHRGIMERMHN S

PR 1 1R A 1 3% 1 B R 0 BHEDR 4 BRI

THRESIESB :

PR il 14 A% 17 HE
2,352,0000% Mo Z—
5,708,000/% =PZ—ERANZ—
120,0000% 5 Z—

P35 R MR AR A0 B9 A 72 (B T & A AT R
EHNTISERE

MizEe : R-T-WFEHRUBRBIMERORSH

PR 1 14 A% 47 3% B B e & BB 5 B 42 A

THRESIEE :

PR 1 4 A% 12 R
2,784,0000% m5z—
7,948,0000% =HRZ—ENHZ—
220,0000% Ny z—

P35 PR 1 MR B A0 B9 A 7 (B Th E A AT R
EHNWSERE
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e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #Z= —ZF—F+=-H=+—HIFF/Z

37.SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 37. k{7 Est2 (&)

The following table discloses details of the shares granted under TREBASEEES (BEEF) MEEHR
Restricted Shares held by employees (including Directors) of the R BR B M AR 0 35 AR D MO FF 1B R FE N2 F AR
Group and movements in such holdings during the year: HEEFR S ¢

Balance at Granted during Lapsed during Vested during Balance at

Type 1.1.2014 the year the year the year 31.12.2014

R-Z—RF

R=—Z—MmF t=A=+—H

il — B —HH&EER FRARE FRRK FAER B 5Bk

’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000

T’ T TR’ TR’ F A%

Shares &3 30,575 10,952 (470) (15,278) 25,779

Balance at  Granted during Lapsed during Vested during Balance at

Type 1.1.2013 the year the year the year 31.12.2013

RZE—=%F

RZT—=%F +=ZA=+—H

27 —A—BNER FREE FRRK FNEB B 45 R

000 000 000 000 ’000

TR TR T T F A%

Shares &7 35,930 8,180 (537) (12,998) 30,575
Details of the shares held by Directors included in the above table FRAFBESFAF/ROOFBAT -

are as follows:

Balance at Granted during Lapsed during Vested during Balance at

Type 1.1.2014 the year the year the year 31.12.2014
R-Z—NF

R=-Z2-—F +=BA=+—H

Ehl —HB— B FARE FRAKK FRER B A5 Bk
’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000

TR TR TR TR TR

Shares f% 19 3,586 579 - (1,412) 2,753
Balance at  Granted during Lapsed during Vested during Balance at

Type 1.1.2013 the year the year the year 31.12.2013
RZE—=%F

RZT—=%F +=ZA=+—~”

7 —A— AR FAKRE FRRM FRNEB B A5 ER
000 000 000 000 ’000

T TR TR T T

Shares %19 4,698 - - (1,112 3,586
The equity-settled share-based payments charged to the profit or HE-_Z—NMF+-_A=+—RHLFE ®
loss was RMB40,420,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 BRIl ESEEROZNARIES
(2013: RMB30,843,000). AR #40,420,000c (ZE—=F: AR

30,843,0007T) °

/AN
&/
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2074 &% — E—py#E+—H=+—HIFEZF

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. M B A BlEETE

&/

AN

(a) Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise (a) BREBEHBPIN RARRZZE—NFER
stated, by the Company at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are —E—=Ft+-_A=+—HEEEFAED
as follows: BB ARGBHT

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid up Attributable
registration/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
EMRY /2l ERORER AEBEREH
WEARER wH/EEHE  RE/EMEXR etk TEXR
2014 2013
~¥-OmF —T-=F
Sun Yu Optical Technology Limited The British Virgin Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
RERERBARLA Islands (‘The BVI’)  US$100,000 (dlirectly held) RERR
EBERIES Zi@Mk100,000%7T (B##A)
(Rx#s])
Sun Xiang Optical Overseas Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
REXBENERAA BRES EAR10ET RERR
Sun Li Instrument Overseas Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
RNESENERAT BRES LER10ET RERR
Summit Optics Technology Limited The BVI Ordinary share US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BRES LRRIET REAER
Summit Optics Investment Limited The BVI Ordinary share US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BLEE LRRIET REAR
Sunny Optical Overseas Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
REABENERAA BB Lak10%ET RERR
Sunny Instruments Overseas Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares US $10 100% 100% Investment holding
RFERGIERAA &E Lak10%T REER
Summit Optical Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
i LRRIET REER
Summit Optical Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
i LRRIET REER
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e P BwRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. MBS (&)

(Continued)
(a) (Continued) (@ (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid up Attributable
registration/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
HMRY /R ERIRAR rEEREN
WEARER WY/ EEHYE  RA/ERER [tk TEER
2014 2013
Z8-mFE -—T-=F%
*Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and contributed 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
MIRFAEEBRAF G capital RMB430,000,000 optical components
FMREHHRE EERHERERH
AK%430,000,0007C
*Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and contributed 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
“ERRTERERAT i capital RMB82,500,000 optical instruments
A REHHRE EERHERSRS
AR#82,500,0007C
*Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and contributed 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
FRFAE (RIL) BRAT e capital US$14,990,000 optical components
HREARA EERHERSTH
14,990,000% 7T
*Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and contributed 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
ERETAEEEABRAT M capital US$38,831,600 optoelectronics products
A REHRA EERHEREER
38,831,600 T
“Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies The PRC Registered and contributed 63.38% 63.38% Research and development
Company Ltd. A capital RMB10,000,000 of infrared technologies
EREFAIIARAR AR EHHRE R RFARAIMREN
AR#10,000,0007
Sunny Japan Co., Ltd. Japan Registered and contributed 55% 55% Trading of optical
RFAXKA BA capital JPY99,000,000 instruments and
FREHRAR optoelectronics products
99,000,008 & BEXEESItEER

/AN
&/
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38.ME TS (&

&/

AN

(Continued)
(a) (Continued) (@) (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid up Attributable
registration/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
HMRY/#R  BRORAR rREREN
WEARER WY/ EERYE  RA/ERER Ptk TEEH
2014 2013
Z8-mE -—T-=F%
“Shanghai Sunny Hengping Scientific The PRC Registered and contributed 56.07% 56.07%  Manufacture and sale of
Instrument Co., Ltd. i capital RMB7,062,290 scientific instruments
HERTETHEREERAA FMREHHRE EERHENZES
ARH7,062,2907C
Sunny Optical Corean (BVI) Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
BRES LAR10ET REAER
Power Optics Co., Ltd. Korea Ordinary shares 56.7% 56.7% Manufacture and sale of
NERERRAA &H KRW3,080,880,000 optical components
£i#13,080,880,000% EERBEERETH
Sunny Instruments Singapore PTE. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary shares 100% 68.2% Manufacture and sale of
(“Sunny Singapore’) s SGD8,350,000 (Note 1) scientific instruments
RTERTMEERAR ([FFHME]) %% 1R8,350,0003 KT (MaE1) FERHENERS
“Ningbo Sunny Automotive Optech The PRC Registered and contributed 100% 100% Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. i capital RMB5,000,000 of optical automotive
ERRFEY S ERMERAF] HftREGRA components
AR%5,000,0007C EERBEXSEHTH]
“Sunny Optics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and contributed 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
SRKE (K2) BRAR A capital RMB40,000,000 optical components
A REHHRAR GERBERETH
AR40,000,0007C
#Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and contributed 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
EERETHEERAT G capital RMB100,000,000 optical components

R EERA
AK#100,000,0007T

TERHERDEN
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 &% — & —p#F+—H=+—HFFZ

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38.MBATFERE (8)

(Continued)
(a) (Continued) (@ (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid up Attributable
registration/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ARl ERORER REERED
WEARER wh/EENE  RE/EMEXR g TEXK
2014 2013
“F-RmE TR
* Suzhou Shun Xin Instruments Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and contributed 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
“EHNETERER AT G capital of USD1,000,000 optical instruments
R E &R 41,000,000 T EERBELZES
*Hangzhou Sunny Security The PRC Registered and contributed 100% 100% Manufacture and
Technologies Co., Ltd. H capital RMB2,000,000 development of security
MEFRHRITBR AR HRREARA equipment technologies
AR2,000,0007C EERREZRHRERN
Sunny Opotech North America Inc USA Common stock USD952,731 100% 100% Sales and development of
REREEE (LX) BRAA %M ERR052,731ETT optoelectronics products
HERREXEER
Sunny Opotech Korea Co., Ltd. Korea Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales and development of
RFAEREARAT i KRW108,000,000 optoelectronics products
A% 108,000,000 E HERFEREER
“Shanghai Sunny Yangming Precision The PRC Registered and contributed 100% (Note 2) Manufacture and sale of
Optics Co., Ltd. H capital RMB25,000,000 (K2) optical components
HERTHAREREERAR R ESRA EERHERETH
AR #25,000,0007
“Ningbo Sunny Advanced The PRC Registered and contributed 100% (Note 3) Sales and development of
Instrument Co., Ltd. w capital RMB20,000,000 (MzE3) optical instruments
EREVABERARAR FMREHHRE HERREA2ES
AE#20,000,0007
Sunny Group Limited The PRC Registered and contributed 100% (Note 4) Investment holdings and
HEEBEERAR i capital RMB115,782,000 (PizEs) property leasing
A REHHRE REARRDERE
AR#115,782,0007
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

38. fY B A =15 (&

(a) (Continued) @ (&)

&/

AN

On 25 July 2014, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement (the “Agreement”) with the shareholders of the
non-controlling interests (the “Vendors”) of a subsidiary of
the Group, Sunny Singapore. According to the Agreement,
the Group purchased all the ordinary shares held by the
Vendors, representing 3,634,500 ordinary shares or 31.8%
of the issued share capital of Sunny Singapore, for a total
consideration of Singapore Dollar 320,594 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,544,000). Upon completion of the
share purchase transaction, the Group will own 100% of
the equity interest of Sunny Singapore. The share purchase

transaction was completed during the current year.

The company was established on 28 February 2014.

The company was established on 11 March 2014.

The company was acquired by the Group during the year.

companies are sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises

companies are domestic invested enterprises

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of both years.

izl RZTE—WFLA=+HA A%
[ 22 AN Sk B A T B R R 52 TR AN
FEERERARE (B Ty —
RGO EE B ([HE]) - RIBER
#OAKEBEATEIRANME
E@A% - BN3,634,5000% & i3 A% 5k 5%
FHE N B BEITARAKI31.8% © 42
B /320,594%7 i 7T (B E R K
A R ¥1,544,0007t) © IR 17 & B 2
SEK% - REBEBHEBFETHM
HKI100%MHE - RIDBE X FERAK
FETK °

Mz : ZARR_ZE-—NF-A_-+/\H
M3 : ZARRZZE-—HE=A+—H

MizEd : ZRFRFRRANEEYE

* MR ERERT
# NEREAT

REZMER HEBRARLEHTEMBER

.

/7
p=11l

o
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38.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Group that have material non-controlling

interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

interests:

Proportion of

38. fY B A =15 ()

(b) ERABEBEARFEREZNARE

EEZEMBATNFE

TREFNEBERAERFERERNHA
SESEREMB R RS

Places of ownership
incorporation/ interests and voting
registration/ rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary operation non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interest
EMRL /R FERERSENER ARFFERERN
WEARER WY/ EENY BERRRELA wA (58) 2t FERER
For the years ended
As at December 31, December 31, As at December 31,
RMt=A=t-H BEt-A=t-HLEE Rt=A=t-H
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
%-OF -T-=Ff =-¥-MF _—F-=F =R MmF _F-=F%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSI AR%Tr AR%TR ARETR
Shanghai Sunny Hengping Scientific The PRC 43.93% 43.93% (4,473) 327 291 4,764
Instrument Co., Ltd. #
LERFETREERERAA
Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies The PRC 36.62% 36.62% 252 751 4,936 4,684
Company Ltd. o
ERRFIMMERAR
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests
RAEERERNEREEAN BT (607) (710) (2,334) 632
Total &% (4,828) 368 2,893 10,080

/AN
&8/
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20714 # % —F—PYF 1+ - A=+—HIFFEF

38.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(b) (Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling

interests is set out below:

Shanghai Sunny Hengping Scientific Instrument Co., Ltd.

B.HMELR

(b) (%)

A #E (#)

7@‘?§$‘$ B H EASFE R s ) & Y
RAWHBERBEZHIIAT ¢

tERFEINEERERLA

As at December 31,

R+=—HA=+—H
2014 2013
—2-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTTT
Current assets & &E 28,602 49,737
Non-current assets 3ER B4 &= 7,074 2,372
Current liabilities 7 #) & & (25,614) (31,308)
Non-current liabilities JERE) & & (9,400) (9,957)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 782 &) & 5 fE (L 1 25 371 6,080
Non-controlling interests FE#E A% #E 25 291 4,764

For the year ended December 31,

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

2014 2013
=EF-mEF —F =5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AER¥TFTT
Revenue YA 52,245 70,826
Expenses FXx (62,428) (70,081)
(Loss) profit for the year A (E518) & 7 (10,183) 745
(Loss) profit attributable to owners of the Company
RARIRERFEN (B1R) &1 (5,710) 418
(Loss) profit attributable to owners of the non-controlling interests
SRR R A ARG (B518) & A (4,473) 327
(10,183) 745
Net cash (out) inflow (used in) from operating activities
eEEE (FrA) RsRE ORE) mMAEHE (6,043) 1,129
Net cash outflow used in investing activities & & EEFTAIR &7 HF 8 (3,898) (1,468)

Net cash inflow from financing activities B &;EEFT1SIE SR

R
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38.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 3B.MEBLATFE (E)
(Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies Company Ltd. ERRFAMMERAT

—mEFZA=1—HILFE

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—H
2014 2013
= Lk —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AR¥EFTT
Current assets 8 & E 10,341 11,383
Non-current assets 3ERBNE &= 10,382 7,476
Current liabilities 78 & & (7,244) (6,069)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2N 2 &) A% 5 fE(h A 25 8,543 8,106
Non-controlling interests FE3E A& AE 25 4,936 4,684

For the year ended December 31,

BEt-A=t—HLFE

2014 2013

—E-OF —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AE¥T T

Revenue WA 17,541 18,748

Expenses Fiz (16,852) (16,697)

Profit for the year 4 A &) 689 2,051

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 22 &10% B3 FE 3% 7l 437 1,300
Profit attributable to owners of the non-controlling interests

e A AR A 252 751

689 2,051

Net cash inflow from operating activities A& EEATSIE &R A FHE 1,803 2,099

Net cash outflow used in investing activities & & EEFr IR &7 ) F 5 (4,999) (3)

Net cash outflow used in financing activities & & BN AT RIR &7 H F 58 (82) =

OV}
=/
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 DECEMBER 2074 &% — E—py#E+—H=+—HIFEZF

39.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 3. HEHIBREE

PERIOD

RBERRE  EEZBERAAKRE - B
BB ENHIEE0 -

40, 2~ B B B E #

After the end of reporting period, the Directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in Note 10.

40. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

AN

/

COMPANY
Assets and Liabilities EERAE
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYET T ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3ERENVEE
Interests in subsidiaries, unlisted FF B A FIE 253,850 253,850
Loans to subsidiaries f{/& R al B 1,219,344 1,208,592
1,473,194 1,457,522
CURRENT ASSETS 78 &E&E
Other receivables and prepayment H th f& I FRIB K F8 15 Z0E 187 4,059
Banks balances and cash $R17458 M IR & 17,941 7,456
18,128 11,524
CURRENT LIABILITIES & & &
Short term borrowings B HifE & 336,732 173,918
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfHTE A 7 IE 26,677 26,634
Derivative financial liabilities $74 & Rl & & 8,479 -
Other payables E fi & 5018 2,772 3,182
374,660 203,734
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES 7i&) & &5 (356,532) (192,210)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& E R BN A & 1,116,662 1,265,232
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JER & & &
Derivative financial liabilities $74 % gt & & 2,905 =
NET ASSETS &&= F{E 1,113,757 1,265,232
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R 7 f# 5
Share capital B 105,177 105,177
Reserves (Note) f#f# (MizE) 1,008,580 1,160,055
TOTAL EQUITY #Ez 48 %8 1,113,757 1,265,232
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COMPANY (Continued)

40. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

4. AR HBZER ()

—mEFZA=+—HILFE

Reserve e
Shares held Share (Accumulated
under share award losses)
Share Special award scheme retained
premium reserve scheme reserve profits Total
B4 RE
sHEIEEM i 17 2% B (REE#R)
R 13 5 8 S RIRE (i) BE =1 REEF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTT ARETFT ARBTT ARETFT ARBTT
(Note a)
(Pzxa)
The Company
EAT
At 1 January 2013
RZZE—=%—H—H 510,310 166,973 (9,875) 2,849 (10,722) 659,535
Loss for the year and total
comprehensive expenses
for the year
FABELRFAZERZBE - - - = (3,939) (3,939)
Shares issued B #1THH 600,463 - - - - 600,463
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
MR AR 2 A E IR 1D S [T AR IE - - - 1,360 - 1,360
Dividends received under
share award scheme
RIRRR D SRR 2R AR B - - - - 7,636 7,636
Dividends paid
[EANEEEEN (105,000) = = = = (105,000)
At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014
—E-=H+-A=1+—AHk
:T mE—/—H 1,005,773 166,973 (9,875) 4,209 (7,025) 1,160,055

OV}
&/
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40.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Reserve (Continued)

4. AR BER (&)

()

Shares held

under share

Share Special award
premium reserve scheme
AR 1 52 B

STEIEEN

B 43 5B BRI )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETRT
(Note a)
(HizEa)

Share (Accumulated

award losses)
scheme retained
reserve profits Total

BROER  (REER)
Bl RERF Ast
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TRT

Loss for the year and total
comprehensive expenses
for the year
FREERFALEMZAHE = -

= (7,502) (7,502)

Purchase of shares under

share award scheme
RBRR ) 2@t 8188 B A (D = =
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payments
BRAERE RO X FHRIE = =
Shares vested under share

award scheme
REBRR (0 2@ 8l BB IR D = =
Dividends received under

share award scheme
IRB AR 17 22 B+ B AR ER AT AR B - -
Dividends paid
BERE (132,737) =

(18,487)

7,949

= = (18,487)

3,602

3,602

(7,693) (256) =

= 3,649 3,649

(132,737)

At 31 December 2014
R-ZZE—NF+=-_A=+—H 873,036 166,973

(20,413)

118 (11,134) 1,008,580

Note:
(@) The amount recorded in the special reserve was resulted from:

(i)  the capital contribution by/distribution to Sunny Group in relation
to the acquisitions/disposals of equity interests in subsidiaries;
and

(i) the difference between the net carrying amounts of equity
interests in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the shares of
their respective holding companies arisen in share exchange
transactions during the group reorganisation.

MR
&/

AR RIRERR SRR S ¢

() ARTEBEUE HENB R RRER
BT8RN &

(i) MHEARKRENREFERRESBE
BRAFRBROEEZEREEEEBRR
ZRELRZER -
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0O. Box 2681, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

HONG KONG

Unit 603, 6th Floor, Grand City Plaza,
1-17 Sai Lau Kok Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

THE PRC

Nos. 66-68, Shunyu Road,
Yuyao, Zhejiang Province, PRC
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Corporate Information
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CORPORATE WEBSITE
www.sunnyoptical.com

LEGAL ADVISERS

Pang & Co. in association with Loeb & Loeb LLP

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China, Yuyao Sub-branch
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’ s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
Stock Code: 2382

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. SUN Yang
Ms. WONG Pui Ling (ACCA, HKICPA)
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Design and Production by : Toppan Vite Limited website: www.toppanvite.com
ETERME - OARIRERCEIRIA R A E A E48HE: www.toppanvite.com

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited
RFEAZHRR(RE)RRAT

Unit 603, 6/F., Grand City Plaza, 1-17 Sai Lau Kok Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
BRLETEARK-17 A ES6E603E
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